Corporate Slogan

The slogan is a short, symbolic representation of the company’s corporate vision that reads,
“With a pioneering spirit to explore uncharted areas, we develop innovative product solutions
in a timely manner that provide optimum value for our customers and society.”

Hitachi Chemical Group has brought to market innovative products,
one after another, under its vision of contributing
to society through the development of superior technologies and products.
We hope the new corporate slogan will help to better describe our corporate vision,
stance and business activities to our customers, shareholders and the societies in our business regions.

Corporate Vision

Our vision is to contribute to society through the development of
superior technologies and products.
By combining and adapting our wide-ranging advanced material and processing technologies,
Hitachi Chemical aims to provide superior technologies, products and services
that contribute to the betterment of human life and society.

Our mission is to create new and innovative “Value” as a frontrunner.
With a pioneering spirit to explore uncharted areas, we develop innovative product solutions
in a timely manner that provide optimum value for our customers and society.

At all times, the key value we heed and promote is “Trust.”
In keeping with the trust our customers and society have placed in us,
we pledge to fulfill our duties and responsibilities as a corporation.
With this in mind, each and every one of us works to preserve the environment,
maintain the highest standards of ethics and business integrity,
and seek true customer satisfaction.
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Editorial Policy
To date, Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. (“Hitachi Chemical” or “the
Company”) has taken active steps to communicate with its
stakeholders through a variety of media and information tools.
Among a host of initiatives, the Company has published both
Annual Report and Sustainability Report annually. Recognizing
that non-financial information integrated with financial data has
played an increasingly important role in evaluating a company’s
activities in recent years, Hitachi Chemical has decided to produce an integrated annual and sustainability report for this year.
Our hope is that this report will provide stakeholders with a
deeper understanding of the Company’s economic, environmental and social activities that reflect our founding spirit and corporate philosophy.
Issued in both Japanese and English, we have supplemented the hard copy version with a PDF format posted on our
homepage. The English report contains the Financial Section.
For financial data in Japanese, readers are directed to the Company’s Securities Report.
Turning to information on our CSR activities, we have placed
considerable emphasis on materiality taking into consideration
the level of stakeholder interest and the degree of importance
to the Company. Detailed information is also posted on our
homepage.
IR
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l Organizations

Covered

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and its 57 consolidated subsidiaries
Please refer to page 39 for details of business entities from which environmental impact data is collected.
Subject notation
The terms “Hitachi Chemical,” “the Company,” and “non-consolidated” only
refer to Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd., whereas “the Hitachi Chemical Group,”
“the Group,” and “consolidated” refer to the Hitachi Chemical Group.
l Period

Covered by the Report

Fiscal 2011 (April 1, 2011 to March 31, 2012)
This report also contains information on activities of particular importance prior to and after fiscal 2011.
Note that “Fiscal Year” or “FY” refer to the accounting year ending on
March 31.
l Guidelines

Adopted with respect to Non-financial Information

Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) Sustainability Reporting Guidelines
Version 3.1
Environmental Reporting Guidelines 2012 version and Environmental
Accounting Guidelines 2005 version issued by the Ministry of the Environment of Japan
l Forward-looking

Statements

In addition to information of material fact regarding the past and present
activities of Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and its consolidated subsidiaries
(“the Hitachi Chemical Group” or “the Group”), this report contains forwardlooking statements concerning future plans and forecasts. Forward-looking
statements are based on currently available information as well as the Group’s
assumptions and beliefs as of the date this report was issued. As a result,
actual results and events may differ materially from forward-looking statement due a variety of factors including changes in operating conditions.
l The

Status of Inclusion in Indices

Hitachi Chemical is included in a number of domestic and international
socially responsible investment (SRI) indices of the Company’s established sustainability activity track record and construction stance toward information disclosure.
(Please refer to the back cover of this report)
A questionnaire survey about this report is being carried out on Hitachi
Chemical’s website. Please give us your comments and suggestions.
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HIGHLIGHTS

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and the Consolidated Subsidiaries for the Years Ended March 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010

Financial Highlights
Thousands of U.S. dollars
(except per share data)

Millions of yen
(except per share data)

2012 (FY2011)

2011 (FY2010)

2010 (FY2009)

2012 (FY2011) 2012/2011 (%change)

¥473,069

¥497,452

¥455,287

$5,769,134

Operating income

24,495

43,471

38,341

298,720

-43.7

Net income

16,427

18,943

23,509

200,329

-13.3

Capital expenditures

37,347

30,432

20,984

455,451

22.7

Research and development expenses

25,680

26,382

25,402

313,171

-2.7

¥440,981

¥432,184

¥426,586

$5,377,817

287,239

290,311

282,602

3,502,915

¥78.88

¥90.96

¥112.88

$0.96

36.00

36.00

32.00

0.44

1,359.33

1,320.30

1,289.11

16.58

Operating margin (%)

5.2

8.7

8.4

Return on sales (%)

3.5

3.8

5.2

Return on equity (ROE) (%)

5.9

7.0

9.1

Return on assets (ROA) (%)

3.8

4.4

5.7

Debt/Equity ratio (DER) (times)

0.1

0.1

0.1

For the year:
Net sales

-4.9%

At year-end:
Total assets
Total net assets

2.0%
-1.1

Per share data:
Net income
Cash dividends
Net assets

-13.3%
0
3.0

Value indicators:

Note:1 2012 = fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, 2011 = fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, 2010 = fiscal year ended March 31, 2010
Note:2 U.S. dollar amounts in this annual report are translated from yen, solely for the convenience of the reader, at the rate of ¥82=US$1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing
on the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market as of March 30, 2012.

Operating Income /
Percentage of Net Sales

Net Sales

(Billions of yen)

Operating
Income
(Billions of yen)

800

80

628.8

600

626.9

488.6

60

Percentage of
Net Sales

60.5
55.8

20

80

20

15

60

15

20

8.9

38.3
9.6

8.4

8.7

10

32.8
24.5
5.2

19.9

10

40

5

9.1
31.4

7.2
23.5
18.9

20

0

0
06 07 08 09 10 11 (FY)

5
16.4

0

7.0

6.8

5.9

5.7

2.7

06 07 08 09 10 11 (FY)

14.3
12.5

4.1

0

ROA

(%)

(Billions
(Billionsofofyen)
yen)

43.5

40

200

ROE
(%)

497.5
473.1
455.3

400

Return on Equity (ROE) /
Return on Assets (ROA)

Net Income

06 07 08 09 10 11(FY)

4.4
1.1

3.8

0.6

0

06 07 08 09 10 11 (FY)
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Net Sales (Regional Breakdown)
(Millions of yen)

2012 (FY2011)

2011 (FY2010)

2010 (FY2009)

2012/2011 (%change)

473,069

497,452

455,287

-4.9

Japan

272,355

281,352

259,914

-3.2

Asia

171,613

181,535

163,267

-5.5

29,101

34,565

32,106

-15.8

42.4

43.4

42.9

ー

Region
Total

Others
Overseas Sales Ratio (%)

Number of Employees
2012 (FY2011)

2011 (FY2010)

2010 (FY2009)

2012/2011 (%change)

16,713

15,930

15,267

4.9

10,845

10,918

10,900

-0.7

5,868

5,012

4,367

17.1

2012 (FY2011)

2011 (FY2010)

2010 (FY2009)

2012/2011 (%change)

9,316

10,198

9,572

-8.6

CO2 emissions (1,000 tons-CO2)

443

490

488

-9.6

Emissions of substances covered by the PRTR Law (domestic) (Tons)

232

220

216

5.5

71

68

70

4.4

12,537

12,394

12,995

1.2

85

87

83

ー

Region
Total
Japan
Overseas

Environmental Data
Energy Total (1000 GJ)

Waste (tons)
3

Water Total (1,000 m )
Ratio of Green Products in sales volume (%)

Note: Please refer to Page 39 about the scope of environmental impact data reporting

Cash Dividends per Share /
Payout Ratio
Cash Dividends
per Share

Payout Ratio

(Yen)

(%)

50

250

243.3

Research and Development Expenses / Capital Expenditures /
Depreciation and Amortization
Percentage of Net Sales
Research and
Development Expense
(Billions of yen)

30

12

27.8 28.2 27.6
25.4

40

26.4

32

20

32 32

8

150

20

4.4
10

10

28.3
17.7

39.6

4.5

600

40 37.7
37.4 36.0
34.6
32.9
30

100

(1,000 tons-CO2)

50

539 534

36

28

Depreciation
and Amortization

Capital Expenditures
(Billions of yen)

25.7

200
36

30

Percentage of
Net Sales
(%)

CO2 Emissions

28.1

484 488 490
37.3

443
400

31.730.4
29.0
28.2

5.7 5.6
5.3 5.4

21.0
20

4

200
10

50
45.6

21.1
0

0
06 07 08 09 10 11 (FY)

0

0
06 07 08 09 10 11 (FY)

0

07
06

08
07

09
08

10
09

11
10

12
11 (FY)

0

06 07 08 09 10 11 (FY)
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RESULTS OF OPERATION

Functional
materials
segment
Overview of Fiscal 2011

Inorganic materials

Despite the upswing in sales of such products as carbon anode
materials for lithium ion batteries focusing mainly on growth
fields including eco-friendly automobiles, tablet PCs and smartphones, overall sales in the functional materials segment declined 5% year on year to ¥240.4 billion. This was largely attributable to the decrease in sales of semiconductor,
display-related materials due to the downturn in semiconductor and display-related market. Operating income also fell 36%
compared with the previous fiscal year to ¥20.0 billion reflecting the decrease in sales of semiconductor, display and otherrelated materials, the sharp increase in raw material prices and
prolonged appreciation in the value of the yen.
The amount of CO2 emissions totaled 206,000 tons, a 4%
decrease from the emissions amount for fiscal 2010 (215,000
tons).

Results in Fiscal 2011 by Major Segment Product
Electronics materials
Sales of epoxy molding compounds for semiconductors decreased compared with the previous fiscal year due to a fall in
demand for PCs, etc.
Sales of die bonding materials for semiconductors declined
compared with the previous fiscal year, reflecting the sluggish
semiconductor market and other factors.
Sales of slurry for chemical mechanical planarization increased compared with the previous fiscal year due to an increase in sales of the products suitable for finer technology
nodes of semiconductor design rules.
Sales of varnishes decreased compared with the previous
fiscal year due to a decline in demand for automobiles.

Sales of carbon anode materials for lithium ion batteries grew compared with the previous fiscal year with an increase in sales for
eco-friendly automobiles, in addition to rising demand for their use
in smartphones and tablet PCs. Sales of carbon products declined
significantly compared with the previous fiscal year, although new
sites began production to compensate for suspension of operations at production base located in the precautionary zone following the Fukushima Dai-ichi Nuclear Power Station accident.
Sales of ceramics increased compared with the previous fiscal
year with an increasing demand for the use in semiconductor manufacturing equipment.

Polymer science materials
Sales of synthetic resins for paints decreased compared with the
previous fiscal year due to a fall-off in demand for automobiles.
Sales of adhesive films declined compared with the previous
fiscal year, reflecting a decreasing demand for their use in surface
protection of optical sheets used in LCDs.
Sales of anisotropic conductive films for displays decreased
compared with the previous fiscal year, reflecting falls in demand
for LCD TVs and PCs.
Sales of contactless IC cards and tags increased compared
with the previous fiscal year due to an increasing demand in the
amusement field.

Printed wiring board materials
Sales of copper-clad laminates for printed wiring boards declined
compared with the previous fiscal year due to a decreasing demand in use for PCs.
Sales of photosensitive dry films for printed wiring boards increased compared with the previous fiscal year due to growing
demand in their use for smartphones and tablet PCs.

Functional materials segment
Net Sales

Net Sales / Operating Income
Net Sales
(Billions of yen)

32.2

51%

5% lower than
the previous fiscal year

31.1

300
240.7 252.0

20.0

100

09

10

40

10,000

400

30

7,500

20

5,000

200

10

2,500

100

(1,000 tons-CO2)

7,523

300

6,997

240.4

200

0

CO2 Emissions

Operating Income
(Billions of yen)

400

240.4
Billions of yen

Number of Employees

11

(FY)

0

0

10

11

(FY)

0

215

206

10

11

(FY)

Note: Please refer to Page 39 about
the scope of environmental
impact data reporting
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Advanced
components and
systems segment
Overview of Fiscal 2011
The advanced components and systems segment was impacted
by the slump operating rates at automobile manufacturers following the Great East Japan Earthquake. Moreover, access to
certain regions was either prohibited or restricted owing to incidents at the Fukushima Dai-ichi Nuclear Power Station. As a result, operations were forced to be suspended at certain subsidiaries. Damage from the floods in Thailand also put a brake on
sales of automotive products, mainly friction materials. Accounting for each of the aforementioned factors, sales in the advanced
components and systems segment declined 5% compared with
the previous fiscal year to ¥232.7 billion. Operating income also
fell 64% year on year to ¥4.5 billion reflecting the substantial
impact on production activities of the Great East Japan Earthquake and floods in Thailand.
The amount of CO2 emissions totaled 237,000 tons, an
14% decrease from the emissions amount for fiscal 2010
(275,000 tons).

Results in Fiscal 2011 by Major Segment Product
Automotive products
Sales of interior and exterior plastic molded products, and powder metal products declined compared with the previous fiscal
year due to the impact of a decline in the operation rate of
automobile manufacturers resulting from the earthquake in Japan and the Thailand floods.
Sales of friction materials declined significantly compared
with the previous fiscal year due to production halt at a local
manufacturing site caused by the Thailand floods in addition to

decreasing production during suspension of operations in the
precautionary zone as a result of the Fukushima Dai-ichi Nuclear
Power Station accident, although production activities were
progressively initiated at a new sites in response to the suspension.

Electronics components
Sales of printed wiring boards decreased compared with the
previous fiscal year due to a decline in mobile handset application sales and decreasing demand for the use for automobiles.

Others
Sales of batteries increased compared with the previous fiscal
year due to expanded use in automobile repairs, in addition to
increase in sales for new cars including eco-friendly vehicles
equipped with an idle-stop systems and etc.
Sales of capacitors declined compared with the previous fiscal
year due in part to the effects of the reduction of subsidies for
photovoltaic solar systems in Europe.
Sales of diagnostics / instruments decreased compared with
the previous fiscal year due to the selling-off of all the shares of
the consolidated subsidiary, which engaged in production and
sales of medical equipment components, and the transferring of
its business; however, allergy diagnostic kits sold steadily.

Advanced components and systems segment
Net Sales

Net Sales / Operating Income
Net Sales
(Billions of yen)

400

232.7
Billions of yen
5% lower than
the previous fiscal year

300
245.5

49%

Number of Employees

CO2 Emissions

40

10,000

400

30

7,500

20

5,000

200

10

2,500

100

Operating Income
(Billions of yen)

214.6

(1,000 tons-CO2)

8,933

9,190

300

275
237

232.7

200
12.4
100
6.2
0

09

4.5
10

11

(FY)

0

0

10

11

(FY)

0

10

11

(FY)

Note: Please refer to Page 39 about
the scope of environmental
impact data reporting
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TOP MESSAGE

Our goal is to become a corporate group
that prospers in partnership with global society.
To this end, we will promote sustainable engineering
while seamlessly integrating
our business and CSR strategies
President and Chief Executive Officer

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

Q

What is the rationale behind issuing a single
integrated annual and sustainability report
from this year?

Historically, our annual report has been geared toward analysts and investors. Our thoughts were
that in providing details of our financial results
and standing, readers would obtain a solid understanding of
the Group’s activities and performance.
Meanwhile, our sustainability reports explained ESG (environment (E), society (S) and governance (G)) related activities.
However, such reports were lacking in the financial information and information on our business strategies that investors
require. With this in mind, and with a view to providing readers with a true understanding of the depth of our activities,
we felt that separate CSR and annual reports were insufficient to achieve our intended goal. Put simply, we aspire to
publish an integrated report that employees can take home
and show to their families, saying “If you read this report, you
will understand that Hitachi Chemical maintains a sound financial position and seeks the well-being of society and employees.” with an intense sense of pride.

A

Q

Combining business strategies with CSR is expected to grow in importance. What are your
thoughts on this trend?

Since assuming office as President in April 2009, I
have upheld three management reform policies:
“Business Reform,” “Organizational Reform,”
and “Individual Reform.” Meanwhile, the three stances –
“Business Stance,” “Corporate Stance” and “Individual
Stance” – that have been introduced since last fiscal year in
our CSR Medium-term Roadmap: Stage 2, are a reorganization of the three management reform policies from a sustainability perspective. We must understand promoting a single
uniform management and CSR strategy. Such awareness will
help employees to better understand CSR activities. I believe
this understanding commits inside and outside the Group to
promote social contribution through business activities. Today,
the Hitachi Chemical Group primarily engages in four key
business fields: telecommunications and displays, automobiles
and transportation infrastructure, environment and energy,
and life sciences. From a business perspective, we are committed to profitability and meeting the needs of our customers,
while from a CSR perspective, we are working to increase the
ratio of environmentally-friendly product (Green Product)
sales to total sales and ensure that the mindset of all Group
companies and research and development personnel are
geared toward resolving environmental and social concerns.
On this basis, it is imperative that each and every employee through to top management understand the impor-

A
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tance of promoting a single uniform management and CSR
strategy that ensures that business is carried out with a focus
on CSR. Only in this manner can we truly hope to fulfill our
goal of sustainable growth. As such, we hold Environmental
and CSR Meetings involving the entire group in conjunction
with the quarterly accounts meeting covering business performance. At the same time, we evaluate sustainable engineering product development as well as our progress toward
achieving established targets based on predetermined key
performance indicators (KPIs). In turn, we share these results
together with pertinent information on social and statutory
rules and regulations.
P.19~20
Related Information

Q

The Hitachi Chemical Group has adopted “sustainable engineering” as a key word that underpins its business activities. Can you please
provide us with a more detailed explanation?

The Hitachi Chemical Group handles a large number of petrochemical products, in other words
products that are derived from crude oil. With this
in mind, and as a part of efforts to promote an integrated
business and CSR strategy, it is vital that we address the needs
to effectively utilize limited resources, develop increasingly advanced recycling technologies and uncover and employ renewable energies. These issues and our ability to put forward appropriate solutions in turn highlight the essential need for
innovation in the development of sustainable technologies.
This is in effect is the underlying backdrop and essence of
what we refer to as sustainable engineering.
For example, as a part of efforts to strengthen our activities
in the environment and energy field, we acquired all of the
remaining issued and outstanding shares of subsidiary company Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd. As a wholly owned
subsidiary, we are better positioned to ensure a speedy decision-making process and to leverage synergy benefits. ShinKobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd.’s strengths lie in its power
storage systems, which include lead storage batteries, lithium
ion batteries, aluminum electrolytic capacitors and lithium ion
capacitors. These products have a high correlation with the
material technologies of the Hitachi Chemical Group. Advances in material technology play a significant role in enhancing
the performance of storage devices. At the same time, issues
that may arise can be quickly analyzed and traced back to the
initial input material. This provides us with a significant competitive advantage. In incorporating storage systems operations into our overall business portfolio, we established the
Energy Devices & System Business Headquarters to promote
further development and growth in a field where industrial
demand for products that deliver improved integrity and performance as well as a longer service life is high. Utilizing high

A
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performance storage devices, photovoltaic energy and power
stored during late night hours when operating rates are low
can be used for business purposes. In this regard, I am convinced that significant opportunities for future growth exist. It
can be said that businesses that minimize the consumption of
energy sourced from limited fossil fuels and implement the
effective utilization of renewable resources such as solar power are contributing to the sustainability of human activity –
that this is in fact what a sustainable engineering is.
Related Information
P.11~14

sure, construction of a second production site at the Gateway
City Industrial Estate is underway as part of our commitment
to the promising Thailand market.
P.26
Related Information

Q

Please provide us with a summary of the
Group’s performance in fiscal 2011.

Triggered by events in Greece, the European debt
crisis continued to impact the global economy
throughout the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012.
While still regarded by many as one of the world’s market,
there were also signs that clouds were beginning to gather
over China’s economy. As a result, growth rates in each of the
semiconductor and liquid crystal markets slowed. Exacerbating difficult conditions, the Great East Japan Earthquake and
floods in Thailand had a major impact on the Groups results.
Taking each of the aforementioned factors into consideration,
consolidated net sales for the fiscal year under review came to
¥473,069 million, a decrease of 4.9% compared with the previous fiscal year. From a profit perspective, consolidated operating income totaled ¥24,495 million, down 43.7% year on
year. While the Group incurred a loss relating to damages from
the earthquake and flood disasters, this was partly offset by an
extraordinary profit of approximately ¥2,600 million attributable to compensation received from the Tokyo Electric Power
Company, Incorporated for the accident at the Fukushima Daiichi Nuclear Power Station. Accordingly, consolidated net income was ¥16,427 million, a decrease of 13.3% compared
with the previous fiscal year.
Related Information
P.5~6

A

Q

Can you please elaborate on the Group’s
countermeasures in response to the Great
East Japan Earthquake and floods in Thailand?

Two Group companies, Namie Hitachi Chemical
Co., Ltd. and Namie Japan Brake Co., Ltd., located
in Namie-machi, Fukushima Prefecture, were particularly hard hit by the aftereffects of the Great East Japan
Earthquake. Due mainly to related incidents at the Fukushima
Dai-ichi Nuclear Power Station, an order was issued to evacuate the premises of both companies. Prohibited from entering
each facility, we were forced to suspend operations, which
remain idle through to today. By shifting production to alternative locations both in Japan and overseas, we have been
able to fulfill our supply obligations. Recognizing the pitfalls in
concentrating the production of products that have a major
impact on society in a single location, we reassessed our policies and are now progressively putting in place second and
alternative manufacturing sites. At the same time, we are
looking to diversify our sources of materials procurement and
to ensure a more flexible and reliable supply chain.
The floods in Thailand caused severe damage to the first
floor of the Group’s manufacturing plant operated by Japan
Brake (Thailand) Co., Ltd. located in the Hi-tech Industrial Estate in Ayutthaya Province. We were able to partially restore
operations in February 2012, and by May 2012 operations
had returned to normal. In an effort to diversify our risk expo-

A

Q

What are the Group’s prospects in fiscal 2012
including plans for global business development?

In the fiscal year ending March 31, 2013, the Hitachi
Chemical Group will continue to expand accelerate
global expansion, strengthen new businesses and
products, environmental and energy businesses and develop a
strategic approach to the middle-range zone. On this basis, we
are targeting net sales of ¥510,000 million.
Markets for electronics are unlikely to see a major recovery
in fiscal 2012. The era of large screen LCD TVs driving the
market forward is effectively at an end. While PC shipment
volumes are essentially forecast to hold their own, the number
of components used in cloud-compatible models is steadily
declining placing downward pressure on materials manufacturers. Nevertheless developing products that meet the needs
for more compact, lighter weight components is a genuine

A
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strength of the Hitachi Chemical Group. As such, we plan on
leveraging this strength going forward.
In terms of our global business development aspirations,
including our entry into the China market, we will adopt an
additional strategic approach toward the middle-range zone.
Targeting the full range of middle-range zone products, we
are narrowing down functions and features. We will not only
focus on cutting-edge technology high-end zones, but also
target product markets where performance is more than sufficient to meet particular usage requirements despite limited
functionality commensurate with the need to keep prices in
check.
In the automobiles and transportation infrastructure field,
investments directed toward countries in their early stages of
development including Indonesia and India are expected to
bear fruit. In the next fiscal year, we anticipate finally entering
a period in which we will witness a return on our investment.
Turning again to our four key business fields, we will pay
particular attention to the rechargeable device and related
businesses in the environmental and energy field as well as
diagnostics in the life sciences field. In each case, we plan to
aggressively accelerate our activities.
As we work toward developing our business overseas including manufacturing sites, our ability to secure local production for local consumption and foster sales and marketing
as well as research and development personnel who are capable of astutely capturing local needs will become increasingly vital. Of equal importance is our ability to motivate local
staff. Currently, a significant proportion of regional sales company and manufacturing sites senior executive positions are
taken up by local personnel. Overseas personnel are invited to
participate in our Global Leadership forums, where the opportunity is taken not only to impart and explain the Hitachi
Chemical Group’s policies, but also to engage in free and
open discussion. Through this process, we are working to enhance the overall consciousness of employees and are recently witnessing significant forward progress.
Related Information
P.19~20 / 23~24 / 35~36

Q

What are your thoughts in research and development?

A key component of Hitachi Chemical’s corporate
vision is to contribute to society through the development of superior technologies and products.
The Company’s research and development activities are
grounded in material, process, evaluation and other platform
technologies. Our accumulated capabilities in each of these
fields have sprung from the development of a variety products
including insulating varnishes, industrial laminates, porcelain

A
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insulators and carbon brushes. By seamlessly combining and
integrating these wide ranging technologies, Hitachi Chemical
continues to create value. In one of several achievements during fiscal 2011, Hitachi Chemical received the Prime Minister’s
Award in the 9th Persons of Merit in Industry-Academia-Government Collaboration Awards for its semiconductor bonding
technology that enables more compact and larger capacity
electronic devices (the development of a die bonding film).
This semiconductor layering technology is already the industry
de facto standard and is contributing significantly to address
the needs for increasingly sophisticated, large capacity and
compact electronic devices. We are the first in the materials
field to receive such an award which is a testament to the high
esteem in which our technologies are held.
Hitachi Chemical regularly reviews the allocation of research human resources across each of its four key business
fields to ensure that the Company remains in tune with changes in each era. As one example, our allocation of research
personnel to the growing environmental and energy field has
surged from 17% in fiscal 2008 to a current level of 40%.
Related Information
P.11~12 / 21~22

Q

In closing, what message would you like to
leave with stakeholders?

This year Hitachi Chemical is celebrating its 50th
anniversary. In marking this milestone, I would
again like to thank all stakeholders for their support and understanding. As we move resolutely forward to the
next 50 years and the century that lies ahead, we will bolster
our efforts to integrate our business and CSR strategies as we
strive to secure further growth and development while working diligently to promote sustainable engineering. As we endeavor to achieve our established goals, we ask for the continued support and understanding of all stakeholders.

A

Promotion of
Sustainable Business

Special
feature

1

Various actions support sustainable society
Hitachi Chemical Group actively promotes sustainable business
across all four of its sustainable business fields. This concept of sustainable engineering
both combines and integrates the Company’s technology platform
as a part of efforts to resolve global-scale social issues including climate change.

Insulating varnishes
Industrial laminates

Original Products

Porcelain insulators

Carbon brushes

Material technology
Molecular and particle design
Organic and inorganic synthesis
● Purification, extraction, growth
● Nanotechnology
● Function design

Evaluation technology

Technology platform

Material property evaluation
Package assembly and reliability evaluation
● Electronics packaging reliability evaluation
● Analysis
●

●

Process technology

●

●

Molding ● Impregnation and coating
Lamination ● Dispersion
● Surface treatment and interface control
● Micro interconnection
●
●

Diagnostics / Instruments

Electronics Materials

t h ro Pro m oting Su st aina ble En gine e rin g io n
ugh th
e Co m binatio n a n d H a r m o niz at
Electronics Components
of Te c h nolo g y Plat fo r m
Inorganic Materials
Main product groups
Automotive Products

Polymer Science Materials
Printed Wiring Board Materials

I n cu b a t
s
ion from Market Trends and Customer Need

om
ec
l
Te

m

displays
ns &
o
i
t
ca
uni

Enviro
nme

nt &
ene
rgy

Promotion
motiion off Sustainable
S
nab
ble Busi
Business
i
Au
to

m

ob

ile

s&
tra
nsp
or ta
tio

n infrast
ru c t u

re

enc
Li fe s c i

es

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

12

Promotion of Sustainable Engineering
The Hitachi Chemical Group recognizes that its ability to conceptualize business at the highest level and to maintain unparalleled technological and management expertise and skills are essential to realizing sustainable business. Collectively, these
qualities are referred to as sustainable engineering. We are equally convinced that innovation is the primary driving force behind
promoting sustainable engineering. In fiscal 2011, the first year of the Hitachi Chemical Group CSR Medium-term Roadmap:
Stage 2, we have clarified the responsibilities of each executive officer and identified our ideal scenario for each business division through to 2015. Drawing on this broad picture of the Group’s future, we have established quantitative targets and key
performance indicators (KPIs) for each fiscal year while initiating an appropriate follow-up program to monitor and assess ongoing progress. Turning to the Group’s traditional focus on carbon management, the promotion of resource recycling and the
reduction of resource loss, we have also positioned business innovation at the heart of each initiative to provide the underlying
impetus for our efforts to promote sustainable engineering. Details of the Group’s performance in fiscal 2011 and objectives for
fiscal 2012 are outlined in the following table. In the initial year of the Hitachi Chemical Group CSR Medium-term Roadmap:
Stage 2, results would indicate a passing grade.
■ Fiscal 2011 Results (Consolidated)
Targeted Position in Fiscal 2015
(Targeted Position at the End of Fiscal 2015)

Item

Fiscal 2011
Targets

KPI

Achievement Rate (Number
of Achieved Targets/Total
Number of Targets)

SelfEvaluation
Points*1

Business
innovation

Contributing to global societies through the development,
manufacture, and marketing of products and technologies

Sales of applicable products; CO2 emission per unit of
output; the amount of hazardous materials included
in applicable products; the number of products that
help reduce global environmental load; other

Put in place
quantitative
targets for all
departments

10/15

2.2 Points
(simple
average)

Carbon
management

Promoting manufacturing innovations, new products development, and
related activities as a part of efforts to advance innovative manufacturing
methods and new product development that helps achieve a 15%
reduction in CO2 emissions compared with level recorded in fiscal 1990

Reduction in CO2 emissions compared with
levels recorded in fiscal 1990

11%

1/1

3.0

Implementing MFCA*2 with respect to mainstay products,
and promoting monozukuri that reduces loss related to
effects and waste

Number of products to which MFCA is
applied

Test using 1-2 products
with significant
monetary effect

1/1

3.0

Promote the development of manufacturing methods that
control the incidence of waste generated as well as recycling;
reduce the amount of waste per unit of sales during
production by 15% from levels recorded in fiscal 2005

Per unit of output reduction rate

11%

1/1

2.0

Promoting reductions in the use of chemical substances and upgrading
as well as expanding collection facilities in an effort to hold emissions
into the atmosphere with respect to volumes handled to less than 1%

Ratio of VOC emissions into the atmosphere

1.5%

1/1

3.0

Number of LCA trial products

Consider evaluation
methods; test
mainstay products

1/1

2.0

Green Product sales ratio

79%

1/1

3.0

Recycling of
resources/
Reduction of loss

Preventing
pollution from
chemical
substances

Promotion of R&D
based on consideration Implementing LCA evaluations for mainstay products while
of the environment
responding decisively to customers and society
(LCA*3)
Environmental
quantitative evaluations
of products (Green
Products)

Comparing and evaluating the environmental friendliness of
new products at each stage of development with existing
products; more than 88% of sales is comprised of Green
Products that meet this criteria

Notes: 1.Evaluation on a scale of 4 to 1; rating of 2 or more indicates targets achieved
2.MFCA is the acronym for Material Flow Cost Accounting; MFCA is a cost computation and analysis method that evaluates the total amount of costs including materials,
processing, deprecation and other expenses allocated to losses relating to the resources and energy used in the manufacturing process (negative product costs)
3.LCA is the acronym for Life Cycle Assessment; LCA is a scientific, quantitative and objective method to evaluate the level of environmental load at each stage of the product
lifecycle from materials procurement through manufacturing to disposal

■ Fiscal 2012 Targets (Consolidated)
Item

Fiscal 2012 Targets

Fiscal 2012 Action Plan
l Develop

products with the aim of increasing applicable technology sales; expand sales
l Put in place a production line with the aim of increasing production volumes of applicable products
l Develop production technologies with the aim of reducing the production costs of applicable products
l Implement follow-up procedures to track progress at Group-wide budget and other meetings

Business innovation

Achieve quantitative targets for
all departments

Carbon management

12%

l Continuously

Select and implement tests using 1-2
products with significant monetary effect

l Expand

l Promote

Recycling of resources/
Reduction of loss

12%

the effective management of carbon evaluation systems; reinvigorate Group-wide CO2 reduction activities
implement CO2 reduction measure surveys; improve manufacturing methods in an effort to reduce CO2 emissions; identify
and implement themes relating to innovative new product development

l Apply

products applicable to consultant instruction
MFCA to new products

l Follow-up

progress through Waste Committees; exchange information with respect to reduction and other measures
ascertain performance data and promote increased visualization

l Continuously
l Continuously

ascertain performance data and promote increased visualization
exhaust gas treatment equipment
l Shift to alternative substances
l Upgrade and expand collection facilities
l Introduce

Preventing pollution from
chemical substances

1.1%

Promotion of R&D based on
consideration of the
environment (LCA)

Consider evaluation methods; test
mainstay products

l Put

Environmental quantitative evaluations
of products (Green Products)

81%

l Promote

into effect LCA for mainstay products; conduct continuous education for personnel implementing LCA at development departments
the formulation of CO2 calculation standard proposals and the introduction of LCA implementation support software (database)

l Consider

new product registration
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Example of Sustainable Engineering Products
1 Expand sales of the CEL-W- series of white epoxy molding compounds for use in LED packages
The CEL-W series of white epoxy molding compounds manufactured at the Company’s Shimodate Works are used as reflective material in LEDs. The use of LEDs is increasing at a rapid pace because
they have a service life tens of times longer than incandescent lamps,
and energy consumption is a fraction that of incandescent lamps.
Increasing luminance even further remains an outstanding technology issue, but the CEL-W series has been praised for its outstanding
reflective characteristics as well as its high heat and light resistance
(characteristics that deteriorate little even under bright light).

VOICE

Naoyuki Urasaki

Electronic Materials Business Sector,
Advanced Performance Materials Operational Headquarters

■ Sales targets and results
(on the index)
FY

The CEL-W series is the first to be successfully developed in the industry by
using the semiconductor encapsulation technologies cultivated by Hitachi
Chemical over many years. The product series is thermosetting, but thermoplastic materials are generally used in the LED industry, and it took some time
to establish the process without compromising customer molding conditions.
Despite this major change in the process, customers grasped the outstanding
heat and light resistant properties of the product and adopted it. Looking
ahead, we will continue to develop new technologies as a leader in LED packaging materials, and our goal is to establish a firm footing as a provider of LED package standard

2010

2011

2012

2015

Targets

-

100

500

10,000

Results

0

335

-

-

Rate of
achievement
Self-assessment

-

335

-

-

-

4

-

-

1. Results figures for periods after fiscal 2011 are presented with fiscal
2011 objective data as a base of 100. The rate of achievement is calculated
using the amount of deviation from target data with sales as a key performance indicator.
2. Self-assessment is classified into four levels with the rate of achievement
used as a reference. The rate of achievement is set at two points or more.

materials.

2 Promote energy conservation in lithium ion battery anode material baking processes
Reducing CO2 emissions in manufacturing processes directly contributes to reducing impacts on the global environment, and is a key
topic in sustainable engineering. Hitachi Chemical is working diligently to conserve energy and reduce CO2 emissions in carbon baking processes for anode materials in the lithium ion batteries used in
hybrid and electric vehicles, an area in which the Company has enjoyed significant growth in recent years and in which it expects continued expansion in the future. In addition to installing the latest
high-efficiency equipment, the Company will look to optimize the
entire manufacturing process, including maintenance of existing furnaces, in an effort to increase efficiency and reduce CO2 emissions.

VOICE

Yasuhiro Kato

Production Engineering Center,
Manufacturing Operations

■ Reduction target of CO2
emissions and results (on the index)
FY

As a production engineer, I feel that it is my duty to raise the energy efficiency
of equipment, thereby helping to reduce production costs and increase the
competitiveness of products. At the same time, CO2 emissions are reduced,
making it easier to gain support from customers and providing me with a source
of pride when talking to my work with my family. Considerable efforts were
made in negotiating with equipment manufacturers, and in the continuous process of trial and error required to establish optimal firing process parameters. I
am convinced that this resulted in considerable achievements.

2010

2011

2012

2015

Targets

-

99

98

88

Results

100

98

-

-

-

101

-

-

-

3

-

-

Rate of
achievement
Self-assessment

1. Target and results figures for periods after fiscal 2011 are presented with
fiscal 2011 results data as a base of 100. The rate of achievement is calculated
using the amount of deviation from target data with the CO2 unit requirement index (t-CO2/product t) as a key performance indicator.
2. Self-assessment is classified into four levels with the rate of achievement
used as a reference. The rate of achievement is set at two points or more.
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3 Develop disk brake pads that comply with North American regulation for copper alloys
Disk pads are components used in the brakes of cars and motorcycles that stop the vehicles by being inserted on both sides of the
discs that rotate with the vehicles. Although they are extremely
light, disk pads wear down from friction when they are used. Generally, copper is used in disk pads to enhance wear resistance, but
there are concerns that the dissipated copper results in water pollution, and restrictions on copper used in disc pads will come into effect in the United States in 2021. As part of our sustainable engineering efforts, we plan to bring copper-free disc pads to the market
in advance of the regulations coming into effect. Our goal is to halve
copper usage by 2015.

VOICE

Mitsuo Unno

Advanced Functional Materials Sector,
Automotive Products Business Headquarters

■ Product development targets and results
(on the index)
FY

2010

When conducting development, we first made a quantitative assessment of the
decline in the properties of disc pads resulting from a reduction in the amount of
copper used. We decided to use multiple alternative materials in the disc pads
that achieve the level of functionality of copper. As a result, we were able to
develop disc pads with properties that exceed those of earlier products. Customers are very concerned about the restrictions on the use of copper. I believe that
this provides the opportunity not only to increase the use of our products by
existing customers, but also to introduce significant new business opportunities,
including the acquisition of new customers. We are currently conducting tests and assessments of proto-

2011

2012

2015

Targets

-

Less than
Less than
Less than
5% Develop 5% Receive 5% Expand
product
the adoption
products
approval

Results

-

Effectively
achieved targets

-

-

Rate of
achievement
Self-assessment

-

100

-

-

-

2

-

-

1. The rate of achievement for fiscal 2011 is calculated using the amount of
deviation from target data with development period targets as a key performance indicator.
2. Self-assessment is classified into four levels with the rate of achievement
used as a reference. The rate of achievement is set at two points or more.

type products with multiple automobile manufacturers and have received positive reactions.

4 Expand sales of enamel wire insulating varnishes for use in HEV drive motors
Varnish that acts as an enamel wire insulation (liquid insulating material) is used on the coils that are an essential component of motors. Enamel wire insulating varnishes are used extensively in industrial motors and transformers. Hybrid electric vehicle drive motors
require significant energy-saving properties as well as substantial
cost effects. These products have been praised by customers with
regard to both properties.

VOICE

Toshikazu Okawara

Electronic Materials Business Sector,
Advanced Performance Materials Operational Headquarters

■ Sales targets and results
(on the index)
FY

Varnishes must not only exhibit excellent insulating properties, they must
also withstand machining stress when enamel wires are processed into
coils. Efficiency when our direct customers (coil manufacturers) apply varnish to copper wire is also important, and we have made considerable efforts to achieve a good balance between these requirements. We cooperated with coil manufacturers to respond promptly to several issues raised by
automobile manufacturers, and this helped greatly in securing orders.

2010

2011

2012

2015

Targets

-

122

166

333

Results

100

213

-

-

-

175

-

-

-

4

-

-

Rate of
achievement
Self-assessment

1. The rate of achievement for fiscal 2011 is calculated using the amount
of deviation from target data with development period targets as a key
performance indicator.
2. Self-assessment is classified into four levels with the rate of achievement
used as a reference. The rate of achievement is set at two points or more.
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Stakeholders’ Dialogue
Incorporating CSR Concerns within the Group’s Overarching
Management Strategies while Maintaining a Deep Commitment
toward Resolving Society’s Issues
In commemorating the Hitachi Chemical Group’s 50th anniversary, and to boldly embark on the
next five decades that lie ahead, Yoshiki Midorikawa, Co-chairperson of Valdez Society, CSR
adviser, and Michiyo Morisawa,Director at Japan of the United Nations Principles for Responsible Investing Network were invited to participate in a dialogue and exchange of opinions with
executive officers of the Company. (Date: May 28, 2012)

Integrating Business Strategies with CSR
Kan: Under its CSR Medium-term Plan, which covered the
period from 2004 to 2010, the Hitachi Chemical Group continued to put forward annual action plans based on its CSR
Medium-term Roadmap: Stage 1 as well as its CSR Policy.
Utilizing a Plan-Do-Check-Action (PDCA) cycle, the Group
also took steps to promote widespread awareness and understanding toward CSR within the Group, and to build all
appropriate structures and systems. Despite these endeavors,
it soon became evident that a gap had emerged between the
Group’s business and CSR activities, and that efforts to quantify and visualize performance were lacking. In light of these
factors, and in order to evolve into a corporate group that is
competitive throughout the world, Hitachi Chemical positioned the three business, corporate, and individual stances
at the heart of its CSR Medium-term Roadmap: Stage 2,
which commenced in fiscal 2011. In addition, to establishing
detailed action plans that reflect the key themes inherent in

each stance, the Company continues to conduct quantitative
analysis of progress and performance. Furthermore, we have
identified business, organizational and individual reform as
key components of our management policy while promoting
uniform business and CSR strategies.
Midorikawa: Companies that promote integrated business
and CSR strategies are generally well advanced in their environmental development. This alone, however, cannot be accepted as sufficient. While there are indications that ISO26000
is steadily being accepted as the global standard, focusing on
governance and determining the social direction of each company are of equal importance. At the same time, it is vital that
companies not only engage in the appropriate activities, but
also fulfill their information disclosure responsibilities.
Morisawa: Rather than the integration of business strategies
with CSR, positioning CSR within business strategies is perhaps
more accurate. How CSR activities are incorporated within business strategies should therefore be the point of discussions. Fi-
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nancial institutions and corporate pensions are including environmental, social and governance (ESG) information in
processes designed to evaluate corporate performance.
Looking at Hitachi Chemical, the process where the President’s philosophies and thoughts are conveyed throughout
the Group through town meetings is to be highly commended. Together with the Company’s efforts to nurture World
Class Professionals, however, Hitachi Chemical must focus on
adopting a global standard evaluation system that prevents
the outflow of capable staff. In the short term, the promotion of women and local staff to administrative positions,
and in the medium term, the appointment of specific personnel to senior executive positions are key issues for the Group.
These are comprised in “Social” factor in ESG evaluation.
Kan: I have increasingly come to realize that governance and
CSR are equal rails that run along the same track. With respect to the Group’s global personnel evaluation system, we
will enter the implementation phase from fiscal 2012. We
will promote widespread awareness and acceptance based
on progress and performance.

Hitachi Chemical Group’s Core Competencies
Watanabe: The Hitachi Chemical Group’s core competencies
lie in its material, process and evaluation technologies that help
develop products including insulating materials such as varnishes and insulators, original products such as carbon brushes and
industrial laminates and materials that address customers’
needs. Its key business fields encompass the four broad fields of
telecommunications and displays, automobiles and transportation infrastructure, environment and energy and life sciences.
Engaged mainly in B to B activities, the Group’s products are
rarely viewed directly by the end consumer. In this context, we
have adopted the slogan of the world’s unsung hero.
Yoshiki Midorikawa
Co-chairperson of Valdez Society,
CSR adviser
Representative of the Green Consumer
Collegium
As a judge of Environmental Communication Awards which Ministry of the Environment sponsors
Researcher leading in environment, human rights, a labor problem

Midorikawa: Responding to the needs of the professional world
is an extremely difficult task. A clearly defined innovational strategy is essential to maintain a top position over the long term.
Morisawa: Within Hitachi Chemical’s businesses, the environment and energy as well as life sciences fields are in particular projected to experience growth. Investors who focus
on social responsibility including ESG information can therefore be expected to take a strong interest.
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Hitachi Chemical Group’s Innovation
Watanabe: The lifecycles of electronic products are becoming increasingly short. In our materials business domain,
however, prolonged and continuous development is an essential prerequisite. The materials used in liquid crystal displays and touch panels, for example, were developed over a
period of five to 10 years. These types of technologies are
commonly referred to as accumulated know-how. By extension, we will look to garner the trust and confidence of customers in the environment and energy as well as life sciences
fields by leveraging this accumulated know-how.
Michiyo Morisawa
Director at Japan of the United Nations
Principles for Responsible Investing Network
Director at Japan of the Carbon Disclosure Project secretariat
Environmentology doctor of Tokyo University

Morisawa: In the recent past, certain analysts classified research and development entirely as a cost. This stance has
now been abandoned. It is important to promote the yields
to accrue from research and development as well as the processes involved and results. Hitachi Chemical is therefore
strongly recommended to actively showcase the strengths of
its long-term development process and the value of its accumulated know-how.

Promoting Environment and Energy Business
Kan: Hitachi Chemical included publicly listed company ShinKobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd. in its scope of consolidation
as a wholly owned subsidiary. As a Group with 80% of its sales
in the electronics field derived from sources outside of Japan,
the full merits of our decision to convert Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery into a wholly owned subsidiary will only be realized by
taking full advantage of brand strengths. Looking at the storage device field, an area in which Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery
excels, we recognize considerable close links with the material
technologies that Hitachi Chemical considers significant
strengths. Moving forward, we plan to adopt a balanced approach when promoting both the energy creation business,
which includes photovoltaic and wind power generation, and
the energy storage business encompassing storage devices.
Midorikawa: In photovoltaic power generation, Japan will
launch a comprehensive purchasing system for industrial application on July 1, 2012. An easing of the regulations applicable to geothermal power generation has also finally started
to take hold. Taking these and other factors into consideration,
I expect renewable energy will gain wider spread acceptance. In
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order to resolve any associated social issues, it is vital that efforts
by companies to fulfill their corporate social responsibility are
combined with government initiatives and the actions of consumers. In promoting its business endeavors, current conditions
and the easing of regulations can be expected to provide a favorable environment for the Hitachi Chemical Group.
Morisawa: We can visualize a clear picture with respect to the
future of renewable energy. Undeveloped countries that have to
date lacked access to electric power can bear the fruits of systems that combine energy creation initiatives with energy storage proposals. The governments of China and India are taking
drastic measures in this area which augurs well for the future.

Masayuki Kan
Executive Officer
General Manager
CSR Management Sector
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.

Global Human Rights and Labor Practices
Kan: We approach global human rights and labor practices
from two perspectives.
The first is governance. The Hitachi Chemical Group took
steps to formulate its Code of Conduct. The purpose and purport of this Code is conveyed to all Group employees through
compliance training, town meetings and the Global Leadership Forum. In China, we established a regional headquarters
to accommodate practices that are unique to the region.
The next perspective is dialogue. Every effort is made to
commonly share the Group’s corporate philosophy between
senior executive and local managers. Putting in place an open
and fair personnel system is of paramount importance.
Morisawa: Eliminating any gap between local practices and
the perspectives of the Hitachi Chemical Group is vital. For
example, children working or providing assistance may be
commonplace in certain countries and regions. In general
terms, however, this may be viewed as child labor. In this regard, the vigorous exchange of information and close-knit
dialogue with NGOs and local communities is extremely importance. Any new of benefit should be immediately passed
on as a matter of course. The common practice in Japan to
avoid layoffs, for example, is a point of considerable appeal.
Midorikawa: Disparities between full- and part-time employees
as well as discrimination between the sexes remain issues of real
concern. In particular, improvement of recruitment and promotion of female workers are not unimportant. What stance does
Hitachi Chemical adopt and what practices does the Company
have in place?

Kan: As Ms. Morisawa mentioned, building relationships with
NGOs is critical. From an environmental point of view, building
ties is a relatively simple task. When it comes to issues concerning labor and human rights, on the other hand, totally new
relationships become quite hesitant. This is of course an important issue. We must aspire to a global standard framework
even in the fields of labor and human rights if we are to truly
pursue global business development. In addition, and as pointed out by Mr. Midorikawa, how we address the hollowing out
of employment in Japan is fast becoming a critical issue. In this
regard, promoting labor circulation, while placing a priority on
diversity, is bound to become a matter of vital importance. As
a part of the Group’s diversity endeavors, increased weight is
being placed on the employment of women.
We have raised the ratio of female new graduate hires to
around 30% and are increasing the number of women recruited in the middle of their careers. Looking ahead, the
Hitachi Chemical Group will continue to emphasize diversity
while working the foster a corporate culture that allows women to excel and reach their full potential. We are still only in
the very early stages of these efforts. However, two women
have been selected from local ranks and appointed to the position of vice president at overseas Group companies.

Itsuo Watanabe
Executive Officer
General Manager
Marketing & sales Operations
Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.

Global Environmental Management
Kan: The Hitachi Chemical Group is endeavoring to ensure production that imposes a minimal burden on the environment.
Among a host of measures, the Group engages in management that places the utmost importance on visualizing key
performance indicators. These measures are further aimed at
realizing a sustainable society and promoting harmonious
ties with the environment through the Group’s products and
services. In addition, we have identified a proprietary three
stage, A to C, classification system that not only focuses on
the specific impacts to a particular local region, but also the
differences between environmental regulatory requirements
as well as sentiment from country to country. As touched on
in the section on innovation, we pay particular attention to
the global development of production technologies created
in Japan especially in the fields of energy and resource conservation, core competencies of the Hitachi Chemical Group.
Morisawa: About Greenhouse Gas*, enough data are disclosed. Turning to the disclosure of quantitative data, consideration should be given to demands for third-party verifica-
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tion. Another point of contention that is often left neglected
is the Group’s countermeasures with respect to water resources. There are many countries around the world that lack
adequate supplies of water. As a corporate group that consumes substantial volumes of water, it is vital that the Hitachi
Chemical Group engage in all appropriate measures. Overseas companies, for example, have reached the stage to
where a designated manager to ensure proper management
of water resources.
Midorikawa: The Hitachi Chemical Group is to be commended for its application of a PDCA cycle to environmental
management as well as its disclosure methods. However, perceptions toward environmental issues have recently shifted
away from the prevention of global warming more to countermeasures aimed at addressing climate change. The Group
should therefore adjust its stance and take all appropriate
measures. One other point that has already been raised by
Ms. Morisawa is the Group’s approach toward water sustainability. Rather than focus solely on consumption considerations, the Group should adopt a comprehensive stance
across the entire water lifecycle.

Supply Chain Initiatives
Watanabe: The Hitachi Chemical Group engages in supply
chain management guided by its Primary Concepts of the
Purchasing Business formulated in November 2011. Rather
than a set of static concepts, steps are taken to exchange
opinions with suppliers as important partners with an eye to
improvement. In this manner, energies are channeled toward
strengthening collaborative ties. In addition, the Group’s initiatives are supported by briefing sessions and surveys which
again allow feedback to be reflected in ongoing supply chain
management improvements and to enhance quality utilizing
the PDCA cycle.
Kan: The Hitachi Chemical Group operates a risk management system put in place as a platform to control the use of
chemical substances in fiscal 2010. Although details are not
publicly announced, in addition to addressing the concerns
of each country’s rules and regulations as a matter of course,
including for example Europe’s REACH directive, every effort
is made to trace the use of chemical substances used in the
manufacture of products.
Midorikawa: In general terms, the Hitachi Chemical Group
appears to promote a considerable degree of safety and environmental responsiveness in its CSR procurement activities.
Moving forward, key issues of importance are fairness (compliance) as well as human rights and labor. At the same time, it is
important that the Group work beyond simple supply chain
management concerns and place within its field of vision the
entire value chain. It is vital for the Group to consider the shift
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from B to B to B to C operations as well as incorporate into its
thought process every aspect of the business life cycle including
public authorities, NGOs and related agencies.
Morisawa: Just as Mr. Midorikawa has stated, value chain
management will play an increasingly important future role.
Conscious of upstream as well as downstream concerns, the
need to assess business partners from each of the environmental, governance and labor perspectives will gain in significance. At this point, we are seeing the emergence of score
card systems. This does not entail immediately terminating a
transaction. It revolves more around capacity building and
the ability to enhance capabilities and endurance. The score
card is a means to better visualize and grasp what can and
cannot be accomplished. Whether upstream or downstream,
of critical importance is engaging in management after determining the level of significance to the Group’s business.

In Summary
Kan: Today has indeed been both an enlightening and education experience. The question of human rights was of particular importance. Rather than focus solely on individual human rights, the Hitachi Chemical Group has the definitive
need to adopt a global standard for its labor practice and
personnel systems. In turning to supply chain management
concerns, I would also like to incorporate and pursue business partner evaluations that encompass upstream and
downstream considerations as well as the score card initiative. These discussions have provided the basis for clarifying
broad-based policies and viewpoints.
Watanabe: I concur wholeheartedly with Mr. Kan. Furthermore, I would like to pursue the idea of collaborating with
regional consultants and NGOs with respect to global development.

* Greenhouse Gas (GHG) : Gases in the atmosphere that absorb and emit radiation
within the thermal infrared range.
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INTEGRATING BUSINESS STRATEGIES AND CSR

Expand 4 Key Business Fields by Integrating Business Strategies
Management Policies
Business Reform
●
●
●
●

Entail accelerating global expansion
Strengthening new businesses and new products
Expanding environmental and energy businesses
Developing a strategic approach to the middle-range
zone
Organizational Reform

● Organizational reform to adapt to the change of the

market

Telecommunications
& displays

Promotion of
Important Business
by 3 Reforms

Key
Business

● Aggressive promotion of strategic M&As

Human Resource Reform
● Bring up world class professionals
● Putting in place a global human resource evaluation

system

Overview of Fiscal 2011
Business reform and business stance
The business environments of the Hitachi Chemical Group have
been undergoing marked changes, including ongoing globalization, increases in energy consumed by newly emerging countries due to rapid development, and a change in the energy
policy of the Japanese Government following the March 11
nuclear disaster. Under these conditions, Japanese companies
saw a decrease in their profitability due to intensifying competition in the consumer and digital fields of the electronics industry, which had led economic growth. To cope with these changes, the Group has upheld four management policies, namely
“Accelerate global expansion,” “Strengthen new businesses
and new products,” “Expand environmental and energy businesses,” and “Develop a strategic approach to the middle-range
zone,” to carry out reforms in business.
In fiscal 2011, the Group implemented a number of measures, including opening new production bases, increasing its
production capacity, mainly in China and other emerging countries, and reinforcing our existing businesses through M&As. In
addition, as a result of our sales efforts in growing fields, the
Group boosted sales of “FINSET,” an optically clear adhesive
film used as a supporting material for touch panels used in
smartphones and tables PCs. The Group also boosted sales of
the lithium ion battery anode material used in environmentally
friendly vehicles, which have continued to draw attention in recent years.
With regard to our business stance, the Group will continue
promoting sustainable business. To this end, the Group has introduced the sustainable engineering implementation targets,
as KPIs (Key Performance Indicators), into each business division.
With an eye to achieving these targets by fiscal 2015, the Group
also took steps to better visualize the status of implementation.

Automobiles
& transportation
infrastructure

This has enabled the Group to chart progress at a level commensurate with business budgets.

Organizational reform and corporate stance
From an organization reform perspective, Hitachi Chemical undertook to restructure its sales and business divisions in an effort
to further strengthen its sale and marketing capabilities in fiscal
2011. At the same time, the Company entered into strategic
M&As with the aim of bolstering Group management in the
wake of ongoing globalization. In addition to making Shin-Kobe
Electric Machinery Co., Ltd. a wholly owned subsidiary, we also
acquired majority stakes in manufacturing companies in Hong
Kong and Guangdong Province, China, that produce copper-clad
laminates for multilayer PWBs. We also concluded an agreement
to acquire the semiconductor encapsulating material business of
Nitto Denko Corporation.
With respect to Hitachi Chemical’s corporate stance, workshops were held encompassing all Group company employees at
the time of its 50th anniversary. Looking ahead to the next five
decades and building a springboard for the next leap forward,
Hitachi Chemical is endeavoring to foster a culture of dialogue
and communication among employees and management.

Human resource reform and individual stance
In fiscal 2011, Hitachi Chemical placed considerable emphasis
on promoting individual reform. A variety of human resources
education and training programs were held in response to the
growing trend toward world class professionals. Against this
backdrop, the Company began putting in place a global human
resource evaluation system in order to ensure the fair and transparent assessment of the Group’s human resources and to
steadily nurture globally-oriented personnel who will lead the
Group into the next generation.
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and CSR
CSR Medium-term Roadmap:
p Stage
g 2
Business Stance

Environment
& energy

● Promotion of sustainable engineering
● Visualization of the Group’s contribution to the global

community through its business activities
Corporate Stance

Sustainable
Development
of Business
by 3 Stances

Fields

● Fostering a culture of dialogue / Enhancement of

corporate value through active disclosure of information
● Enhanced Group governance
Promotion of transparent corporate management
Individual Stance
● Change in consciousness of all employees towards

Life sciences

sustainable development
● Fostering personnel who will behave in every situation in

ways they can be proud of

From an individual stance perspective, and amid ongoing
overseas development which continues to advance at an increasingly rapid pace, Hitachi Chemical worked diligently to
reinforce its compliance and corporate ethics education and
training activities. This initiative reflects the importance of engaging in behavior, as a member of society, of which an individual can be proud, based on a universal code of corporate
morality that stands the test of any region or business environment. This behavior is underpinned by the Hitachi Chemical
Group Code of Conduct, a set of common rules adopted by
each Group company.

Fiscal 2012 Plans
Business reform and business stance
As part of the reform of its businesses, in fiscal 2012 Hitachi
Chemical is looking to bolster the Group’s capabilities in the
field of environment and energy, and to expand its business in
the areas of lithium ion batteries and the industrial battery business in such growth fields as power storage, new energy and
environmentally friendly vehicles such as hybrids. Turning to solar cells, which continue to attract interest as a renewable energy, Hitachi Chemical will place considerable emphasis on promoting the use of such new products as its CF series of

conductive films, CP series of low-temperature Pb-free paste and
HP series of polyimide-type screen printable paste. Also, the
Group will strategically provide customers with high value-added
materials created using technologies in which the Group is particularly strong to enhance and expand its competitive business
strengths. At the same time, the Group will focus on middlerange zone products that are capable of generating earnings by
improving cost competitiveness while optimizing sales and production bases and increasing sales.

Organizational reform and corporate stance
In fiscal 2012, Hitachi Chemical will redouble its efforts to entrench business structural reforms across the entire Group. By
building a close-knit, cross-sectional collaborative structure
across its organization, Hitachi Chemical is better positioned to
take highly effective action and to generate increased synergy
benefits.
To ensure a uniform and productive corporate stance, Hitachi Chemical will continue to hold town meetings and Groupwide workshops in conjunction with 50th anniversary celebrations. This is intended to further deepen mutual understanding
between employees and management.

Individual reform and individual stance
■ Expansion of Industrial Use Battery Business
/ Synergy with Shin-kobe Electric Machinery Co.,Ltd
Hitachi
Chemical
Co., Ltd.
Material
technology /
Process
technology

Synergy Effects
Production
of the
electrode

Shin-Kobe
Electric Machinery
Co., Ltd.
Assembling
of
the device

Expansion Domain

Battery
control unit

Power
conditioning
system

After
maintenance
service

Flow of the value chain
Establishment of the business system that covered all of value chains

Hitachi Chemical is committed to promoting diversity while continuing to implement wide-ranging measure designed to nurture world class professionals.
From an individual stance perspective, the Company will
implement compliance education and training geared toward
each stage in an employee’s career. Moving forward, considerable weight will be placed on enhancing employee awareness.
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R&D STRATEGY

By integrating and cultivating a wide variety of technologies,
Hitachi Chemical creates outstanding technologies and products
that pave the way to each new era while helping to forge a better society.
Structure of the Group’s R&D

Points of Particular Focus in Fiscal 2011

The Hitachi Chemical Group’s R&D activities are led by the Tsukuba Research Laboratory, which maintains based in the three
locations of Tsukuba, Hitachi, Chikusei in Ibaraki Pref. R&D is
conducted on a comprehensive basis across a wide range of
fields from platform technology development to next-generation product development. Energies are channeled toward
quickly creating new products and businesses.
In fiscal 2012, Hitachi Chemical will take steps to adjust its
allocation of R&D resources in an effort to bolster the Group’s
R&D structure in the environment and energy growth field.
Moreover, emphasis will be placed on collaborating with the
R&D Center of the Energy Devices & System Business Headquarters, which was newly established at the time Shin-Kobe
Electric Machinery Co., Ltd. was converted to a wholly owned
subsidiary. Collaborative ties were also pursued with the Energy
Materials Development Center of Tsukuba Research Laboratory.
Plans are in place to integrate the aforementioned two centers
in the second half of fiscal 2012.
As a part of efforts to strengthen R&D in the life sciences
field, the decision was made to include the Group’s principal
research factory, Hitachi Chemical Research Center. Inc, in the
U.S. under the scope of operations undertaken by Tsukuba Research Laboratory. Working in partnership with the Shanghai
Jiaotong University Hitachi Chemical R&D Center in China,
which is currently engaged in photosensitive material research,
the Hitachi Chemical Group is pursuing R&D activities through
a global R&D structure that is comprised of three bases.
■ Resource distribution of research and development /
The research and development staff of Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.
Life sciences

7％
Material
technology
Telecommunications
& displays

59％

FY

2008

Telecommunications
& displays

24％

24％

Environment
& energy

17％

Material
technology

FY

29％

2012
Environment & energy

40％

Hitachi Chemical is primarily engaged in the research of functional materials drawing on its fundamental material, processing and evaluation technologies. In fiscal 2011, R&D expenses
contracted 3% compared with the previous fiscal year to ¥25.7
billion due to the impact of the Great East Japan Earthquake.
Among a host of achievements, the Hitachi Chemical Group
has brought to the market carbon anode materials that realize
outstanding lithium ion battery charging and recharging efficiency that is ideal for environmentally friendly automobiles;
transparent interlayer charging films that enhance the visibility
of LCDs and alleviate impact shock in touch panels; disk brake
pads for automotive use that minimize noise; high multilayer
wiring boards that successfully improve wiring density rates for
semiconductors; and components for use in powder metallurgy
fuel injection equipment that increase the combustion efficiency
of diesel engines.
In addition to battery materials, the Group will focus on the
research and development of human interface, sustainable energy device and other related materials in fiscal 2012.

Number of Patents Acquired
Hitachi Chemical is actively promoting the acquisition of intellectual property in collaboration with its research and development endeavors with a particular focus on securing patents
with a high degree of exclusivity. In addition, the Company is
placing considerable weight on acquiring overseas rights commensurate with the growing ratio of overseas sales. In this manner, every effort is being placed on enhancing the Group’s international competitiveness. In fiscal 2011, the number of patent
applications in Japan totaled 841, essentially unchanged from
recent trends. Overseas applications, on the other hand, continue to rise, with the total coming to 816 in fiscal 2011. As of
the end of fiscal 2011, the number of patents held in Japan
amounted to 2,205 while the number of patents held overseas
across all countries came to 2,040.

■ Figure of the research and development system
Development of a new technology and the
new product in a medium-and-long term

Tsukuba Research Laboratory

■ Number of patent possession and patent application

Telecommunication Materials
Development Center

Patent possession
in the country

High-performance
Materials Development Center
Energy Materials
Development Center

Patent application
in the country

Patent application
out of the country
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Fundamental Technology
Development Center
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Drafting and promoting medium-and-long term
technical strategy and product strategy
Planning, investigation and introduction promotion of
strategy of the advanced technology

Intellectual Property Office

Drafting and promoting patent strategies
Digging up sturdy inventions

New Business Development
Center

Creation of the new business growth field
Creation of sturdy theme
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1,696
1,461

1,500

Hitachi Chemical Research
Center, Inc.
Technological Innovation
Corporate Office
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Introducing Specific Research and Development (R&D) Themes
Reducing the Amount of Energy Consumed in Carbon
Fiber Production through the Use of Carbon Fiber
Reinforced Plastic (CFRP) Recycling Technology to
Depolymerize Unsaturated Polyester under Ordinary
Pressure
CFRPs made from carbon fibers and other thermosetting resin
materials have in recent years been increasingly adopted by aircraft
and automobile manufacturers. Contributing to lighter weight
and more fuel efficient aircrafts and vehicles, CFRPs are expected
to witness growing demand. The carbon fiber that is used as a
material for CFRPs, however, creates a major energy issue at the
time of production. As a result, recycling technologies that facilitate
to recovery of CF from CFRPs are attracting significant attention.
In 2004, Hitachi Chemical developed a method to depolymerize
unsaturated polyester under ordinary pressure using low-temperature
heat. The method was unique in that it did not require pretreatment
crushing and other processes or energy for pressurization. In recent
developments, the Company has applied this technology to recover
CF from CFRPs reducing the amount of energy required at the time
of new CF production to around one-quarter.
Looking ahead, Hitachi Chemical will continue to promote
environmental conservation activities using this recycling technology.
In addition to advancing the wider spread use of the technology, the
Company will also pursue further advances in R&D with the aim of
putting forward higher quality proposals.

Developed a Transfer-type Transparent Conductive Film
The touch panels incorporated
into smar tphones, tablet
PCs and other touch screen
devices in general use indium
tin oxide (ITO) film deposited
on the glass substrate. This
widely used glass substrate
continues to trigger issues
with respec t to fragilit y,
inflexibility and the tendency
to increase electric wiring Transparent Conductive Transfer Film
resistance with screen size.
At the same time, ITO forming processes make it difficult to
reduce equipment investment and the cost of production. In order
to resolve these issues, Hitachi Chemical developed a transfertype transparent conductive film that merges the silver nanowire
conductive ink of U.S.-based Cambrios Technologies Company
with the Company’s photosensitive dry films for printed wiring
board technologies. This transfer-type transparent conductive film
offers high flexibility and can be transferred and attached not only
to glass substrates, but also plastic substrates as well as materials
with a three-dimensional shape. In addition, this film realizes a
level of compatibility between conductivity and transparency that
equals the level recorded by ITO. Moreover, Hitachi Chemical’s
transfer-type transparent conductive film can be transferred or
attached to substrates without the vacuum process required for
ITO deposition. This helps to shorten customers’ manufacturing
processes while improving productivity.
Moving forward, Hitachi Chemical will place considerable
weight on expanding sales to peripheral touch panel material
markets and to take full advantage of the unique properties of
this product to promote applications across organic EL, electronic
paper, solar cell and other new business fields.

Developed and Brought to Market Environmentally
Compatible Low-melting Vanadate Glasses
The electronic components including quartz
devices and pressure sensors used in a
large number of mobile devices are
sealed airtight or in a vacuum at 400
°C or less using a low-melting glass
that contains lead and fluorine, or
expensive gold-tin solder, in order to
prevent heat degradation. Conventional
low-melting glasses, however, give rise
to a number of issues. In addition to Low-melting
the considerable load imposed on the Vanadate Glasses
environment by lead, fluorine is considered unsuitable for vacuum
sealing due to its volatility. Thus, fluorine offers limited reliability
with respect to moisture resistance and waterproofing. Despite its
recognized use in vacuum sealing, gold-tin solder also gives rise to
other issues including cost. Responding to each of these concerns,
Hitachi Chemical working closely with Hitachi, Ltd. successfully
developed and commercialized environmentally-compatible lowmelting vanadate glasses. Containing no lead or fluorine, this product
offers excellent moisture and water resistance reliability, and can
perform low-temperature airtight sealing at 400 °C or less in any of
the atmosphere, nitrogen, and vacuum environments. In addition,
vanadium, the base material for this product, is made from the
vanadium waste produced at oil refineries or heat power stations,
and can therefore be utilized as a resource. Accordingly, this product
realizes low environmental impact and low cost. Recognized by the
market, this product was awarded by the Hitachi Environmental
Foundation and won the Excellence Award in the 38th Environmental
Award Sponsored by the Nikkan Kogyo Shimbun, Ltd.

Developed Large-scale Synthesis Process and Dispersion
Technique for Extra-fine and Long Carbon Nanotubes
Carbon nanotubes (CNTs) offer
excellent properties including
high flexibility, high electrical
c o n d u c t i v i t y, h i g h h e a t
conductivity and high strength
and is expected to attract
wide interest for application Carbon Nanotube (CNT)
in such fields as the environment and energy as well as electronics.
The technique to synthesize extra-fine, long and other various kinds
of CNTs on a large scale basis and with high purity, however, has
yet to be fully established. At the same time, the quantity obtained
through existing processes remains small. Furthermore, the process
required for purification uses chemicals including strong acids
and has been difficult to put to practical use. In response, Hitachi
Chemical has established a process to continuously synthesize
extra-fine and long CNTs with a high level of purity in collaboration
with the University of Tokyo. The Company has also developed
a dispersion technique reflecting the results of joint research
with Hokkaido University as well as a new dispersion liquid that
decreases the damage to CNTs while delivering high stability.
Expectations are high that the extra-fine and long CNT obtained
from this process can provide additional functions including high
electrical conductivity, high heat conductivity, and high strength
compared with conventional multi-walled CNTs. Application of this
large-scale synthesis process is projected to contribute substantially
to accelerated CNT commercialization.
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GLOBAL EXPANSION OF THE BUSINESS

China
Newly established a production base for carbon anode materials for lithium ion batteries [online]
Hitachi Chemical (Yantai) Co., Ltd.
l Increase production capacity of friction materials for automotive use
[operations scheduled to commence in July 2012]
Foshan J.B. Automotive Products Co., Ltd
l Increased production capacity of powder metal product [online]
Hitachi Powdered Metals (Dongguan) Co., Ltd.
l Increased production capacity of epoxy molding compounds and
photosensitive dry films [online]
Hitachi Chemical (Suzhou) Co., Ltd.
l Newly establish a production base for advanced performance resins and chemical materials
[operations scheduled to commence in January 2013]
Hitachi Chemical (Nantong) Co., Ltd.
l Newly establish a production bases for anisotropic conductive films for displays and conductive films
for solar cells [operations scheduled to commence in April 2013]
Hitachi Chemical (Nantong) Co., Ltd.
l Newly establish a production base for automotive plastic molded products
[operations scheduled to commence in January 2014]
Hitachi Chemical Automotive Products (Zhengzhou) Co., Ltd.
l

Asia
Taiwan
Newly establish a production base for CMP slurry
[operations scheduled to commence in April 2013]
Hitachi Chemical Electronic Materials (Taiwan) Co., Ltd.

l

Hong Kong
India
l

l

Newly establish a joint-venture company to manufacture friction materials
for automotive use [operations scheduled to commence in December 2012]
Allied JB Friction Private. Ltd.
l Increase production capacity of powder metal products
[operations scheduled to commence in April 2013]
Hitachi Chemical India Private. Ltd.

Upgrade and expand copper-clad laminate
production line [operations scheduled to
commence in July 2012]
Hitachi Chemical Electronic Materials (Hong Kong)
Limited

Indonesia
Thailand
l

Newly established a production base for carbon brushes for automotive use [online]
Hitachi Powdered Metals (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
l Increase production capacity of powder metal product
[operations scheduled to commence in July 2013]
Hitachi Powdered Metals (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
l Newly established a production base for automotive lead batteries [online]
Hitachi Storage Battery (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

l

Newly established a production base for powder
metal products [online]
PT. Hitachi Powdered Metals Indonesia

Malaysia
l

Increased production capacity of epoxy molding
compounds [online]
Hitachi Chemical (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd.

Fiscal 2011 Results
Accounting for 42% of total net sales, overseas sales for the fiscal
year under review amounted to ¥200.7 billion, a decrease of 7%
compared with the previous fiscal year. Despite efforts to further
bolster global business development focusing mainly on newly
emerging countries, this year-on-year downturn in both overseas
sales and the share of overseas sales to total net sales is largely
attributable to the drop in automotive component sales including
friction materials as a result of the floods in Thailand and the
impact of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and
most notably appreciation in the value of the yen.
Turning to the Company’s capital investment activities,
Hitachi Chemical adopted an aggressive approach overseas. The
amount of capital investment undertaken outside of Japan totaled ¥14.4 billion, up ¥6.8 billion compared with the previous
fiscal year. This represented around 40% of the Group’s total
capital investment in fiscal 2011. A significant portion of this investment was directed toward the construction of new production facilities overseas as well as extension work aimed at increasing existing capacity. Considerable weight was placed on
businesses that are expected to enjoy growth in the future with
a particular emphasis on newly emerging countries including

China and Thailand where the Company is working diligently to
capture a robust share of overseas demand. In addition, Hitachi
Chemical took steps to strengthen its global product supply
structure to ensure stable of supply. This was particularly relevant
in the wake of the Great East Japan Earthquake.
In order to expand the Group’s business and enhance competitiveness, Hitachi Chemical includes M&As in its growth
strategy to complement capital investment. In fiscal 2011,
Hitachi Chemical acquired two of its suppliers that manufacture
copper-clad laminates for printed wiring boards in Hong Kong
and Guangzhou, China, purchasing additional stock to turn
them into subsidiaries and renaming them Hitachi Chemical
Electronic Materials (Hong Kong) Ltd. and Hitachi Chemical
Electronic Materials (Guangzhou) Ltd. This purchase has bolstered the Group’s supply structure in the printed wiring board
market in China, where strong growth is expected.
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Japan
Japan
l

Increasing production capacity of lithium ion battery
carbon anode materials for in-car use
[operations scheduled to commence in September 2012]
Yamazaki Works, Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd.

Hitachi Chemical adopts a global perspective toward its business development
endeavors. The Group maintains a keen eye on growth markets in which it is
likely to succeed and actively engages in overseas capital investment. Driven by
these efforts, steady growth in its overseas sales ratio is witness. Moreover, as the
Company moves toward local production for local consumption, Hitachi Chemical
is working to establish a Regional Headquarter system.

■ The overseas sales amount ratio
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33%
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■ Sales amount according to the area
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■ Capital expenditures

Overseas
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Increase production capacity of friction materials for
automotive use
[operations scheduled to commence in August 2012]
Hitachi Chemical Mexico, S.A. de C.V.
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■ Regional Headquarter system
Regional Headquarter system
China
Thailand
India

Hitachi Chemical (China) Co., Ltd. manages twelve
manufacturing companies and four sales companies.
Hitachi Chemical (Thailand) Co., Ltd. manages four
manufacturing companies and one sales company.
Hitachi Chemical India Private Limited manages two
manufacturing companies.

Outlook and Plans for Fiscal 2012
Hitachi Chemical will continue with efforts to expand and bolster overseas production bases in fiscal 2012. To this end, the
Company will ramp up its overseas capital investment. On a
year-on-year basis, plans are in place to undertake capital investment totaling ¥22.5 billion overseas. This is an increase of
¥8.1 billion compared with fiscal 2011 and represents around
46% of Hitachi Chemical’s total capital investment plans. Recognizing that economic growth in China remains entrenched an
upward trajectory, and that the automobile sector in such
emerging countries as Thailand and India are forecast to grow,
The Group is establishing new production facilities while boosting production capacity at existing facilities in order to boost its
automobile component business, which includes friction materials and powder metal products. In the semiconductor industry, which is currently underpinned by the increase in demand
for tablet PCs and smartphones, growth is expected in such
countries and regions as China, Taiwan and Southeast Asia. Under these circumstances, the Group is driving up its production
capacity of semiconductor epoxy molding compounds in order
to capture a healthy share of this demand. The Company is also
constructing overseas production bases for slurry for chemical

mechanical planarization (CMP slurry), which to date has been
manufactured solely in Japan. In this manner, Hitachi Chemical
is building a multi-production structure that is designed to ensure stable supply while fueling business growth. In the environment and energy field, a priority business domain for the
Hitachi Chemical Group, plans are in place to construct a facility
and commence production of conductive films for solar cells.
This takes into account projections of an increase in photovoltaic power generation as a renewable energy and efforts to
secure a portion of the growing demand in China, which is fast
becoming the world’s largest supply base.
By promoting each of these measures as a part of collective
endeavors to pursue global business development, overseas
sales are forecasted to surpass the levels recorded in fiscal 2011.
In the future, Hitachi Chemical will focus on capturing demand
in emerging countries including China, which are projected to
drive the world economy forward. To this end, the Company
will undertake aggressive investment with a view to promoting
local production for local consumption and to surge steadfastly
forward toward sustainable Group growth.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Hitachi Chemical Group strives to inspire the highest trust and confidence
by maintaining the highest standards of ethics and business integrity
while complying with broad-based social standards.
Strengthening Corporate Governance
Hitachi Chemical is establishing a sound and highly transparent management system that can quickly respond to changing markets. As part of this initiative, the Company has taken
steps to adopt the “Company with Committee System” in
order to separate executive and supervisory functions. By reinforcing the supervisory functions of the Board of Directors,
the Company intend to realize a management structure that
is highly objective and transparent. In addition, directors and
auditors from Hitachi Chemical are assigned as necessary to
Group companies to conduct management with an eye toward Group unity while enhancing oversight.
The Hitachi Chemical Group is also striving to augment
its compliance structure to ensure its operations conform to
the laws and Articles of Incorporation. The Group periodically conducts internal audits of Hitachi Chemical business
sites and Group companies in order to ensure appropriate
operations based on the relevant laws and regulations.
Furthermore, to secure the credibility of our financial reporting, the Group documents our performance and objectively evaluate the effectiveness of our corporate governance
in financial reporting in accordance with the COSO framework* from the United States and Standards for Management Assessment and Audit concerning Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting in Japan. The Group discloses results within the framework of the Financial Instruments and
Exchange Law. With respect to Group companies including
those of a small scale located overseas, the Group periodically receives operation audits while conducting internal
control monitoring. Particular emphasis is also placed of supporting improvements in control environments.
* COSO Framework: The integrated control framework announced by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in the U.S.; currently, the de facto standard for evaluating internal control.

Directors’ Compensation
Each year, the Compensation Committee sets the policies for
determining compensation paid to directors and executive
officers and monitors various criteria to ensure compensation
is fair and motivating. This process is underpinned by the following two overarching fundamental policies: (1) maintain a
compensation policy that links payment firmly with performance while motivating management to enhance corporate
value not only from a short term, but also a medium- to longterm perspective, and (2) maintain a compensation policy
that raises the competitiveness of overall incentive and ensures that the Company is capable of attracting large numbers of outstanding personnel. The amount of compensation
paid to directors in fiscal 2011 is presented as follows.
■ The Amount of Compensation Paid to Directors in fiscal 2011
Classification
Heading

Directors
(excluding outside
directors)

Amount of Compensation
(millions of Yen)
Monthly Basic
Compensation
Amount of
Performance-based
Compensation Compensation
/ Terminal
by category
Allowance
(millions of Yen)
Reward for Retirement

Executive Outside
Officers Directors

167

531

41

151

457

36

16

74

5

ー

ー

ー

4

15

4

Number of Executive Officer

Notes:
1.Amounts of compensation paid to directors are rounded to the nearest million yen.
2.Compensation paid to directors, who hold the concurrent position of executive officer,
is classified into the portion payable to the individual in his or her capacity as a director
and to the individual in his or her capacity as an executive officer. Amounts are presented as sum totals.
3.Of the Company’s four directors (excluding outside directors) one director holds the
concurrent position of executive officer.

■ Corporate governance structure (As of June 2012)

Shareholders’ Meeting
Board of Directors (7 Directors* including 4 Outside Directors)

Supervision

* 1 of 7 Directors concurrently serve as Executive Officers

Nominating Committee

Compensation Committee

Audit Committee

(5 Directors including 4 Outside Directors)

(3 Directors including 2 Outside Directors)

(3 Directors including 2 Outside Directors)

t%FDJTJPOTPOQSPQPTBMTGPS
election and dismissal of
Directors

Execution

t%FDJTJPOTPODPNQFOTBUJPOPG
Directors and Executive Officers

President and Chief Executive Officer,
Senior Vice President and Executive Officer,
Vice President and Executive Officer
Executive Officer

CSR Management Sector

Auditing Office

t"VEJUPG%JSFDUPSTBOE&YFDVUJWF
0GåDFSTCVTJOFTTPQFSBUJPOTBOE
QSFQBSBUJPOPGBVEJUSFQPSU
t%FDJTJPOTPODBOEJEBUFTGPS
*OEFQFOEFOU"VEJUPST

Executive Officers’Meeting
(An Advisory Body to the Chief Executive Officer)
t$POTJEFSTJTTVFTPGJNQPSUBODFXIJDINBZBGGFDU)JUBDIJ
$IFNJDBMBOEUIF(SPVQ

Ernst & Young
Shinnihon
L.L.C.
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CSR Promotion System

Risk Management

Hitachi Chemical has established the CSR Management Sector to enable it to advance its CSR initiatives from a Companywide perspective. The CSR Management Sector encompasses sections that oversee such areas as Corporate Export
Regulation & Control Dept., CSR Quality Assurance Dept.,
Environment Safety Promotion Dept., Public and Investor Relations, Brand & Advertising, Legal Affairs, Risk Management
and Social Contribution, and promotes cross-sectional CSR
initiatives in accordance with the CSR Medium-term Roadmap: Stage 2.
Effective from January 1, 2011, the Group Environment
and CSR Committee meets four times a year in place of the
single annual meeting of the CSR Committee. In the fiscal
year under review, the Group Environment and CSR Committee met on four occasions as scheduled. The meetings are set
to coincide with the quarterly accounts meeting covering
business performance. Convened by the Company President
and CEO, meetings are attended by executive officers, department heads, and
representatives of
Group companies,
and provide an opportunity for department heads to
report on the status of CSR Medium-term Roadmap
implementation
and achievement.

The Hitachi Chemical Group works diligently to minimize the
risk of any disruption to its ongoing business as a part of efforts to garner the trust of its customers and society. As a
part of these endeavors, the Group has put in place a business continuity plan (BCP) to address such contingencies as a
large-scale earthquake or major pandemic. At the same time,
we conduct simulated training exercises to both heighten
awareness and the level of preparedness.
In putting together its BCP for fiscal 2011, the Group
drew on both the positive and negative aspects of its efforts
to address the Great East Japan Earthquake and the floods in
Thailand to further enhance the content and quality of its
countermeasures against perceived worst case scenarios.
The Group took steps to update “Hitachi Chemical Risk
Management Implementation Guideline” and put forward a
thoroughgoing policy covering daily disaster-prevention activities and initiatives aimed at ensuring a flexible response
toward emergency situations.

The Group Environment and CSR Committee

BCP Training at Hitachi Chemical Yamazaki Works

■ CSR Promotion System

■ Risk Management System

President and CEO

CSR
Management
Sector

President
and CEO

Group Environment and CSR Committee
Objectives The Group Environment and CSR Committee is charged with the
responsibility of adopting a Companywide perspective toward
deliberations concerning basic policies as they relate to
environmental and CSR management including environmental
protection, compliance, occupational safety and health,
procurement as well as export and import management, quality
assurance, risk management, and social contribution. Authorized
by the President and CEO, it is also the duty of the Group
Environment and CSR Committee to ensure that basic policies are
implemented and strictly adhered to by the Group.

(2)Set up the Emergency
Response Headquarters

Committee Hitachi Chemical executive officers, divisional heads, departmental
Members heads, business unit heads, officers overseeing production,

(1) Request establishment
of Emergency Response
Head Quarters

● Headed

by: President and CEO or Executive
Vice President and Executive Officer
● Secretariat: Manager of Risk Management,
CSR Management Sector
● Participation by: Responsible persons from
each division and external experts such as
lawyers

Meetings
Convened Four times a year and as otherwise considered necessary
● Corporate Export Regulation & Control Dept.

Sites
Person in
charge of risk
management

Group
companies
Person in charge
of
risk management

● CSR Quality Assurance Dept.
● Environment Safety Promotion Dept.

Damage
/ Effects

● Corporate Communication Center

Business
departments,
sites,
Group
companies

Hitachi, Ltd.

Emergency Response
Head Quarters

purchasing department managers, departmental managers,
officers overseeing CSR, and representatives of Group companies

CSR
Management
Sector

External specialists
including lawyers,
concerned authorities
and others

〔

Public and Investor Relations / Brand & Advertising /
Sustainability (Compliance, Risk Management,
Information Security, Social Contribution) / Legal Affairs

● Finance Center

Countermeasures

〕

● Global Human Resources and Administration Center

Damage
/ Effects

Counter- Damage
measure / Effects

Crisis
● Natural

disasters

● Fire ● Infectious

diseases

● Terrorism,

etc.

Countermeasure
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Basic Stance Toward Compliance and
Compliance Structure
The Hitachi Chemical Group defines compliance as much
more than merely observing statutory and regulatory requirements. Compliance also entails adhering to and improving the ability to comply with industry standards, corporate ethics, social norms and each individual employee’s
sense of appropriate behavior. In this regard, the Group positions compliance at the heart of its CSR activities.
The Group has formulated the Hitachi Chemical Group
Code of Conduct, which all employees are expected to
strictly observe. This Code of Conduct was established to
ensure a uniform set of standards across all Group companies both in Japan and overseas. Through an e-learning program and periodic roundtable discussions, the Group is taking steps to ensure that all employees are fully aware of the
Code of Conduct and its details. These initiatives also help to
clarify the consequences associated with any breach of the
Code while heightening overall awareness and understanding.
Under its CSR Medium-term Roadmap: Stage 2, which
began in fiscal 2011, the Hitachi Chemical Group refashioned its CSR policy into three major guidelines, focusing on
among other things “individual stance.” From this individual
stance perspective, the Group is placing considerable emphasis on “fostering personnel who will behave in every situation in ways they can be proud of”. At the same time, employees are encouraged to participate in education seminars
and take ownership of their own development and training.
The goal is to ensure that all Group employees have a genuine understanding of compliance on a par with international
standards.
If, however, a breach of statutory requirements should
nevertheless arise, employees are required to promptly report all details to the pre-determined departments involved
and to consult with legal advisors toward an early resolution.
Complementing these efforts, the Group has initiated additional measures to ensure Group-wide compliance. Details
of any breach must be reported at the Executive Officers’
Meeting, and starting in January 2012, information is then
shared by e-mail with all management level Hitachi Chemical
employees, Presidents of Group
companies and the
compliance officers.
Management staffs
are required to discuss with their subordinates ways of
preventing the same
incident from ocRead-through of ”Hitachi Chemical's Standards
of Corporate Conduct”
curring again.

Corporate Ethics Month
The Hitachi Chemical Group designates each October as the
Hitachi Chemical Group Corporate Ethics Month. During this
month, the Group takes steps to provide as many opportunities
as possible for employees to reassess their stance toward compliance. In addition to a message from the president, initiatives
in fiscal 2011 included workshops held by the Group’s legal advisors for employees as well as
management. Moreover, a series
of roundtable discussions provided
the forum for interaction and exchange on the Group’s Code of
Conduct and handbook on the
Antimonopoly Act.
Moreover, to raise employee
awareness of compliance, posters
and slogans were sought among
employees and displayed in offices
Highest prize of Compliance
Poster Award
and cafeterias in fiscal 2011.

Compliance Education, Training and Audit
The Hitachi Chemical Group places considerable weight on education and training to raise employees’ awareness toward compliance. Without exception, new and mid-career recruits undergo training on CSR and human rights. In addition, the Hitachi
Chemical Group CSR Guidebook has been published in Japanese, English and Chinese (both simplified and traditional characters) and distributed to all employees, who are required to
fully comply with the content of the Guidebook.
In fiscal 2011, the CSR Management Sector conducted education and training programs 27 times (23 times in Japan and
four times overseas). The number of participants amounted to
1,288 surpassing the target of 1,000.
Moreover, compliance audits were conducted at two companies and two business sites in Japan as well as at three overseas
companies. In addition to confirming the implementation status
of management systems and education, audits uncover areas for
improvement. The results of each audit are reported to management through the Auditing Office. In fiscal 2012, plans are in
place to systematically conduct audits at two business sites and
two Group companies in Japan and eight overseas companies.
■ Record of compliance training in fiscal year 2011
(CSR Management Sector provided)
New employees
(including new
General
mid-career
employees
employees)
Overall compliance

73[6]

301[3]

Section
manager
and
higher

Total

686[14] 1,060[23]

Harassment

−

14[1]

30[1]

44[2]

Antimonopoly Act

−

22[1]

162[1]

184[2]

Total

73[6]

337[5]

Note: Number of participants. [ ]:Number of training

878[16] 1,288[27]
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Consultation and Whistle-blowing System for
Compliance
The Hitachi Chemical Hotline was established for employees
as a consultation and whistle-blowing system for compliance. Requests for consultation and information are handled
quickly and appropriately while protecting the secrecy of the
report.
Inquiries concerning compliance are accepted by postal
mail, e-mails, through the intranet and by telephone by the
CSR Management Sector and an external hotline services by
legal advisors. In line with the growing globalization of business
activities, the Hitachi Chemical Group established the Global
Hotline in March 2012. Inquiries through this hotline are fielded
in the three languages on Japanese, English and Chinese. Every
effort is made to promote the development of consultation and
whistle-blowing systems for compliance at overseas Group
companies.
In fiscal 2011, the Hotline received 24 calls. There were no
instances of any major breach of statutory requirements.
■ Trends in the number of consultation and whistle-blowing calls
FY

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

Number
of calls

14

20

16

24

24

Compliance with the Antimonopoly Act
If there is even a hint of any potential breach of the Antimonopoly Act with respect to the Group’s dealings with competitors, etc., employees of Group’s is sales and marketing,
business, or technology-related divisions are obliged to record the details in the Compliance Information Record Notebook, and report the matter to their supervisors and to the
relevant departments. The Group also prohibits, in principle,
employees in sales and marketing divisions from attending
industry association meetings. If, however, they are unable
to avoid doing so, they are obliged to obtain permission
from their supervisors and record the details in the Notebook. All records are subject to biannual audits conducted
by the CSR Management Sector. In fiscal 2011, audits were
conducted in May and November 2011. Interviews were
asked with all concerned employees to ascertain the facts
pertaining to all items recorded in the Notebook, confirming
that no violations had occurred.
In July 2011, a legal advisor was invited to conduct Antimonopoly Act workshops for employees responsible for
sales, marketing and business planning. A total of 162 employees participated in these workshops. In addition, the
Group implemented a series of education programs for sales
and marketing staff. Education programs were designed to
meet the needs of employees at various stages in their career. Accordingly, programs were held for employees with
three years’ experience and employees with between five
and seven years’ experience.
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Eliminating any Connection with Anti-social
Forces
The Hitachi Chemical Group has traditionally avoided any
and all contact with anti-social forces. In addition to its policy
of doggedly refusing any request for contact, the Group has
established ethics committees at each of its business sites to
provide for an appropriate management structure. Through
these means, the Group has endeavored to put in place a
framework that would eliminate any connection with antisocial forces. In accordance with the ordinance for eliminating organized crime groups enforced nationwide by all prefectural and city governments in October 2011, the Hitachi
Chemical Group incorporated a clause in its contracts with
customers, suppliers and all other third parties specifically refuting any transactional relationship with anti-social forces.
In this manner, the Group is stepping up its efforts in this
field.

Security and Export Control System
In fulfilling its responsibilities as an organization that actively
develops business overseas, the Hitachi Chemical Group
strictly observes various national and foreign regulations relating to exports in the countries in which it operates in order
to better contribute to the peace and harmony of the international community. In addition, the Group takes steps to
put in place rules and regulations relating to security and export control systems that match the business conditions of
each Group company.
Based on these rules and regulations, decisions are made
whether export approvals are required for specific products
and technologies at design and development departments.
Sales and marketing departments investigate whether there
are any concerns regarding transaction counterparties and
applications while conducting stringent screening processes.
Moreover, the Group conducts periodic audits as well as director and employee education programs.
Each year, priority management issues are identified and
details of the Group’s export management policy announced.
In this manner, continuous efforts are being made to further
raise the level of security and export control.

Committee to Prevent Compliance Issues
Hitachi Chemical launched a committee to prevent compliance issues in fiscal 2010. This committee brings together
participants from all related departments and divisions to discuss measures aimed at eliminating compliance issues. At the
same time, study groups are being implemented for Hitachi
Chemical employees who are under the instruction of the
directors and auditors of related companies. Steps are being
taken to bring forward a variety of proposals, to publicly disclose instances of any statutory violation and to review the
Company’s rules and regulations.
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Ensuring Strict Adherence to Information
Security
In fiscal 2010, Hitachi Chemical updated its Company rules concerning personal information protection and information security to better reflect the concerns of the current era. The Company is also engaging in uniform personal information protection
and information security management. Under the direction of
the President and CEO, and chaired by an executive officer, the
Personal Information Committee has been established to ensure
that information is managed in an appropriate manner. In addition to the implementation of risk management, and efforts to
put in place an effective information security policy, initiatives
are ongoing to ensure continued improvement in the Company’s information management.

Thoroughgoing information security management
Hitachi Chemical has put in place an overarching information
security policy. In accordance with this policy, the Company also
established an information security management system in
2011. This system serves as a management framework to ensure the ongoing improvement of the policy, planning, implementation, evaluation and review functions as they relate to information security which encompasses protection of all
information assets including personal information.
Hitachi Chemical promotes wide-ranging information security measures in an effort to maintain and improve its information security capabilities. In addition to information security audits, the Company implements an e-learning program each year
to better educate Group-wide employees on the intricacies of
information security.
In fiscal 2011, Hitachi Chemical strengthened filtering system
to screen all incoming electronic communications. At the same
time, steps were taken to bolster systems to offset any issues with
respect to external networks. The Company also implemented
renewed e-learning programs to help educate employees.
■ Information Security Management System

●Chairperson

Chief Information Security Officer(CISO)
●Commissioners
Information Security Education Chief
Information Security Chief Auditor
Information Security Directive Auditor
Commissioners nominated by CISO

The Committee deals with Personal
Information Protection and Information
Security in all its relations.
- Risk management
- Deployment of policy
- Implementation of measures
- Planning and promotion of education
- Conduct an audit of the group

Head Office:
CSR Management Sector

Sites
Information Security Officer
Persons responsible
Information
for information security
Asset Managers
Information Security Auditors
Information System Owners
Managerial Agency
Physical Security Manager
Department of Contact for External
Information Security Promotion Division

Hitachi Chemical continues to implement a personal information
protection system (personal information framework mechanism)
that is based on its personal information protection policy, which
incorporates the Company’s philosophy toward personal information protection. At the same time, Hitachi Chemical has initiated an e-learning education program for all employees and periodically conducts audits of the status of operations. Through
these means, the Company is actively working to ensure the protection and appropriate handling of personal information. Moreover, in order to address inquiries regarding personal information
from customers and employees in a timely manner, steps have
been taken to put in place an external liaison section at each
place of business as well as appoint a designated officer responsible for overseeing the security of personal information.

Intellectual Property Strategy
Hitachi Chemical Group regards intellectual property as an important asset of its business strategy, and has established three patent
policies based on the principle of obtaining and actively making
use of valid patents both in Japan and overseas in line with its business strategy. These are: to maintain superiority in products and
technologies, to respond resolutely to infringements of its patent
rights, and to respect the patent rights of other companies. The
Group has formulated in-house regulations and conduct a variety
of activities related to intellectual property on this basis. The Group
also continuously mounts educational activities for its employees
to increase their awareness of intellectual property.
■ Education and Training System

Systematic Training for Engineers
Growth and Development Commensurate with Patent Registration
New recruit
One year’s
experience
with the Company

Two years’
experience
with the Company

President and CEO
Information Security Committee

Personal information protection

Group
Companies

Five years’
experience
with the Company

Lectures to further hone knowledge and skills
(the role of patents in the manufacturing industry)
Lectures on the fundamentals of patents
(basic knowledge on patent application)
Lectures patent search procedures
(skills on prior art searching techniques)
One-day Drafting
(documenting research results for patent specification)
Lectures on patent application
(deep knowledge of patents; handling skills
for the establishment of rights)

Responding resolutely to infringements of its patent rights
In order to maintain superiority in products and technologies, Hitachi
Chemical Group responds resolutely to infringements of its patent
rights by a third party. In fiscal 2011, the Company filed a lawsuit in
the United States District Court against K.C. Tech Co., Ltd., a company based in South Korea asserting the K.C. Tech had infringed
Hitachi Chemical’s patents relating to cerium oxide slurry. The Company also lodged a lawsuit against INNOX Corporation of South Korea with the Court of Taiwan for that company’s infringement of
Hitachi Chemical’s Taiwanese patent related to die bonding film.
Looking ahead, the Hitachi Chemical Group will continue to adopt
a vigorous stance toward the protection of its intellectual property.
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Board of Directors and Executive Officers As of June 21, 2012

Takashi Kawamura

Yoshio Osawa

Takemoto Ohto

Takashi Urano

Keiichi Takeda

Kazuyuki Tanaka

Nobuo Mochida

Directors

Committee Members

Executive Officers

Takashi Kawamura

NOMINATING COMMITTEE

Kazuyuki Tanaka

Hiroki Sashima

Chairman of the Board
(Outside director,
Chairman of the Board,
Hitachi, Ltd. )

Takashi Kawamura
Committee Chairman

Representative Executive Officer,
President and Chief Executive
Officer

Yoshio Osawa

Kazuyoshi Tsunoda

Executive Officer
(Manufacturing, Purchasing,
Production control and logistics,
Oversight of technology
innovation management)

Committee Member

Committee Member

Representative Executive Officer,
Senior Vice President and
Executive Officer
(Automotive parts)

Nobuo Mochida

Shigeru Ito

Yoshio Osawa
Outside Director
(Chairman, Konomi, Inc.)

Takemoto Ohto
Outside Director
(Advisor, Nichirei Corp.)

Takemoto Ohto

Committee Member

Kazuyuki Tanaka
Committee Member

Nobuo Mochida
Outside Director
(Director, Chairman of the Board,
Hitachi Metals, Ltd.
Representative Executive Officer,
Executive Vice President and
Executive Officer, Hitachi, Ltd.)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Keiichi Takeda
Committee Chairman

Yoshio Osawa

Vice President and executive
officer
(Energy devices & system)

Shunichiro Uchimura
Vice President and Executive
Officer
(Innovative technologies, Life
sciences and diagnostics)

Committee Member

Yoshihiro Nomura

Takashi Urano

Takemoto Ohto

Director

Committee Member

Vice President and Executive
Officer
(China business)

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Akira Kaneko

Kazuyuki Tanaka
Committee Chairman

Executive Officer
(Technology innovation
management)

Takashi Kawamura

Masayuki Kan

Keiichi Takeda
Director

Kazuyuki Tanaka
Director
(Executive Officer)

Committee Member

Nobuo Mochida
Committee Member

Executive Officer
(Oversight of CSR, Corporate
export regulation and control,
Quality assurance, Human
resources)

Misao Nakagawa
Executive Officer
(Functional materials, including
materials for printed wiring
boards, Printed wiring boards)

Hisashi Maruyama
Executive Officer
(Corporate communication
including environment & safety
management and internal
control, Finance)

Toshihiko Miyauchi
Executive Officer
(Management strategies,
Group companies)

Masami Yamamori
Executive Officer
(Oversight of functional
materials, including materials for
Printed wiring boards)

Itsuo Watanabe
Executive Officer
(Sales)

31

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Shareholders
and investors

Customers
and
suppliers

Global
environment

Hitachi
Chemical
Group
Governmental
and public
authorities

Employees

The Hitachi Chemical Group is endeavoring to fulfill its economic and social responsibilities toward
all stakeholders in an open and fair manner as a
part of comprehensive efforts to realize a sustainable society. With this as its primary goal, and in
order to become a corporate group that engenders
genuine feelings of trust, the Group is actively promoting dialog and communication with wide-ranging stakeholders.

Society

Major Achievements*

Principal Issues and Objectives

Shareholders
and investors

Work diligently to strengthen its presence
and standing within capital markets while
enhancing its corporate value by actively
engaging in open and timely information
disclosure and promoting communication
with shareholders and investors.

Customers and
suppliers

Develop next-generation technologies
and ensure the stable supply of reliable
products based on strong ties with suppliers

Employees

Respect human rights promote individual
growth and development through education and training, and provide a pleasant and safe workplace environment

Society

Continue to contribute as a Group to local communities, residents, and the international community as a part of efforts
to realize a rich and prosperous society

Governmental
and public
authorities

Adhere strictly to all appropriate statutory
and regulatory requirements and perform
all duties as a good corporate citizen

l

l

Global
environment

Engagement in responsible technological
development and production activities
with environmental protection forming a
cornerstone of our management approach, as part of responsibility to future
generations

Online information disclosure (P.32)
Shareholders’ meetings (P.32)
l Financial results briefings (P.32)
l Overseas institutional investor meetings (P.32)
l
l

Promoting the Material System Solution (P.33)
Enforcement of “Technology Caravan” (P.33)
l Quality Management Skills Competition (P.33)
l Hitachi Chemical Supply Chain CSR Deployment Guidebook (P.34)
l Supply Chain Management (SCM) (P.34)
l
l

Human resource development and training (P.35)
Town Meetings
l Lectures promoting diversity (P.35)
l Expansion of global human resource development programs
(P.36)
l Group-wide OHSAS 18001-compliant operations (P.36)
l
l

Implemented the Green Curtain Project in Japan and overseas (P.37)
l Conducted hands-on chemistry experiment classrooms
for preschool through to university students (P.37-38)
l Donated automatic blood analyzers to help improve medical conditions in areas affected by the disaster (P.38)
l

Thoroughgoing compliance (P.27-28)
Committee to prevent compliance issues (P.28)
l Antitrust violation prevention (P.28)
l Security and export control system (P.28)
l Comprehensive information management (P.29)
l

*Please refer to Hitachi Chemical’s website

Formulation of the Hitachi Chemical Action Guidelines for Environmental
Conservation and Promotion of Environmental Management (P.40)
l Formulation and implementation of Action Guidlines for Environmental
Conservation (P.40)
l Development of Green Products (P.41)
l Enforcement of “Green 21-2015”/ evaluation for environmental activities (P.40)
l Operation and disclosure of environmental accounting system

Web http://www.hitachi-chem.co.jp/english/csr/index.html
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In addition to the fair and timely disclosure of information,
the Hitachi Chemical Group is committed to vigorous communication with shareholders and investors.

Fundamental Policy
Hitachi Chemical engages in the timely and appropriate disclosure of information on its management strategies, financial
condition and other relevant matters to help shareholders and
investors gain a better understanding of the Company and
make an informed assessment. In addition to complying with
all statutory and regulatory requirements as well as the rules
regarding information disclosure applicable to companies publicly listed on the securities exchange, Hitachi Chemical actively
discloses information that it believes may have a material impact on investment decisions. This includes details regarding
the Company’s management and finances as well as non-financial information encompassing the environmental and social aspects of Hitachi Chemical’s business. Information is disclosed though a variety of tools
including the Company’s IR site on
its homepage. Hitachi Chemical also
takes every opportunity to gather
feedback from its shareholders and
investors. This feedback is then reflected in the Company’s management going forward.
Web http://www.hitachi-chem.co.jp/english/ir/index.html

Shareholders’ Meetings
Hitachi Chemical’s shareholders’ meeting is the Company’s final and ultimate decision-making body. As such it is a forum
that Hitachi Chemical employs to communicate with its shareholders. The Company’s 63rd Annual General Meeting of
Shareholder was held at the Keio Plaza Hotel, Shinjuku Word,
Tokyo, on June 21, 2012. The meeting as a whole was vigorous
and lively. Hitachi Chemical fielded numerous questions from
its shareholders and gathered invaluable opinions and comments to meeting proposals as well as a host of other issues.

Financial Results Briefings
In conjunction with each announcement of the Company’s
quarterly financial results, Hitachi Chemical conducts results briefings for securities analysts and institutional investors. Presentation materials used for each
results briefing together
with a summary of the
briefing are posted in
Japanese and English
on the IR site of the
Company’s homepage.
Financial results briefing

Securities Analyst and Institutional Investor Meetings
In response to individual requests for a meeting Hitachi
Chemical actively holds discussions to help securities analysts
and institutional investors gain a better understanding of the
Company and make an informed assessment. In fiscal 2011,
220 discussions were held.
Hitachi Chemical also participates in small meetings for
institutional investors organized by securities analysts. Hitachi
Chemical participated in three such meetings during fiscal
2011.

Overseas Institutional Investor Meetings
Recognizing the diversity of capital markets, Hitachi Chemical consistently adopts a global perspective and engages vigorously in overseas IR activities. Every effort is made to promote direct communication with overseas investors. In fiscal
2011, the Company held meetings in North America and Europe. Lively question and answer sessions were held with
around 10 institutional investors in the North America and
approximately 20 in Europe.

Dividend Policy
Hitachi Chemical determines the amount of profits to be returned to shareholders as well as the level of internal reserves
after taking into consideration a wide range of factors including the Company’s operating environment, performance,
future business development requirements and dividend payout ratio. Internal reserves are allocated to the research and
development of new high value-added products that can be
expected to experience substantial growth, investments designed to invigorate existing businesses and initiatives aimed
at bolstering Hitachi Chemical’s financial position.

Inclusion in Socially Responsible Investment (SRI) Indices
Hitachi Chemical recognizes that fulfilling its corporate social
responsibility (CSR) is essential in gaining the trust and confidence of stakeholders and ensuring continuous sustainable
growth. Taking this unwavering policy stance into consideration, the Company endeavors have continued to attract
positive acclaim. As a result, Hitachi Chemical has been included in such global socially responsible investment (SRI)
indices as the Dow Jones Sustainability Asia Pacific Index, the
FTSE4Good Index Series and MS-SRI for three, nine and six
consecutive years, respectively.
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Customers and
suppliers

Work diligently to ensure the stable supply of products that instill high levels of satisfaction while placing the utmost emphasis
on safety, and strive to build strong ties with customers and business partners at the same time.

Pursuing Customer Satisfaction
Offering a Material System Solution
The Hitachi Chemical Group deploys the Material System Solution (MSS) in its pursuit of customer satisfaction. MSS is a
unique business model for assisting customers in solving problems by integrating its wide-ranging technology and expertise,
including the material, process and evaluation technologies,
which the Group has cultivated over the years.
To implement the MSS, it is essential to grasp the genuine
needs of the customers in their product development and manufacturing processes and maintain a system for swiftly responding to these needs. To this end, the Hitachi Chemical Group
encourages open communication and information exchange
among its marketing and sales, development, material procurement, and manufacturing divisions as well as with customers
and suppliers.

Creating new businesses
The Hitachi Chemical Group continues to promote its new business development project, which is a Group-wide cross-sectional initiative designed to nurture seven new businesses,
launched in October 2010.
In addition, steps are being taken to collectively introduce
the element technologies held by Group companies. In this regard, Technology Caravans aimed at uncovering customers’
manifest and inherent needs were held at 20 sites in Japan and
seven overseas sites.

Technological exchanges
The Hitachi Chemical Group actively engages in technological
exchanges with customers and selected parties outside the
Group. Seeking to promote technological exchange with China, we are making preparations to hold the 5th Hitachi Chemical Shanghai Technology Seminar at the Shanghai Jiaotong
University (Shanghai, China) in November 2012.

Ensuring Quality in the Manufacturing Process
Operations of the quality management system
The Hitachi Chemical Group introduced and operates the Quality
Management System (QMS) to concretely realize its Philosophy of
Quality Assurance Activities. Customer feedback is incorporated
into our operations by maintaining close communication between
our quality assurance and marketing and sales divisions. In our
quality improvement activities, various quality assurance techniques and internal audits are used to identify areas for improvement. Through these actions, we continuously improve the services we provide to customers and prevent the manufacture of

defective products. In addition, the material procurement division
and business sites of Hitachi Chemical as well as domestic and
overseas Group companies quickly communicate collected information on the quality of procured materials to the development
and manufacturing divisions to further improve quality.
To provide basic training in quality management, the Group
has also been conducting the Quality Management Skills Competition once a year for machine operators directly involved in production processes at our business sites. In fiscal 2011, the competition attracted 280 competitors from the manufacturing sites and
selected Group companies.

Providing Safe Products
Enhanced management of chemical substances
In order to minimize the impact of the use and production of
chemical substances on human health and the environment,
the Hitachi Chemical Group constantly enhances and reevaluates its chemical substances management system, in addition to
putting in place a range of safety measures.
In fiscal 2010, we completed steps to put in place the infrastructure for a risk control support system. Utilizing this system,
we built a Group-wide management system encompassing the
manufacture and import of new chemical substances in fiscal
2011. Moreover, we established a chemical substance, products
and materials information database in order to better collate information on the amounts of general chemical substances manufactured, imported and shipped. Thanks to this initiative, it is
now possible to conduct a search of the chemical substances
handled by the Group as a whole. Looking ahead, we will upgrade and expand this database while establishing links with the
regulatory controls on chemical substances with each country as
well as information on hazardous chemical products. Through
these endeavors, we will put in place and manage a labeling
system that complies with safety data sheets and GHS*1.
Working through the Group Environment and CSR Committee, the Hitachi Chemical Group will continue to develop chemical substance management methods and
effective management
systems.
*1 GHS (Globally Harmonized
System of Classification and
Labeling of Chemicals) : A
globally harmonized system
for the classification and provision of information concerning the degree of hazard
of chemical products.

Support system of the risk management
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Providing Stable Supply of Products
The Hitachi Chemical Group is committed to implementing
business continuity management (BCM) in order to ensure
the stable supply of essential products during crisis situations including such natural disasters as earthquakes and
floods and the outbreak of a new influenza virus strain or
other pandemic.
Thanks largely to its BCP, the Hitachi Chemical Group
was able to quickly initiate business restoration activities in
the immediate wake of the Great East Japan Earthquake. In
this manner, successful steps were taken to fulfill the Group’s
responsibilities with respect to the stable supply of products
to its customers.

Quick Response and Prevention of
Product-related Accidents
In order to ascertain and assess the level of customer satisfaction toward products purchased and delivered, Hitachi Chemical conducts ongoing surveys. The results of
each survey are reflected in the development of future applications and used to further enhance product quality.
In the event of a customer complaint, accident or incidence of a defective product, every effort is made to minimize the impact on customers. In this regard, Hitachi
Chemical ensures that all necessary remedial action is immediately taken. This entails not only the smooth delivery
of products, but also steps to prevent a recurrence.
When the Company is confronted by a product accident that has a major impact on society and customers,
the headquarter division responsible for overall quality assurance steps up to ascertain all pertinent details. These
details are commonly shared with all management personnel as well as manufacturing sites. Hitachi Chemical
places considerable emphasis on analyzing both direct
and indirect causes of each incident. Countermeasures
and details of remedial action and guidelines are then
conveyed throughout the entire organization to prevent
incidents of a similar nature.
Working to appropriately manage the status of corrective measures and remedial action as well as the actual
causes of each incident, steps are taken to confirm details
through regular meetings of the heads of quality assurance divisions as well as onsite audits. The Group as a
whole is also notified of the results of any follow-up.
Moreover, Hitachi Chemical holds quality control meetings that are referred to as “gleanings” at each of its
manufacturing sites. These meetings are a forum to deliberate on the causes of each incident, reflect on countermeasure details as well as the efficacy of action taken.
With the general managers of each business division taking the lead, the details of individual incidents are treated
as a lesson for the entire company and used to prevent
any recurrence.
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Building and Maintaining Fair Relationships
with Suppliers
The Hitachi Chemical Group formulated its procurement policy and procurement guidelines as part of efforts to fulfill its
corporate social responsibility with respect to the supply
chain. As one key measure designed to give substance to the
spirit of the policy and guidelines, the Group is endeavoring
to build and maintain fair relationships with suppliers. Amid
the growing importance of sustainable business practices, in
fiscal 2011 the Group published the Hitachi Chemical Supply
Chain CSR Deployment Guidebook as a means to deepen
mutual understanding. Based on the criteria outlined in
Guidebook, the Group implemented a survey on the status of
CSR at 202*2 of its principal suppliers.
*2 Accounting for 90% of total procurement in fiscal 2010.

Hitachi Chemical Group Supply-Chain CSR Development Guidebook

Strengthening Partnerships with Suppliers
The Hitachi Chemical Group is serious about implementing
supply chain management (SCM). To enable us to ensure the
stable supply of products to customers and to consistently
improve quality, we keep abreast of the status of operations
as well as risks at business partners, who supply us with raw
materials, via periodic ISO monitoring and other means. On
this basis, we implement measures including the exchange of
opinions regarding potential improvements and the strengthening of cooperation. We make information available and
promote dialogue via explanatory meetings and our website,
and we also provide support to our business partners in establishing environmental management systems.
Together with our business partners, we conducted the
necessary checks and completed the requirements for primary REACH registration, the EU regulations and restrictions
on chemical substances.
In addition, since fiscal 2010, Hitachi Chemical has invited
some of its suppliers to the Hitachi Partner Day (procurement
policy briefing meeting), organized by the procurement division of Hitachi, Ltd. This initiative is designed to further deepen awareness and understanding to the Hitachi Group’s procurement policy.
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Employees

The Hitachi Chemical Group is convinced that in respecting each
individual, taking into consideration diversity and nurturing a
comfortable workplace environment and culture, the Group is
better placed to secure sustainable business growth and development.

Respect for Human Rights
Sustainable corporate global development requires a deep
respect for human rights and each individual’s personality
among all employees within the Group both in Japan and
overseas working across all business regions. Of equal importance is a workplace environment and corporate culture
that allows workers to freely demonstrate their individuality
and creativity. With this in mind, the Hitachi Chemical Group
strictly complies with all related laws and regulations in Japan and overseas. At the same time, the Group implements
employee education and training that is consistent with the
central labor standards of the ILO*1, which include protecting freedom of association and the right to collective bargaining; prohibiting forced labor; abolishing child labor; and
eliminating discrimination in hiring and employment practices as well as the 10 principles of the United Nations Global Compact*2.
From fiscal 2009 to fiscal 2011, all domestic employees
received education and training on human rights either
through direct lectures or an e-learning program. Aspects
relating to human rights are carefully explained at each CSR
and compliance training session held for management and
newly recruited employees. Training sessions were held on
25 occasions in Japan and overseas during fiscal 2011 and
attended by a total of 534 employees. Of this total, three
overseas Group companies held sessions on four occasions
for management. These sessions were attended by a total of
50 management staff.
In fiscal 2011, as part of its comprehensive CSR program,
the Group conducted surveys to assess the basic policy and
implementation status of training on human rights held by
the Hitachi Chemical Purchasing Dept. for suppliers.
*1 ILO: The International Labour
Organization. This is a United
Nations organ that provides
recommendations and guidance to governments on improving conditions and enhancing social welfare.
*2 Global Compact: The United
Nations Global Compact is a
strategic policy initiative for
businesses that are committed to aligning their operations and strategies in the
areas of human rights, labour, environment and anticorruption.

Promoting Diversity
The Hitachi Chemical Group believes that the promotion of diversity —the creation of a working environment in which many
diverse staff members can thrive—is an important factor in its
ability to contribute to society through its business activities and
continue to grow as a sustainable business entity. Against a
background of ever more rapid globalization, we are also working to secure and to foster human resources who are able to
play vital roles on the international business stage.
In this context, the Group is implementing a variety of actions, such as employing more non-Japanese workers and
women; broadening the range of positions for workers with
disabilities; re-employing retirees; and augmenting the support
system for work-life balance.
In fiscal 2011, we expanded opportunities for dialogue, continuing to implement our mentoring program and holding a
Global Leadership Forum (GLF) and town meetings, in addition
to other initiatives. Furthermore, top executives were invited at
attend as speakers at various diversity lectures. We also opened
a site focusing on diversity on our intranet, which emphasizes,
among other topics, the necessity for the promotion of diversity
and the connection between diversity and our management
strategy.
■ Trends in the number of employees by gender (non-consolidated)
FY

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

Male

3,336

3,545

3,687

3,570

3,568

364

430

408

445

490

Female

■ Ratio of employees with disabilities (%)
FY

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

Consolidated(in Japan)

1.83

2.03

2.01

2.13

1.97

Non-consolidated

2.02

2.14

2.10

2.19

1.93

■ Trends in the number of recruited retirees (non-consolidated)
FY

Recruited retirees

2007

23

2008

41

2009

2010

67

2011

95

134

Outstanding Work by Employees
Enhancing employee capabilities and career development

Human rights class at Hitachi Chemical
(Thailand) Co.,Ltd.

Hitachi Chemical focuses on on-the-job training (OJT) as the
core of its employee training and provides additional programs
to supplement learning that cannot be gained through this type
of training alone, thereby supporting employees in enhancing
their capabilities and skills and encouraging self-development.
In the training programs, in addition to clearly stipulating
within the educational framework the type of training that is
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appropriate for every job level and job category, the Company
also offers self-improvement programs and correspondence
education that employees can voluntarily select. In fiscal 2011,
a total of 409 employees participated in these various programs. In addition, the Hitachi Chemical has introduced an inhouse job posting system, an FA system, and a mentoring program to support our employees in fashioning their own
careers.

employee and both parties share ideas for the employee’s future
growth. In the case of managerial staff, we have established a
target-based monitoring system that reinforces links between
individual roles and duties and business targets. This enables
managers provide evaluations that are credible and convincing
to each individual and that further stimulate employees to take
action towards achieving performance targets.

Developing global human resources

Hitachi Chemical has formulated an action plan to support the
development of the next generation of employees to help strike
a positive balance between work and family. As part of this initiative, we have also established related systems, made them known
to all and are in the process of encouraging their use.
In addition to programs including the provision of three years
of childcare leave cumulatively calculated up to the end of the
child’s first year of elementary school and a system that offers
reduced work hours after returning from childcare leave, able to
be accessed until the child graduates from elementary school,
the Company operates a reemployment program for employees
who have resigned due to childcare or nursing care needs or the
relocation of their spouse, and offer a telecommuting program
to support childcare and nursing care, and a system exempting
employees from late-night work and restricting overtime.
The Company posts the details of these systems on our intranet and also publish guidebooks to ensure that employees are
made fully aware and make effective use of these systems. The
Company is also supporting our employees by establishing “No
Overtime” days and “No Holiday Work” days and establishing
in-house nurseries in our workplaces.

The Hitachi Chemical Group is guided by a vision that espouses
innovative change across the three core business, human resource and organizational fields. Based on this vision, the Company strives diligently to foster world class professionals. The
goal is to develop personnel who will take ownership over their
growth and development, drawing on the Company’s unique
corporate philosophy and culture to hone the necessary strengths
(knowledge and skills) to excel on the world stage through a repetitive process of practical application and reflection.
In fiscal 2011, Hitachi Chemical conducted a GLF in an effort to develop overseas Group company management and
other opportunities. In addition, and to kick off the initiative to
apply English as the Group’s official language, the decision was
made to for Executive Officer Meeting documents to be distributed in English. This measure will begin from fiscal 2012.
■ Global human resource development programs
Initiative

Details

Fiscal 2011 Activity Results
Overseas Group company
management: 19; Executive
officers: 13; Candidates for
management in the next fiscal
period: 10
Eight staff dispatched to Hong
Kong, Thailand, Singapore
and Malaysia

Global Leadership
Forum

Interaction with the
management of overseas Group
companies

Overseas Training
Program

Training via the operations of
overseas Group companies

Program to Dispatch
Younger Employees
to Overseas Group
Companies for a
Short Term

15 staff dispatched to
Training in a foreign language
India, Malaysia,
and education in diverse cultures Thailand,
Indonesia and the U.S.

Study Abroad
Program

MBA training together with
programs for overseas study in
the fields of research, law and
intellectual property

Build a Global Human
Resource Evaluation
System
In-house TOEIC
training

__

Clarify the requirement of global
human resources and establish
evaluation criteria and standards

Plans to implement on a trial
basis in August 2012

Conduct in-house TOEIC tests

Twice

Fair evaluation of human resources
Hitachi Chemical believes fair personnel evaluations is a key for
employees who contribute to the growth of the Company.
Therefore, the Company has introduced three basic policies for
evaluating human resources premised on ensuring a linkage
between reward, capability and achievement: clarify the gaps
between required and actual employee capabilities and skills;
provide opportunities to close this gap and motivate employees
to achieve; and ensure the fair treatment of employee achievement.
For evaluations of regular employees, we use a system that
involves annual one-on-one interviews with supervisors where
the supervisor explains the outcome of the evaluation to the

Promoting Work-life Balance

Promoting Occupational Safety and Health
Implementing OHSAS 18001
Hitachi Chemical obtained OHSAS 18001 certification to increase the effectiveness of preventative measures for occupational disasters. Based on OHSAS 18001, the Company is also
working to reduce the possibility of occupational accidents and
management risks by systematically and effectively reducing
and controlling risks related to the occupational safety and
health of the employees and any other persons present at our
places of business, in addition to continuously improving occupational safety and health management systems.
Group companies are also making continuous improvements to occupational safety and health management systems
and instituting voluntary safety and health initiatives in conformity with OHSAS 18001. Companies also carry out internal audits every year to ensure the conformity and effectiveness of
these systems.
■ Accident frequency rate and severity rate (consolidated)
2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

Frequency rate

0.20

0.41

0.21

0.34

0.25

Severity rate

0.39

0.38

0.01

0.02

0.01

Notes:1. Frequency rate : Number of casualties due to occupational disasters per one million hours of work
2. Severity rate : Work days lost due to work-loss injuries per 1,000 working hours
3. Data is for the calendar year
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Society

The Hitachi Chemical Group has put in place a social contribution
policy and strives to help realize a genuinely rich and prosperous
society as a good corporate citizen.

Promoting Social Contribution Activities
The Hitachi Chemical Group recognizes that social contribution
activities are an ideal opportunity to interact with the local community and that these activities are also beneficial in promoting
employee growth and development. Based on this, the Group
actively promotes such ■ Total amount and breakdown of
social contribution costs in fiscal 2011
activities in accordance
with its Social ContribuOther Local
tions Policy. In addition
Support for 6% community
involvement,
Disasterto ascertaining the costs
Preservation of
Affected Areas
historical
13%
associated with social
landmark &
Education,
traditional
¥89.7
Social
contribution activities,
education
millions culture
13%
33%
the Group is working
Academic
diligently to further enEnvironmental
activities,
protection
Research
hance the quality of ac18%
17%
tivities.

Protection of the Global Environment
Green Curtain Project
The Hitachi Chemical Group has continued to promote the
Green Curtain Project, an initiative that encourages the participation of all employees, since fiscal 2006. Cutting direct sunlight and utilizing the natural transpiration of leaves from curtain-like vines employed to cover the windows and walls of
buildings, this initiative aims to prevent indoor room temperatures from rising.
In fiscal 2011, the Green Curtain Project was conducted at
37 business sites in Japan
as well as such overseas
locations as Malaysia,
Thailand and China. And
a total of 6,400 bitter
gourd seedlings were
also donated to elementary schools in 200 locations. At the same time, Green Curtain at Hitachi Chemical
and as a part of the Automotive Products (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Group’s science education activities, Hitachi
Chemical conducted so
called “Secrecy of the
cool” explaining refreshing effect of green curtains for elementary
school students three
times.
An onsite class in Hitachi City, Ibaraki
Prefecture

Moreover, the Hitachi Chemical Group supports the Green Curtain for Temporary Housing initiative of the NPO Green Curtain Pep
Team (“Midori no Curtain Ouen-dan” in Japanese). The goals of this
initiative are to provide increased comfort and a pleasant living environment to individuals and families living in temporary housing
following the Great East Japan Earthquake and to reduce energy
consumption. In fiscal 2011, Hitachi
Chemical Group employees volunteered
to set up green curtains at temporary
housing facilities in
Nihonmatsu City, Fukushima Prefecture
Volunteer to set up green curtains at temporary
housing facilities in Nihonmatsu City, Fukushima
(Namie-machi).
Prefecture (Namie-machi)

Fostering Human Resources who will Lead in
the Next Generation
Promoting science education support activities
Public concern has recently been rising over the declining interest of children in the sciences. Hitachi Chemical has been
applying its expertise as a chemical company to create activities that make chemistry interesting for children and to develop programs that nurture a child’s inquisitiveness and instill a thirst for learning.
From fiscal 2008, we have held chemistry experiment
events as part of our cooperation in the “I-Love-Chemistry
Club” (“Kagaku Daisuki Club” in Japanese) organized by the
Chemical Society of Japan. In fiscal 2011, we adopted a more
systematic approach putting in place programs geared specifically for preschoolers, preparatory, junior high, senior high
and university students.

Commenced science experiment classes for preschoolers
Hitachi Chemical commenced science experiment classes for preschoolers from fiscal 2011. Kazuhiro Miyamoto, a teacher at Kaisei Junior and Senior High School, was invited to lead four science
experiment classes for
the older-aged children
at the Yahata Mizunotou
Kindergarten in Nakano
Ward, Tokyo. Using everyday and familiar items,
the young children were
able to experience static
Science experiment classes for
electricity first hand supreschoolers
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pervised by Mr. Miyamoto.
From fiscal 2012, we will take
steps to upgrade and expand our
experiment classes and programs.
Serving as instructors, employees
will, for example, offer classes using science textbooks including
Fushigi Hakken! Tameshite Miyou
Kagaku Jikken published specifically for young children under the
supervision of Mr. MIyamoto.

Science textbooks

Chemistry experiment programs that the whole family
can enjoy
In order to communicate the enjoyment of science and chemistry to children, Hitachi Chemical holds chemistry experiment
events in tandem with the Family Workplace Tours conducted
at its workplaces. In fiscal 2011, we held a total of five events
at three workplaces. These events were attended by 278 parents and their children. With the number of participants totaling 160 in fiscal 2009, 198 in fiscal 2010 and now 278 in fiscal
2011, these events are steadily growing in popularity.
In addition to participants who applied through our employee intranet, applied through neighborhood elementary
schools and local community bulletin boards.
Each event was a new experience and included
such themes as “creating
flower patterns on Japanese ricepaper” and
“magical experiments usChemical experiment event
ing grape juice.”
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The Group also publishes site reports.
In addition, every effort is being made to promote the development of safe and pleasant living environments in partnership
with local residents. In fiscal 2011, at the Tokushima Plant of
Hitachi Kasei Polymer Co., Ltd., training sessions were held in
variety of emergency activities including the use of automated
external defibrillators (AEDs). In this manner, the Plant was applied as an emergency station for the town and local residents.
Moreover, an activity was undertaken at Hitachi Chemical
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. to provide rural elementary school students
with clothes, stationery and other useful items donated by employees in fiscal 2011.

Supporting Areas Affected by Disaster through
Ongoing Business Activities
Improving regional medical environments
Hitachi Chemical donated several of its automatic clinical analyzers to the Namie-machi National Health Insurance Tsushima
Clinic and the Southern Tohoku Urabandai Clinic in October
2011. These compact and easy-to-operate blood testing instruments form a part of the Company’s efforts to support disasterstricken areas following the Great East Japan Earthquake, and
to contribute to the activities of health clinics servicing local
residents. Depending on volumes of consumption, we also donate special reagents and consumables used in conjunction with
clinical analyzers on a continuous basis. Prior to the delivery of
instruments, sales personnel called on each clinic to ascertain its
requirements and concerns. As a result of these discussions,
particular emphasis was placed on instrument size and ease-ofuse in selecting the most appropriate model. Looking ahead, we
will continue to channel our energies towards solving social issues through our products and services.

Biodiversity conservation activities
Chemical education support activities for school of
education students
In February 2012, Hitachi Chemical newly initiated chemical
experiment classes for students of the School of Education at
Ibaraki University. This
initiative complemented
tours of our manufacturing sites. Through these
measures, the Company
is providing young students who aspire to become teachers with a
Chemical education support activities for
look into the world of school of education students
corporate activities.

Communicating with Local Communities
The Hitachi Chemical Group regularly holds explanatory meetings at its workplaces for the benefit of local communities.
These meetings serve as a forum to explain the details of its
business activities and CSR initiatives and to gather feedbacks.

Consistent with its biodiversity conservation activities, Hitachi
Chemical began measuring heavy metal concentration levels in
the soil of areas affected by the Great East Japan Earthquake
free of charge from November 2011.
Since the Great East Japan Earthquake and subsequent tsunami in March 2011, concerns surrounding the impact of marine pollution have continued to burden disaster-stricken areas.
Lending its support, Hitachi Chemical has contracted free of
charge to measure the concentration of heavy metals in soils
extracted from the sea beds of Kesennuma Bay, Moune Bay, and
the Moune saline wetlands with “Mori wa Umi no Koibito”, a
non-profit organization that is active in the three fields of environmental education, afforestation, and natural environment
conservation. In specific terms, personnel specializing in a variety of soil and other analyses from the Company’s affiliated
company, Hitachi Chemical Techno Service Co., Ltd., undertook
two separate measurements during fiscal 2011. Results were
announced during lectures conducted at the Japanese Society
of Fisheries Science in March 2012. While taking steps to ensure
the effective use of analyses data, plans are also in place to
conduct four additional measurements during fiscal 2012.
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The Hitachi Chemical Group places the utmost priority on reducing the impact of its operations on the global environment.
The Group engages in a variety of activities to ensure harmonious
co-existence with nature.

Global
environment

Overview of Environmental Impact (Material Balance)
The Hitachi Chemical Group is actively engaged in promoting monozukuri with a low environmental impact. Every emphasis is
placed on realizing a sustainable society that harmonizes with the environment through the supply of environmentally conscious
products and services. We are working to determine our business activity input and output and to reduce environmental impact
at each step of our manufacturing process.

Material Balance

*

[ FY2011 ]

Hitachi Chemical
Group

INPUT
Raw
materials
Total
461,000tons

Chemical
materials

227,000tons

Plastics

79,000tons
138,000tons

Metals

Research
and
Development

OUTPUT
Atmosphere

Electricity

9,361,000GJ

Fuel
Gas

708GWh
338,000GJ
2,308,000GJ
55,000tons

Steam

Material
Procurement

NOx

40,000Nm3

SF6

Components and 17,000tons
products

Energy
Total

SOx

443,000t-CO2
0.05tons
15,000Nm3

CO2

Chemical
substances

Substances subject
236tons
to the PRTR Law
(231tons in Japan)

531tons

VOCs

Water
Total
12,537,000m3

City water

1,183,000m3

Industrial water 5,513,000m3
Groundwater

5,841,000m3

Production

Waste

Waste generated 71,000tons

55,000tons

Waste recycled
Waste to landfill

Packaging
materials

Cardboard

2,800tons

Plastics

2,100tons
800tons
20tons

Paper
Foamed
polystyrene

Transportation

Transportation
energy
(For consignment
transportation)

5,300tons

(12.9tons in Japan)

Physical
Distribution
and Sales

Wastewater

Into public
waters
Into sewage
systems
BOD

525,000GJ

COD

10,385,000m3
1,814,000m3
88tons
162tons

Products 384,000 tons

*Scope of environmental impact data reporting : 20 Companies, 37 sites, Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd., Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd., Hitachi AIC Inc., Hitachi Chemical Electronics Co., Ltd., Hitachi Powdered Metals Co., Ltd.,
Hitachi Kasei Polymer Co., Ltd., Hitachi Chemical Automotive Products Co., Ltd., Japan Brake Industrial Co., Ltd., Namie Japan Brake Co., Ltd., Hitachi Chemical Filtec Inc., Hitachi Chemical Techno Service Co., Ltd., Hitachi Chemical
Industrial Materials Co., Ltd., Hitachi Chemical Coated Sand Co., Ltd., Namie Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd., Hitachi Chemical (Singapore) Pte. Ltd., Hitachi Chemical Co., (Taiwan) Ltd., Hitachi Chemical (Dongguan) Co., Ltd.,
Hitachi Chemical (Johor) Sdn. Bhd., Hitachi Chemical (Suzhou) Co., Ltd., Hitachi Storage Battery (Dongguan) Co., Ltd.
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Promoting Environmental Management
Environmental management policy
The Hitachi Chemical Group places the utmost emphasis on
business activities and the development of products and services that impose a minimal burden on the environment.
Through these means, the Group strives to help realize a sustainable society that is in harmony with the environment.
The Hitachi Chemical Group has positioned harmonious coexistence with the environment as a key priority of management.
Based on the CSR Policy of the Hitachi Chemical Group and the
Hitachi Chemical Action Guidelines for Environmental Conservation, the Group engages in the development of products and
technologies, as well as monozukuri (material procurement, production, use, disposal and transportation) that accurately reflects
the need for global warming prevention, resource recycling and
ecosystem protection. Complementing these endeavors, the
Group seeks to further
Hitachi's Environmental Vision
enhance environmental
awareness and promote
increased communication. Collectively, through
these means, the Hitachi
Chemical Group is working diligently to help realize a sustainable society that is in harmony
with the environment.

Formulating the environmental conservation action plan
The Hitachi Chemical Group engages in activities in accordance with annually formulated environmental conservation
action plan. These plans in turn draw on the CSR Policy of the
Hitachi Chemical Group, the Hitachi Chemical Action Guidelines for Environmental Conservation and the Hitachi group’s
environmental vision. In formulating each year’s environmental conservation action plan, the Hitachi Chemical Group
identifies specific targets across a wide range of areas including the expansion of environmentally compatible products,
the reduction of CO2 emissions, the reduction of generated
waste and the reduction of chemical substance emissions released into the air. Every effort is then made to achieve each
target.
In fiscal 2011, the Group is laying out a new goal in fiscal
2015 on the target of the Environmental Action Plan Stage 3.
Web http://www.hitachi-chem.co.jp/english/csr/environment/plan.html

Implementing environmental audits
Environmental audits are implemented on a voluntary and
regular basis each year at each of Hitachi Chemical Group’s
manufacturing sites. The general manager at Hitachi Chemical’s head office Environmental Safety Promotion Division is
appointed to oversee these audits. Audit teams comprising
members selected from each manufacturing base conduct environmental safety audits. At the same time, audits are conducted at overseas bases on an annual and regular basis.
Environmental management reports published each year
by each manufacturing site as well as all issues identified and
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confirmed locally, the results of environmental safety audits,
which comprise a broad spectrum of categories to be checked
including management structures and systems, compliance
with all relevant environmental legislative requirements and
improvements in environmental performance, are collated in
environmental safety audit report. Based on the results of each
audit, manufacturing sites put in place and implement improvement plans. In this manner, every effort is made to lift the
level and quality of environmental safety activities.

Environmental education
Within the Hitachi Chemical Group, personnel in charge of
environmental issues at each of business site formulate educational materials that reflect the unique aspects of each specific workplace. All employees receive environmental education based on these materials. We provide specialized
education for processes that present a high level of risk from
an environmental perspective, making use of qualified personnel from within the company and instructors from external educational institutions. In addition, we promote the systematic acquisition of legal qualifications.
Moreover, the Hitachi Group provides an e-learning program
that encompasses environmental education. Participation in
these programs currently exceeds 90% of the total workforce.

Utilizing the GREEN21-2015 evaluation system for
environmental activities
As a part of its GREEN21-2015 activities, the Hitachi Chemical
Group has adopted a self-evaluation system, which numerically
evaluates performance. Under this system, each workplace and
company across the Group as a whole assigns itself Green Points
(GP) every fiscal year in relation to its level of realization of activities and targets. This system enables us to objectively and
numerically analyze our strengths and weaknesses, and provides
a measure that allows us to further develop our strong points on
an individual category and ongoing basis.
In fiscal 2011, a review of evaluation categories was undertaken in response to changes in operating conditions both in
Japan and overseas. Building on existing evaluation criteria, the
Group added such new categories as the common sharing of
supply chain environmental information, the development of
environmental experts and ecosystem protection. After undertaking a review of activity levels, every member of the Group is
pushing forward toward further improvement.
Fiscal 2011 was the first year of GREEN21-2015 activity implementation. Against a GP target of 384, the Group achieved a
GP rating of 400. By evaluation category, the Hitachi Chemical
Group failed to reach the GP target of 48 in the three categories
of environmental business, environmental management and supply chain and environmental cooperation with stakeholders.
In fiscal 2012, the Group will systematically promote the collation, evaluation and common sharing of product environment
information while engaging in activities aimed at promoting environmental communication as well as ecosystem protection.
Through these means, we are committed to raising activity levels
in those areas where we were found wanting in fiscal 2011.
Web http://www.hitachi-chem.co.jp/english/csr/environment/green21-2015.html
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Pursuing Customer Satisfaction
Increasing the ratio of Green Products
Led by the Green Product Development Promotion Committee,
in which the development departments of business divisions and
Group companies take a principal role, the Hitachi Chemical
Group has continued to implement Green Product Assessment in
an effort to reduce the environmental impact of its products at
each stage of the product lifecycle. Environmental assessment
factors are classified into eight categories including raw material
procurement, manufacturing, distribution, usage and disposal.
New and existing products are compared on a five-tier basis. Any
product with an evaluation of two or more across the eight categories and an average evaluation over the eight categories of
three or more are registered as Green Products.
In fiscal 2011, the ratio of Green Product sales was 85%,
which surpassed the target of at least 78%. We have set a target
value of over 88% for fiscal 2015, the final year of the Environmental Action Plan: Stage 3, and are continuing to promote
Green Product.
Trends in the Ratio of Green Products (Consolidated)
Achieved the ratio
of sales volume target of
(%)
100

85% (Target: 79% or more)
87

82

83

2008

2009

85

81

80
60
0

2010

2011

2012 Plan

(FY)

Effective Use of Water Resources
The Hitachi Chemical Group is endeavoring to reduce water consumption as well as the overdraft of groundwater by integrating
manufacturing facilities, promoting the recirculated use of cooling water, recovering and reusing process wastewater and relocating water pipes from underground to aboveground as a measure to prevent water leakage. Moreover, the Group is striving to
prevent leakage by monitoring water consumption and taking
such steps as the periodic improvement of wastewater facilities
to reduce losses. In this manner, we are adopting all possible
measures to ensure the effective use of limited water resources.
Water consumption for fiscal 2011 was 4,951,000 m3 on a
Trends in Water Consumption
Non-consolidated

Consolidated

16,000
13,076

12,995

12,000

12,394

12,537

Controlling and reducing chemical substance emissions
into the atmosphere
The Hitachi Chemical Group is working to reduce or eliminate the
use of hazardous chemical substances out of consideration for
people and the environment and in order to ensure their safety.
We are therefore developing alternative products and technologies, strengthening management and control systems, and creating support systems.
We also control the amount of chemical substances used as
well as transferred and discharged. At the same time, we strive to
reduce atmospheric emissions of the 480 substances designated
by the Japan Chemical Industry Association, the 462 Class1 substances covered by the PRTR Law, as well as the 41 volatile organic compounds (VOCs) designated by the Hitachi Group, by
encouraging the use of exhaust gas treatment equipment, upgrading our recovery facilities and shifting to alternative substances.
In fiscal 2011, Hitachi Chemical’s atmospheric emissions of
substances covered by the PRTR Law was 72 tons on a non-consolidated basis and 232 tons on a consolidated basis in Japan.
The Hitachi Chemical Group introduced a new indicator covering the percentage atmospheric VOC emissions , which is calculated by dividing the volume of atmospheric emissions by the
amount of VOCs used, under Environmental Action Plan Stage 3.
The scope of this indicator was also extended to include consolidated overseas Group companies. In fiscal 2011, the rate of VOC
emissions was 1.0% on a consolidated basis, which was well
within the target of 1.5% or less. We have set a target of under
1% for fiscal 2015, the final year of Environmental Action Plan:
Stage 3, and are continuing with efforts to reduce our atmospheric emissions.

(1,000 tons)
2.5
120
103

60

5,537

5,129

5,246

5,225

Volume of VOCs

1.2
30

2008

2009

2010

2011

(FY)

68

62

55

4,951

4,000

2007

(%)
2.5
Ratio of VOC Emissions
into the Atmosphere
2

90

8,000

0

Preventing Pollution from Chemical Substances

The Volume of VOCs Handled, and Ratio of VOC Emissions into the Atmosphere

(1,000 m3)
13,892

non-consolidated basis and 12,537,000 m3 on a consolidated basis. The amount of overdraft of groundwater was 1,830,000 m3
on a non-consolidated basis and 5,841,000 m3 on a consolidated
basis. At the same time, we recirculated 2,825,000 m3 of water
on a non-consolidate basis and 4,513,000 m3 on a consolidated
basis.
In light of future emergency response needs, we intend to
promote effective utilization and water conservation in tune with
regional initiatives.
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Chemical substance risk
To ensure that customers have peace of mind when using the
Group’s products, Hitachi Chemical works to appropriately manage information concerning the chemical substances employed
in its products. Based on our independently formulated regulations concerning the management of chemical substances, we
take steps to reduce and eliminate the use of hazardous chemical substances and improve the environmental conformity of our
products.
In order to promote compliance with regulatory requirements
including the REACH Directive of Europe, we appropriately manage and control the incidence of hazardous substances across
the entire supply chain utilizing platform information systems.

Preventing Global Warming
CO2 emission reduction targets and performance
Under its Environmental Action Plan: Stage 3, the Hitachi Chemical Group has established a new set of targets for the reduction
of CO2 emissions over the period from fiscal 2011 to fiscal 2015.
As a target for the reduction of CO2 emissions in Japan, the
Group has identified 11% in fiscal 2011 compared with levels
recorded in fiscal 1990 and a final target of 15% or more for
fiscal 2015. In addition, reduction targets that include overseas
operations are 6% for fiscal 2011 compared with levels recorded
in fiscal 2005 for CO2 emission per ¥1 million of production value
as specified by the Company and 10% or more for fiscal 2015.
In fiscal 2011, the amount of CO2 emissions in Japan was
127,000 tons (a reduction of 43%) on a non-consolidated basis
and 326,000 tons (a reduction of 26%) on a consolidated basis,
which cleared the target for fiscal 2011. Incorporating overseas
Trends in CO2 Emissions
Target achieved at
(1,000 tons-CO2)

with
the fiscal 1990 level (Japan)
75% compared

Non-consolidated

Consolidated in Japan

Overseas

600
442

374

400
200

148

115 139

71
0

372

350

326

223

1990

2009

117 130

118 127

2010

2011

120

2012 Plan (FY)

Note: The Group uses a CO2 conversion factor in accordance with the Act on the Rational Use
of Energy in Japan, and uses GHG protocol outside of Japan.

Trends in CO2 Emissions per Unit of Sales
Target achieved at

100

The Hitachi Chemical Group is working to reduce the amount of
waste generated and engage with the aim of carrying on monozukuri for the purpose of effectively using the earth’s limited resources. We are promoting improvements in the yield from materials by
switching manufacturing processes and reviewing manufacturing
and other processes, as well as reductions in the losses that occur
during product changeover.
We are also exchanging information on case examples from
these measures in “Waste Committees” formed with manufacturing sites and major Group companies in Japan, and are taking steps
to deploy the measures laterally across organizational lines. Measures at business sites in other countries include efforts to introduce
case examples of our initiatives, exchange views, and share information at the “Overseas Block Environmental Safety Conferences”
held annually in the China and Southeast Asia regions.
The amount of waste in fiscal 2011 was 34,000 tons on a nonconsolidated basis and 71,000 tons on a consolidated basis, while
the per unit of sales reduction was 25% compared with the fiscal
2005 level on a consolidated basis, achieving the reduction target
of reduction to 11%.
The Hitachi Chemical Group has been engaged in a zero emissions initiative at sites in Japan in order to reduce landfill waste. We
achieved zero emissions at all sites in fiscal 2006, and have maintained that level of achievement. In fiscal 2011, our landfill waste
figure on a consolidated basis in Japan was 12.9 tons.
Going forward, we intend to further expand the scope of use
of material flow cost accounting (MFCA) introduced in fiscal 2010
and work closely with our business activities to further reduce the
amount of waste.

Consolidated in Japan

Target Achieved at

Consolidated

(1,000 tons)
100

92

Quantity
75%

80
89

87

80

84

0

78
2011

2009

2010

Basic unit

69%

75%

80%

60

90

(%)
100
80
60

106

85

88

with
63% compared
the fiscal 2005 level

100%

95
92

2005

Reducing the amount of waste

Trends in the Amount of Waste

99

100
90

Reducing the Amount of Waste and Final Disposal

with
the fiscal 2005 level (Global)
87% compared

Non-consolidated
(%)
100

operations, the amount of CO2 emissions was 443,000 tons. This
figure reflects the addition of two new overseas consolidated
subsidiaries. At 13% a reduction of per unit of sales including
overseas operations, Hitachi Chemical achieved its target as 6%
for fiscal 2011.
As we work toward achieving our target for fiscal 2015, we
will continue to engage in steady and determined energy conservation activities. At the same time, we will focus on the development of new products that exhibit low energy consumption while
shifting to more efficiency manufacturing methods.
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SIX-YEAR SUMMARY

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009, 2008 and 2007
Thousands of
U.S. dollars
(except per share data)
(Note 1)

Millions of yen
(except per share data)

2012

2011

2010

2009

2008

2007

2012

For the year:
Net sales

¥ 473,069

¥ 497,452

¥455,287

¥488,638

¥626,929

¥628,805

$5,769,134

Operating income

24,495

43,471

38,341

19,938

60,493

55,750

298,720

Net income

16,427

18,943

23,509

2,740

31,438

32,766

200,329

7,497

7,497

6,664

6,665

6,636

5,806

91,427

Capital expenditures

37,347

30,432

20,984

35,972

37,383

37,661

455,451

Depreciation and amortization

28,240

28,985

31,666

34,560

32,866

28,077

344,390

Research and development expenses

25,680

26,382

25,402

27,617

28,166

27,835

313,171

¥ 440,981

¥ 432,184

¥426,586

¥391,350

¥458,741

¥470,864

$5,377,817

153,742

141,873

143,984

127,762

183,771

202,508

1,874,902

40,856

27,151

24,557

30,806

37,210

39,312

498,244

287,239

290,311

282,602

263,588

274,970

268,356

3,502,915

$ 0.96

Cash dividends

At year-end:
Total assets
Total liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities (Note 2)
Total net assets
(Stockholders’ equity)
Per share data:
Net income (basic)

90.96

¥ 112.88

13.15

¥ 151.60

¥ 158.02

—

—

—

13.15

151.57

157.95

—

36.00

36.00

32.00

32.00

32.00

28.00

0.44

1,359.33

1,320.30

1,289.11

1,203.92

1,251.66

1,175.49

16.58

Operating margin (%)

5.2

8.7

8.4

4.1

9.6

8.9

Return on sales (%)

3.5

3.8

5.2

0.6

5.0

5.2

Return on equity (ROE) (%)

5.9

7.0

9.1

1.1

12.5

14.3

Return on assets (ROA) (%)

3.8

4.4

5.7

0.6

6.8

7.2

64.2

63.6

62.9

64.1

56.6

51.8

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

11.7

13.2

12.7

12.4

13.7

13.6

16,713

15,930

15,267

15,289

15,303

17,502

Net income (diluted)
Cash dividends
Net assets

¥

78.88

¥

¥

Value indicators:

Net worth ratio
(Stockholders’ equity ratio) (%)
Debt/Equity ratio (DER) (times)
Inventory turnover (times)
Number of employees

Notes: 1. U.S. dollar amounts in this annual report are translated from yen, solely for the convenience of the reader, at the rate of ¥82=US$1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing on
the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market as of March 30, 2012.
2. Interest-bearing liabilities include trade notes discounted.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS AND FINANCES

For the Year Ended March 31, 2012

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Sales

An Overview of Economic Trends and Results

For the fiscal year under review, Hitachi Chemical recorded consolidated

In fiscal 2011, the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, difficult socio-polit-

net sales of ¥473,069 million. This was ¥24,383 million, or 4.9%, lower

ical and economic conditions both in Japan and overseas placed consid-

than the previous fiscal year and reflected such factors as the decline in

erable downward pressure on operating results.

production by automobile manufacturers following the earthquake

The global economy effectively stalled throughout the fiscal year
under review. Despite a pickup in both personal and capital investment

disaster of March 2011, sluggish conditions in the markets for semiconductors and LCD, and appreciation in the value of the yen.

activity in the U.S. prompting a modest upward trend, stagnant condi-

Turning to results by individual business segment, sales of Functional

tions were mainly the result of financial issues in Greece, which triggered

Materials contracted ¥11,573 million, or 4.6%, year on year to ¥240,411

a debt crisis that has spread to most European countries.

million. On a positive note, results were buoyed by an increase in sales of

In addition, newly emerging countries including China and India,

carbon anode materials for lithium ion batteries on the back of continued

which are expected to drive the global economy forward, witnessed a

keen interest in environmentally friendly automobiles and the continued

slowing down in their growth rates owing to weak exports reflecting the

surge in smart phones and tablet PCs. Moreover, sales of FINESET (optical

aforementioned slump in European economic activity. Taking these

clear adhesive film) for use in tough panels represented mainly by smart-

factors into consideration, the global economy lacked overall strength.

phones and tablet PCs increased and provided a beneficial effect.

On the domestic front, corporate-sector production activity steadily

Despite these favorable trends, particularly during the first half of the

recovered from the considerable impacts of the Great East Japan Earth-

fiscal year under review, the overall downturn in segment results was

quake. Despite this positive turnaround, the Japanese economy again

largely attributable to the drop in products including epoxy molding

stalled due mainly to sharp appreciation in the value of the yen and a

compounds used in the back-end processes of semiconductor manufac-

slowdown in the pace of export activity from the second half. In overall

turing as well as die bonding materials reflecting the sluggish semicon-

terms, the future became shrouded in a cloud of uncertainty.

ductor market. In the LCD fields, weak demand for LCD TVs and PCs

Under these circumstances, the Hitachi Chemical Group worked

pushed down sales of anisotropic conductive films and adhesive films.

diligently to bring about a swift restoration of certain facilities damaged

In the Advanced Components and Systems segment, sales totaled

by the earthquake disaster in Japan and the floods in Thailand. Every

¥232,658 million. This was ¥12,810 million, or 5.2%, lower than the

effort was made to rebuild bases in Japan and to strengthen overseas

previous fiscal year. In the fiscal year under review, sales of interior and

manufacturing bases with the aim of ensuring stable product supply.

exterior plastic molded products as well as powder metal products

As the Hitachi Chemical Group moves forward in securing the resto-

declined compared with the previous fiscal year. This mirrored the drop in

ration and reconstruction of its operations following the earthquake and

the operating rate of automobile manufacturers resulting from the earth-

other disasters, considerable emphasis will be placed on establishing a

quake in Japan and the flooding in Thailand. Sales of friction materials

new growth trajectory. To this end , the Group will strengthen existing

contracted year on year due to the suspension of production at a local

businesses that offer the potential for further growth and ensure produc-

Thai manufacturing site. Efforts to progressively shift production to alter-

tion volumes commensurate with an appropriate level of profits. In

native sites were also insufficient to offset the suspension of operations

addition to the ongoing development of high-value-added products and

in the precautionary zone established as a result of incidents at the

efforts to expand overseas businesses, the Hitachi Chemical Group is

Fukushima Dai-ichi Nuclear Power Station. Capacitors also performed

implementing organizational reforms in an effort to promote increased

poorly due in part to the reduction in subsidies for photovoltaic solar

management efficiency on a consolidated basis and the reduction of
fixed and operating costs.
In specific terms, and reflecting the results of its endeavors, Hitachi
Chemical implemented a tender offer to acquire shares of Shin-Kobe
Electric Machinery Co., Ltd. in December 2011. The company was then

Net Sales
Billions of yen
800

included in Hitachi Chemical’s scope of consolidation as a wholly owned
subsidiary. Moreover, through the acquisition of shares in November
2011, Mica-Ava (Far East) Industrial Limited and Mica-AVA (Guangzhou)
Material Company Ltd., companies that manufacture copper-clad

628.8

626.9

600

laminated for printed wiring boards, were included in the Company’s

497.5

488.6

scope of consolidation as subsidiaries.

455.3

473.1

By implementing each of the aforementioned initiatives, the Hitachi
Chemical Group channeled its energies toward both stabilizing and

400

expanding its business. Despite these endeavors, the Group’s performance was significantly affected by a variety of factors including a
slowdown in the rates of growth in each of the semiconductor and

200

LCD-related markets as well as a series of natural disasters. As a result,
net sales, operating income and net income for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2012 fell below the levels recorded in the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2011.

0
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system in Europe. As a measure of continued demand growth for

Other Income (Expenses)

environmentally friendly automobiles equipped with such features as

In the fiscal year under review, net other income amounted to ¥5,577

idling-stop systems, sales of batteries improved.

million, a positive turnaround of ¥14,031 million from net other expenses

Overseas sales amounted to ¥200,714 million, representing a year-

of ¥8,454 million in fiscal 2010.

on-year decrease of ¥15,386 million, or 7.1%. The drop in sales was

Other expenses were again wide ranging and included losses attrib-

most prominent in Asia. Overseas sales accounted for 42.4% of total net

utable to the Great East Japan Earthquake and floods in Thailand.

sales. This was a 1.0 percentage point decline compared with the previous

Buffeted by incidents at the Fukushima Dai-ichi Nuclear Power Station,

fiscal year.

the Company was forced to suspend operations in the Namie area, which
was designated a precautionary zone. On a consolidated basis, the Group

Cost of Sales and Selling, General and Administrative
Expenses

accordingly recorded losses owing to the relocation of the facilities of

Cost of sales decreased ¥4,231 million, or 1.1%, compared with the

well as losses attributable to fixed costs for the period that operations

previous fiscal year to ¥368,983 million largely reflecting the downturn

were suspended owing to the earthquake disaster including incidents at

in net sales as well as the sharp increase in raw material costs. Despite

the Fukushima Dai-ichi Nuclear Power Station as well as the floods in

efforts to reduce costs, the cost of sales ratio to total net sales climbed

Thailand.

Namie Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Namie Japan Brake Co., Ltd. as

3.0 percentage points from 75.0% in fiscal to 2010 to 78.0%.

Boosting other income even further, the Company received insurance

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses totaled ¥79,591

payments in connection with the assets damaged as a result of the earth-

million, ¥1,176 million, or 1.5%, lower than the previous fiscal year.

quake disaster. In addition, Hitachi Chemical received compensation for

SG&A expenses as a ratio to total net sales rose 0.6 of a percentage point

lost profits attributable to incidents at the Fukushima Dai-ichi Nuclear

year on year to 16.8%.

Power Station from the Tokyo Electric Power Company, Incorporated.

Operating Income

Net Income

Taking into account the aforementioned factors, operating income fell

Mirroring the downturn in revenues and earnings, income taxes declined

¥18,976 million, or 43.7%, compared with the previous fiscal year to

¥2,217 million, or 15.9%, compared with the previous fiscal year to

¥24,495 million. This also largely reflected the impacts of fluctuations in

¥11,769 million. Minority interest in income also contracted ¥212 million

foreign currency exchange rates and most notably appreciation in the

year on year to ¥1,876 million.

value of the yen as well as the sharp rise in raw material costs. In similar

Accounting for all of the aforementioned factors, net income for the

fashion, the operating income margin deteriorated 3.5 percentage points

fiscal year under review amounted to ¥16,427 million, down ¥2,516

from 8.7% in fiscal 2010 to 5.2%

million, or 13.3%, compared with the previous fiscal year. As a ratio of

In the Functional Materials segment, operating income declined ¥11,071

net sales, this represented a decline of 0.3 of a percentage point to

million, or 35.6%, year on year to ¥20,004 million. The operating income

3.5%. Return on equity (ROE) also contracted 1.1 percentage points to

margin in this segment decreased 4.0 percentage points to 8.3%. In the

5.9% while return on assets (ROA) decreased 0.6 of a percentage point

Advanced Components and Systems segment, operating income contracted

to 3.8%. Net income per share (basic) fell from ¥90.96 in the previous

¥7,876 million, or 63.6%, to ¥4,511 million. The operating income margin in

fiscal year to ¥78.88 in the fiscal year under review.

this segment was 1.9%, down 3.1 percentage points.

Operating Income /
Percentage of Net Sales

Return on Equity (ROE) /
Return on Assets (ROA)

Net Income /
Net Income per Share (Basic)
%
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FINANCIAL CONDITION

Liabilities

Cash Flows

Total liabilities amounted to ¥153,742 million, up ¥11,869 million

Cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2012 stood at ¥76,318

compared with the end of the previous fiscal year. The principal movement

million. This was ¥20,457 million lower than the end of the previous

was total fixed liabilities, which rose ¥11,098 million, and primarily was

fiscal year.

the result of the issuance of debentures.

Net cash provided by operating activities contracted ¥1,943 million
year on year to ¥42,072 million. This contraction was mainly attributable

Net Assets

to the decline in income before income taxes and minority interests.

Net assets came to ¥287,239 million, a decrease of ¥3,072 million year

Net cash used in investing activities amounted to ¥67,202 million, up

on year. This largely reflected the drop in minority interests of ¥11,196

¥31,454 million year on year. This largely reflected purchases of subsid-

million, following the acquisition of additional subsidiary company

iaries’ and affiliated companies’ stock and investments in securities.

shares, which offset the upswing in retained earnings of ¥8,903 million.

Net cash provided by financing activities was ¥4,611 million in fiscal
million in the previous fiscal year. Major cash inflow was proceeds from

Capital Expenditure, Research and Development
Expenses

issuance of debentures.

In addition to operating activities, capital expenditure totaled ¥37,347

2011 compared with net cash used in financing activities of ¥6,823

million, an increase of ¥6,915 million compared with the previous fiscal

Cash Flows

year. This largely reflected the Company’s aggressive approach toward

Years ended March 31, Billions of yen

2012

2011

2010

overseas investment in order to capture robust overseas demand mainly

Cash flows from operating activities

¥ 42.1

¥ 44.0

¥ 56.5

in developing countries. Overseas capital expenditures in fiscal 2011

Cash flows from investing activities

△67.2

△35.7

△20.0

Cash flows from financing activities

4.6

△6.8

△12.6

76.3

96.8

97.6

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

amounted to 39% of the Company’s total capital expenditures. This was
a significant increase from the 25% in the previous fiscal year.
R&D expenses in the fiscal year under review were ¥25,680 million,
a decrease of ¥702 million, or 2.7%, compared with the previous fiscal
year. This represented 5.4% of total net sales, up 0.1 of a percentage

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets

point year on year.

Assets
Total assets stood at ¥440,981 million as of March 31, 2012, an increase
of ¥8,797 million compared with the previous fiscal year-end. While
current assets contracted ¥21,651 million year on year due mainly to the
drop in deposits to related companies, total fixed assets climbed ¥30,448
million largely reflecting increases in property, plant and equipment as
well as intangible assets.

Research and Development
Expenses / Percentage
of Net Sales

Capital Expenditures/
Depreciation and Amortization

Total Assets
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Moving forward, the Company is projecting net sales of ¥510,000

BASIC POLICY ON THE APPROPRIATION OF EARNINGS
DIVIDENDS FOR THE CURRENT FISCAL YEAR

million in the fiscal year ending March 31 2013, an increase of 7.8% year

Hitachi Chemical takes into consideration wide-ranging factors including

on year. From a profit perspective, operating income is forecast to rise

its operating environment, performance, future business prospects, and

47.0% to ¥36,000 million with net income climbing 30.9% compared

payout ratio in allocating earnings to shareholders and maintaining

with the fiscal year under review to ¥21,500 million.

internal capital reserves. The Company utilizes internal capital reserves to
develop high-value added products, promote the activation of existing
businesses and to effectively build on its robust financial platform.
Turning to cash dividends for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012,
Hitachi Chemical paid a period-end cash dividend of ¥18 per share.
Coupled with the interim cash dividend of ¥18 per share, this resulted in
an annual cash dividend to ¥36 per share, unchanged from the previous
fiscal year. Looking ahead, to fiscal 2012, the fiscal year ending March
31, 2013, Hitachi Chemical plans to pay an annual cash dividend of ¥36
per share, comprising an interim cash dividend of ¥18 per share and a
period-end cash dividend of ¥18 per share.
OUTLOOK AND FORECASTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDING
MARCH 31, 2013
Looking ahead, the U.S. economy offers limited comfort with its recovery
lacking in overall strength. There are also concerns that the persistent
debt crisis in Europe will continue to have a negative impact on the
economies of emerging countries. On the domestic front, the Japanese
economy is expected to remain precarious, marked by the sluggish
increase in exports, rising crude oil prices, electric power shortages, and
resultant decline in corporate-sector earnings.
Against this backdrop and a future economic environment that
remains shrouded in uncertainty, the Hitachi Chemical Group will implement measures that preempt any future change, expand its business
scale in global markets and improve earnings capabilities with the aim of
building a strong operating platform that is capable of taking the next
leap forward.

Total Net Assets (Stockholders’ Equity) /
Net Worth Ratio
(Stockholders’ Equity Ratio)

Interest-bearing Liabilities/
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BUSINESS AND OTHER RISKS

(5) Public Regulations

Hitachi Chemical operates globally in a diverse range of fields, using

Hitachi Chemical’s business activities are subject to various regulations

sophisticated, specialized technologies. For this reason, a variety of

in the countries in which it operates. The regulations include legal

factors may materially impact Group operations. These major business

obligations related to foreign investment, trade, competition, intellec-

and other risks are described below. Statements concerning the future

tual properties, taxes, exchange rates, the environment, and recycling.

represent the judgment of Hitachi Chemical as of March 31, 2012.

Significant changes to these regulations could restrict operations,
increase costs, and exert a material impact on Group performance.

(1) Exchange Rate Fluctuations
Hitachi Chemical holds assets and liabilities from overseas operations

(6) Financial Risk

that are affected by fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Due to

Hitachi Chemical holds equities and other marketable securities. A

product exports and raw material imports usually denominated in U.S.

decrease in the value of these marketable securities may exert a material

dollars, and at times in other local currencies, exchange rate fluctua-

impact on the financial position and performance of the Group. In

tions may exert a material impact on the performance of the Group.

addition, long-term procurement of funds from capital markets exposes

The appreciation of the yen against the U.S. dollar and other currencies

the Group to risk associated with interest rate fluctuations and credit.

may exert a material impact on earnings by weakening the competitiveness of products exported to overseas markets. The Group pursues

(7) Retirement Benefit Obligations

measures to attenuate the risk from exchange rate fluctuations, but

Hitachi Chemical bears considerable retirement benefit expense obliga-

cannot guarantee that exchange rate fluctuations will not affect perfor-

tions that are computed using actuarial calculations. These appraisals

mance.

involve important assumptions about conditions for estimating the fair
value of pension assets including mortality rates, decrement rates,

(2) Major Raw Material Price Fluctuations

retirement rates, salary changes, discount rates, and expected rates of

Many of Hitachi Chemical’s products use petrochemical products as

return on pension assets. In making these assumptions, the Group

raw materials. The purchase prices of petrochemical products are

must take into account numerous factors including personnel condi-

susceptible to fluctuations in crude oil prices. In addition, fluctuations

tions, current market conditions, and future interest rate trends.

in the markets for other raw materials and export regulations in

Although the Group makes reasonable assumptions about conditions

producing countries may increase procurement costs or make it diffi-

based on key factors, it cannot guarantee that projections will agree

cult to procure the necessary quantities. These factors may exert a

with actual results. Lower discount rates lead to an increase in actuarial

material impact on Group performance.

retirement benefit obligations. An increase or decrease in retirement
benefit obligations may influence the actuarial difference amortized

(3) Acquisitions, Joint Ventures, and Strategic Alliances

over the period of employment. Accordingly, changes in conditions

Hitachi Chemical may acquire outside companies, establish joint ventures,

may exert a material impact on the financial position and performance

and implement strategic alliances in order to develop new technologies

of the Group.

and products, and raise competitiveness. These complex initiatives
involve integration of businesses, technologies, products, and personnel

(8) Relationship with the Parent Company

that requires time and expense. Failure to implement these initiatives as

As of March 31, 2012, Hitachi, Ltd., the parent company of Hitachi

planned may exert a material impact on Group operations. The success

Chemical Co., Ltd., holds 51.2 percent of the Company’s total number

of these business alliances is determined in part by factors beyond the

of shares issued and 51.4 percent of the total number of shares with

Group’s control including alliance partner decisions and capabilities,

voting rights (exclusive of indirect shareholdings). Hitachi, Ltd.

and market trends. Implementation of these initiatives may cause the

oversees numerous associated companies, and engages in a wide

Group to incur acquisition-related expenses including expenses for

variety of operations covering the manufacture, sale, and service of

integration and restructuring of acquired businesses. In addition, the

products in five groups: Information & Telecommunication Systems,

Group cannot guarantee that it will succeed in integrating acquired

Infrastructure Systems, Power Systems, Construction Machinery and

businesses or that its initiatives will achieve all or part of initial objec-

High Functional Materials & Components. Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. is

tives.

part of the Hitachi Group’s High Functional Materials & Components, and
two of its seven Directors serve concurrently as Director or Execu-

(4) Potential Risks in Overseas Activities

tive Officer of Hitachi, Ltd. (as of June 21, 2012). The close relations

Hitachi Chemical produces and sells products in Japan, countries in

between Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and its parent company in

Asia, the United States, and in other regions. Exposure to political and

areas including technical and personnel cooperation and product

social risks in these overseas markets may exert a material impact on

supply may lead to situations in which Hitachi Group developments

the financial position and performance of the Group.

exert a material impact on the management strategy and other
policies of Hitachi Chemical.
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Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
As of March 31, 2012 and 2011
Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Millions of yen

Assets

2012

2011

2012

¥ 37,703

¥ 39,984

$ 459,793

38,698

56,911

471,927

Current assets:
Cash and deposits (Notes 3 and 21)
Deposits to related companies (Notes 3, 21 and 25)
Trade receivables (Note 3):
Notes

10,150

11,576

123,781

Accounts

96,976

95,363

1,182,634

107,126

106,939

1,306,415

Short-term investments in securities (Notes 3 and 4)
Inventories (Note 5)
Other current assets (Note 6)
Less allowance for doubtful receivables
Total current assets

Property, plant and equipment, at cost (Note 7):
Less accumulated depreciation
Net property, plant and equipment (Note 8)

1,897

5,691

23,134

42,519

38,583

518,524

22,195

24,601

270,671

△1,639

△2,559

△19,988

248,499

270,150

3,030,476

544,784

525,067

6,643,707

△413,489

△404,554

△5,042,549

131,295

120,513

1,601,158

24,683

1,629

301,012

5,022

4,930

61,244

29,705

6,559

362,256

78,378

Intangible assets
Goodwill
Other intangible assets
Total intangible assets

Investments and other assets:
Investments in affiliated companies under the equity method

6,427

5,544

Investments in securities (Notes 3 and 4)

7,746

11,731

94,463

18,008

18,501

219,610

Other assets (Notes 6 and 9)
Less allowance for doubtful accounts
Total investments and other assets
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

△699

△814

△8,524

31,482

34,962

383,927

¥440,981

¥432,184

$5,377,817
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Millions of yen

Liabilities and Net Assets

2012

2011

2012

¥ 15,931

¥ 12,895

Current liabilities:
Short-term debt (Notes 3 and 8)

$ 194,280

Trade payables (Note 3):
Notes
Accounts
Accrued expenses
Accrued income taxes
Provision for loss on disaster
Other current liabilities

63

58

768

50,304

52,683

613,464

50,367

52,741

614,232

19,080

20,622

232,683

5,204

6,525

63,463

12

2,461

146

18,820

13,399

229,513

Total current liabilities

109,414

108,643

1,334,317

Long-term debt (Notes 3 and 8)

24,739

14,031

301,695

Retirement and severance benefits (Note 9)

16,544

16,044

201,756

3,045

3,155

37,134

153,742

141,873

1,874,902

188,463

Other liabilities (Notes 6 and 10)
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 14)
Net Assets:
Stockholders’ equity
Common stock (Note 12)
Authorized-800,000,000 shares;
Issued-208,364,913 shares in 2012 and
208,364,913 shares in 2011 (Note 11)
Capital surplus (Note 12)
Retained earnings (Note 12)

15,454

15,454

36,113

36,113

440,402

248,325

239,422

3,028,354

Treasury stock, at cost,
115,612 shares in 2012 and 113,682 shares in 2011(Note 13)
Total stockholders’ equity

△191

△188

△2,329

299,701

290,801

3,654,890

732

1,553

8,927

△166

△41

△2,024

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities
Deferred gains or losses on hedges
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Total accumulated other comprehensive income

△17,188

△17,358

△209,610

△16,622

△15,846

△202,707

Minority Interests

4,160

15,356

50,732

Total net assets

287,239

290,311

3,502,915

¥440,981

¥432,184

$5,377,817

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
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Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2012 and 2011

(Consolidated Statements of Income)
Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Millions of yen

2012

Net sales
Cost of sales (Note 15)
Gross profit

2011

2012

¥473,069
△368,983
104,086

¥497,452
△373,214
124,238

$5,769,134
△4,499,793
1,269,341

△79,591
24,495

△80,767
43,471

△970,621
298,720

321
286
1,288
△211
△761
△869
△312
1,666
1,348
340
—
△862
△599
△191
135

301
231
1,396
△1,118
△613
△1,092
△402
204
1,395
293
645
—
△1,840
392
2,317

3,915
3,488
15,707
△2,573
△9,280
△10,598
△3,805
20,317
16,439
4,146
—
△10,512
△7,305
△2,329
1,646

—
△2,099
3,142
2,553
402
5,577
30,072

△620
△10,274
278
—
53
△8,454
35,017

—
△25,598
38,317
31,134
4,903
68,012
366,732

Income taxes (Note 6)
Income before minority interests

△11,769
18,303

△13,986
21,031

△143,525
223,207

Minority interests in income
Net income

△1,876
¥ 16,427

△2,088
¥ 18,943

△22,878
$ 200,329

Selling, general and administrative expenses (Note 15)
Operating income
Other income (expenses):
Interest income
Dividends income
Equity in earnings (losses) of affiliated companies
Foreign exchange losses
Interest expenses
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Product warranty expenses
Net gain on sale of investments in securities
Royalty income
Net gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Amortization of negative goodwill
Business structure improvement expenses
Impairment losses on fixed assets (Note 16)
Gain (loss) on step acquisitions (Note 24)
Reversal of allowance for doubtful accounts
Loss on adjustment for changes of accounting
standard for asset retirement obligation
Loss on disaster (Note 17)
Insurance income
Compensation income (Note 18)
Other, net
Income before income taxes and minority interests

Yen

2012

U.S. dollars (Note 2)

2011

¥78.88
—

Basic net income per share (Note 20)
Diluted net income per share (Note 20)

2012

¥90.96
—

$0.96
—

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

(Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income)
Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Millions of yen

2012

Income before minority interests
Other comprehensive income:
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities
Deferred gains or losses on hedges
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Share of other comprehensive income of associates
accounted for using equity method
Comprehensive income (Note 19)
Comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent
Comprehensive income attributable to minority interests

2011

2012

¥18,303

¥21,031

$223,207

△770
△185
241

△443
△25
△4,736

△9,390
△2,256
2,939

△100
△814
17,489

△116
△5,320
15,711

△1,220
△9,927
213,280

15,650
¥ 1,839

13,774
¥ 1,937

190,854
$ 22,426
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2012 and 2011
Thousands of
U.S. dollars (Note 2)

Millions of yen

2012

Common stock (Note 11):
Balance at beginning of year
Balance at end of year

2011

2012

¥ 15,454
15,454

¥ 15,454
15,454

$ 188,463
188,463

Capital surplus:
Balance at beginning of year
Gain (loss) on sale of treasury stock
Balance at end of year

36,113
0
36,113

36,113
0
36,113

440,402
—
440,402

Retained earnings:
Balance at beginning of year
Net income
Cash dividends (Note 12)
Gain (loss) on sale of treasury stock
Other
Balance at end of year

239,422
16,427
△7,497
0
△27
248,325

227,754
18,943
△7,289
—
14
239,422

2,919,780
200,329
△91,427
—
△328
3,028,354

Treasury stock (Note 13):
Balance at beginning of year
Purchase of treasury stock
Sale of treasury stock
Balance at end of year

△188
△3
0
△191

△181
△8
1
△188

△2,293
△36
0
△2,329

Valuation difference on available-for-sale
securities:
Balance at beginning of year
Net change during the year
Balance at end of year

1,553
△821
732

1,985
△432
1,553

18,939
△10,012
8,927

Deferred gains or losses on hedges:
Balance at beginning of year
Net change during the year
Balance at end of year

△41
△125
△166

△20
△21
△41

△500
△1,524
△2,024

Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Balance at beginning of year
Net change during the year
Balance at end of year

△17,358
170
△17,188

△12,642
△4,716
△17,358

△211,683
2,073
△209,610

Minority interests:
Balance at beginning of year
Net change during the year
Balance at end of year
Total net assets

15,356
△11,196
4,160
¥287,239

14,139
1,217
15,356
¥290,311

187,268
△136,536
50,732
$3,502,915

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

54

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2012 and 2011
Thousands of U.S.
dollars (Note 2)

Millions of yen

2012

Cash flows from operating activities (Note 21):
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization of (negative) goodwill
Deferred income taxes
Net loss on retirement and sale of property, plant and equipment
Minority interests in income
Net gain on sale of investments in securities
Equity in earnings (losses) of affiliated companies
Impairment losses on fixed assets (Note 21)
Decrease (Increase) in trade receivables
Decrease (Increase) in inventories
Decrease (Increase) in accounts receivable other
Increase (decrease) in trade payables
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in accrued income taxes
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable other
Increase (decrease) in provision for loss on disaster
Increase (decrease) in retirement and severance benefits
Other
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of short-term investment in securities
Proceeds from redemption of short-term investment in securities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchases of subsidiaries’ and affiliated companies’
stock and investments in securities
Purchases of investments in subsidiaries resulting in
change in scope of consolidation
Proceeds from sale of subsidiaries’ and affiliated
companies’ stock and investments in securities
Purchases of trust beneficiary right
Proceeds from redemption of trust beneficiary right
Payments of loans receivable
Collection of loans receivable
Other
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase (decrease) in short-term debt
Proceeds from long-term debt
Payments of long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of debentures
Redemption of bonds payable
Dividends paid to stockholders
Dividends paid to minority stockholders of consolidated subsidiaries
Other
Net cash used in financing activities
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents resulting
from change in fiscal year-end of consolidated subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Notes 21)
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2011

2012

¥16,427

¥18,943

$200,329

28,240
808
3,383
626
1,876
△1,664
△1,288
599
1,023
△2,971
△166
△2,324
△2,118
△1,286
976
△2,449
500
1,880
42,072

28,985
△329
575
799
2,088
△204
△1,396
6,555
△4,912
△1,951
△1,752
1,320
△1,420
△4,709
△290
2,461
492
△1,240
44,015

344,390
9,854
41,256
7,634
22,878
△20,293
△15,707
7,305
12,476
△36,232
△2,024
△28,341
△25,829
△15,683
11,902
△29,866
6,098
22,926
513,073

△500
5,700
△33,546
1,921

△3,499
499
△27,511
479

△6,098
69,512
△409,098
23,427

△38,301

△3,152

△467,085

△4,944

△1,596

△60,293

4,083
—
—
△38
819
△2,396
△67,202

281
△5,770
6,769
△2,166
135
△217
△35,748

49,793
—
—
△463
9,988
△29,220
△819,537

2,911
1,606
△1,856
10,000
—
△7,497
△497
△56
4,611
△67
△20,586
96,775

△2,323
3,226
△54
—
—
△7,289
△287
△96
△6,823
△2,386
△942
97,603

35,500
19,585
△22,634
121,951
—
△91,427
△6,061
△682
56,232
△817
△251,049
1,180,183

129
¥76,318

114
¥96,775

1,573
$930,707
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hitachi Chemical Co., Ltd. and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the Years Ended March 31, 2012 and 2011

1. Basis of Presentaiton and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hitachi Chemical

(f) Inventories

Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and consolidated subsidiaries are prepared on

Inventories are mainly stated at cost determined by the moving-average

the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, which are

method. When their costs exceed the net realized value, inventories are

different in certain respects as to the application and disclosure require-

written down to the net realized value.

ments of International Financial Reporting Standards, and are compiled
from the consolidated financial statements (the “MOF” report) prepared by

(g) Property, Plant and Equipment (Except for lease assets)

the Company as required by the Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and depreciated over the

Japan.

estimated useful lives of the respective assets by the declining-balance

In addition, for the convenience of readers outside Japan, the consoli-

method, except for certain buildings of the Company and domestic consol-

dated financial statements, including the notes to the consolidated financial

idated subsidiaries, placed in service after April 1, 1998, which are depreci-

statements, include certain reclassifications and additional information

ated by the straight-line method.

which is not required under accounting principles generally accepted in
Japan.

(h) Intangible Assets (Except for lease assets)
Intangible assets are amortized mainly on a straight-line basis. Cost incurred

(b) Principles of Consolidation

for computer software for internal use is capitalized and amortized on a

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company

straight-line basis over its estimated useful life.

and those of its effectively controlled subsidiaries, whether directly or
indirectly controlled. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions

(i) Leases

have been eliminated in consolidation.

Lease assets are depreciated over the lease term by the straight-line method

Most of the investments in affiliated companies are stated at their

with no residual value.

underlying equity value, and the appropriate portion of the earnings of such
companies is included in consolidated net income. The investments in affili-

(j) Impairment of Fixed Assets

ated companies which do not materially affect earnings and equity are

Fixed assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in

stated at cost.

circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

Goodwill, based on the fair value, acquired by the Company is being

When amounts of undiscounted future cash flows of fixed assets are less

amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful period by each

than the carrying amounts, the fixed assets are determined to be impaired.

individual investment in subsidiaries, not exceeding twenty years or, if the

Then, an amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable

amount is not material, charged immediately to earnings.

amount is recognized as an impairment loss in earnings. The recoverable
amount of fixed assets is the greater of the net selling price or the present

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the fixed assets.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Company

The Company and consolidated subsidiaries identify groups of assets by

and its consolidated companies consider all highly liquid investments with

their business location and business division as the smallest identifiable

insignificant risk of change in value, which have maturities of generally three

group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of

months or less when purchased, to be cash equivalents.

the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets.

(d) Allowance for Doubtful Receivables

(k) Provision for loss on disaster

General provision for doubtful receivables is provided by applying a certain

Provision for loss on disaster is provided for the estimated cost of restora-

reserve percentage of the receivables based on experience from past trans-

tion, removal and other of the assets damaged by the Great East Japan

actions. When considered necessary, specific reserves are made based on

Earthquake.

the assessment of individual receivables.
(l) Retirement and Severance Benefits
(e) Investments in Securities

Allowance for retirement and severance benefits for employees is provided

Securities are to be classified into one of the following two categories and

based on the estimated retirement benefit obligation and fair value of the

accounted for as follows:

pension assets.

t4FDVSJUJFTUIBUUIF$PNQBOZIBTUIFQPTJUJWFJOUFOUBOEBCJMJUZUPIPMEUP

Prior service benefits and costs are recognized as income or expense on a

maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities and measured at

straight-line basis over certain years, principally 10 years, not exceeding the

amortized cost.

expected average remaining service periods of the employees active at the

t 4FDVSJUJFT PUIFS UIBO IFMEUPNBUVSJUZ TFDVSJUJFT BSF DMBTTJGJFE BT PUIFS

date of the amendment. Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income

securities. Unrealized holding gains and losses of other securities with fair

or expense on a straight-line basis from the next year of incurrence over

values are reported as a net amount in a separate component of net assets

certain years, principally 10 years, not exceeding the expected average

until realized. Other securities without fair values are carried at cost.

remaining service periods of the employees participating in the plans.

In computing realized gain or loss, cost of other securities is principally
determined by the moving-average method.
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(m) Derivative Financial Instruments

expected future tax consequences attributable to differences between the

In principle, net assets or liabilities arising from derivative financial instru-

financial statement carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and

ments are measured at fair value, with unrealized gain or loss included in

their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured

earnings. Hedging transactions, that meet the criteria of hedge accounting

using enacted tax rates expected to be applied to taxable income in the

as regulated in “Accounting Standard for Financial Instruments,” are

years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or

accounted for using deferral hedge accounting, which requires the unreal-

settled.

ized gain or loss to be deferred as net unrealized gains or losses on hedge
transactions, component of net assets, until gain or loss relating to the

(p) Consumption Taxes

hedge object is recognized.

Transactions subject to consumption taxes are recorded at amounts exclusive of consumption taxes.

(n) Foreign Currency Translations
Foreign currency transactions are translated into yen on the basis of the

(q)Net Income per Share

exchange rates in effect at the transaction date. At year-end, monetary

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing income available to

assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into

common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares

yen at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses

outstanding during each year. Diluted net income per share reflects the

resulting from the translation of foreign currencies, including gains and

potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue

losses on settlement, are credited or charged to earnings as incurred.

common stock were exercised or converted into common stock or resulted

The financial statements of the consolidated foreign subsidiaries are
translated into the reporting currency of yen as follows: all assets and liabil-

in the issuance of common stock that then shared in the earnings of the
entity.

ities are translated at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date;
stockholders’ equity accounts are translated at historical rates; income and

(r) Reclassifications

expenses are translated at an average of the exchange rates in effect during

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior years’ consolidated

the year; and a comprehensive adjustment resulting from the translation of

financial statements in order to conform to the current year presentations.

assets, liabilities and stockholders’ equity is included in minority interests
and foreign currency translation adjustments as a separate component of

(s) Additional Information

net assets.

Effective April 1, 2011, the Company adopted the “Accounting Standard
for Accounting Changes and Error Corrections ( Accounting Standards

(o) Income Taxes

Board of Japan (ASBJ), Statement No.24 issued on December 4, 2009)” and

Deferred income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability

the “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Accounting Changes and Error

method, and deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the

Corrections (ASBJ Guidance No.24 issued on December 4, 2009)”.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Basis of Financial Statement Translation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements are expressed in yen and, solely for the convenience of the reader, have been translated into U.S. dollars
at the rate of ¥82=US$1, the approximate exchange rate prevailing at the Tokyo Foreign Exchange Market as of March 31, 2012. This translation should not
be construed as a representation that any amounts shown could be converted into U.S. dollars.

3. Financial Instruments
In principle, funds are managed through short-term deposits and are

Short-term investments and investments in securities primarily consist of

procured through debentures and bank loans. Additionally, derivative finan-

bonds and stock of the associates. In principle, only bonds that are highly

cial instruments are used in order to manage its exposure to fluctuate in

safe are held, therefore, credit risk is minimal. Stock, on the other hand, is

foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, and commodity prices.

subject to risks related to the fluctuation of market value. In order to manage

Trade notes and accounts receivables is subject to the credit risk of

these risks, the Company and its subsidiaries periodically reconfirm the

customers. In order to minimize this risk, the Company and its subsidiaries

market value of the stocks held and the financial condition of associates,

periodically monitor the financial condition of customers in accordance with

and revaluate the holding of such stock while also taking into consideration

the credit management standards and claims management standards. The

the relationships with these associates.

Company and its subsidiaries also work to fully grasp the financial condition

The following table provides the carrying amount, the fair value and the

of customers and manage the settlement terms and balances of each

difference between these two items of major financial instruments as of

customer.

March 31, 2012 and 2011:
Millions of yen
Carrying amount

Fair value

Difference

Carrying amount

2012

Fair value

Difference

2011

Assets:
Cash and deposits

¥ 37,703

¥ 37,703

38,698

38,698

Deposits to related companies
Trade notes and accounts receivables (Note a)

¥

—

¥ 39,984

¥ 39,984

—

56,911

56,911

—-

107,126

Less allowance for doubtful receivables (Note b)

¥

—

106,939

△1,595

△2,336

105,531

105,510

△21

104,603

104,570

△33

101

99

△2

102

98

△4

7,407

7,407

—

13,798

13,798

—

¥189,440

¥189,417

¥△23

¥215,398

¥215,361

¥△37

¥ 50,367

¥ 50,367

¥

—

¥ 52,741

¥ 52,741

¥

15,931

15,931

—

12,895

12,895

—

20,000

20,668

668

10,000

10,470

470

4,739

4,810

71

4,031

4,064

33

¥ 91,037

¥ 91,776

¥ 739

¥ 79,667

¥ 80,170

¥ 503

For which hedge accounting is not applied

△553

△553

¥

¥

For which hedge accounting is applied

△362

△362

Short-term investments and investments in securities
Held-to-maturity securities
Other securities
Total Assets
Liabilities:
Trade notes and accounts payables (Note c)
Short-term debt

—

Long-term debt
Debentures
Long-term loans payable
Total Liabilities
Derivative financial instrument transactions (Note d):

Total Derivatives

¥

△915

¥

△915

¥

—

△66

¥

△66

—

△68

△68

—

¥ △134

¥ △134

¥

—

¥

—

—

ANNUAL REPORT 2012

58

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Carrying amount

Fair value

Difference

2012

Assets:
Cash and deposits
Deposits to related companies
Trade notes and accounts receivables (Note a)
Less allowance for doubtful receivables (Note b)

$ 459,793

$ 459,793

471,927

471,927

$

—
—

1,286,707

△256
△24

1,306,415
△19,452
1,286,963

Short-term investments and investments in securities
Held-to-maturity securities
Other securities
Total Assets

1,232

1,208

90,329

90,329

—

$2,310,244

$2,309,964

$△280

$ 614,232

$ 614,232

$

194,280

194,280

—

243,902

252,048

8,146

57,793

58,659

866

$1,110,207

$1,119,219

$ 9,012

$ △6,744

$ △6,744

$

△4,415

△4,415

$ △11,159

$ △11,159

Liabilities:
Trade notes and accounts payables (Note c)
Short-term debt

—

Long-term debt
Debentures
Long-term loans payable
Total Liabilities
Derivative financial instrument transactions (Note d):
For which hedge accounting is not applied
For which hedge accounting is applied
Total Derivatives

—
—

$

—

Note: a. The hedged foreign currency receivables recorded using forward foreign exchange contract rate is included. The amounts as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 included are ¥676 million ($8,244 thousand) and ¥666 million,
respectively.
Note: b. These amounts are general provision for doubtful receivables and specific reserves for individual receivables associated with trade notes and accounts receivables.
Note: c. The hedged foreign currency payables recorded using forward foreign exchange contract rate is included. The amounts as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 included are ¥40 million ($488 thousand) and ¥57 million,
respectively.
Note: d. These represent net assets or liabilities arising from derivative transactions. The figures in parentheses indicate net liabilities.

The method of calculating the fair value of financial instruments is as

Debentures

follows:

The fair value of debentures issued by the Company is the value provided by

Cash and deposits, deposits to related companies

the counterparty financial institution.

As these items are settled in the short term, the fair value of these items
approximates the book value, therefore, the book value is used.

Long-term loans payable
Loans with floating interest rates reflect market interest rates over the short

Trade notes and accounts receivables

term, and the Company’s credit standing has not changed significantly after

The fair value of items settled in the short term approximates the book

the loan was made. The fair value approximates the book value, therefore,

value, therefore, the book value is used. The fair value of installment receiv-

the book value is used. The fair value of fixed-rate loans is determined by

ables is determined by discounting the amount of receivables by a rate that

discounting the total amount of principal and interest by the assumed rate

reflects the credit risk.

on new borrowings of the same type.

Short-term investments and investments in securities

Derivative financial instrument transactions

The fair value of equity securities is the quoted market prices on the stock

The fair value of derivative financial instrument transactions is the value

exchange. The fair value of bonds is the value provided by the counterparty

provided by the counterparty financial institution.

financial institution.
Trade notes and accounts payables, short-term debt
As these items are settled in the short term, the fair value of these items
approximates the book value, therefore, the book value is used.
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The previous table does not include non-marketable securities because no quoted market price is available and it is extremely difficult in estimating fair
value. The carrying amount of non-marketable securities at March 31, 2012 and 2011 totaled ¥2,135 million ($26,037 thousand) and ¥3,522 million, respectively.

Redemption schedules of receivables and securities with a maturity date are as follows:
Millions of yen
After five
years through
ten years

After one
year through
five years

Within
one year

After
ten years

Within
one year

2012

Deposits
Deposits to related companies
Trade notes and accounts receivables

¥ 37,356

¥

After one
year through
five years

After five
years through
ten years

After
ten years

2011

—

¥

—

¥

— ¥ 39,953

¥ —

¥

—

¥

—

38,698

—

—

—

56,911

—

—

—

105,395

136

—

—

104,407

196

—

—

—

100

—

—

—

100

—

—

1,000

5,700

700

¥1,000 ¥206,971

¥996

Short-term investments and investments in securities
Held-to-maturity securities
Debentures:
Other securities
Debt securities:

1,900

800

¥183,349

¥1,036

—
¥

—

Thousands of U.S. dollars
After one
year through
five years

Within
one year

After five
years through
ten years

After
ten years

2012

Deposits
Deposits to related companies
Trade notes and accounts receivables

$ 455,561

$

—

$

—

$

—

471,927

—

—

—

1,285,305

1,658

—

—

—

1,220

—

—

Short-term investments and investments in securities
Held-to-maturity securities
Debentures:
Other securities
Debt securities:

23,170

9,756

$2,235,963

$12,634

$

—

12,195

—

$12,195

¥

—

1,000

—

¥1,000
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4. Short-term Investments and Investments in Securities
Held-to-maturity securities

Millions of yen
Carrying amount

Estimated fair value Unrealized gains (losses)

Carrying amount

Held-to-maturity securities with gross unrealized holding gains:
Government bonds, municipal bonds and other
Debentures
Other bonds
Held-to-maturity securities with gross unrealized
holding losses:
Government bonds, municipal bonds and other
Debentures
Other bonds

Estimated fair value Unrealized gains (losses)

2011

2012

¥ —
—
—
—

¥—
—
—
—

¥ —
—
—
—

¥ —
—
—
—

¥—
—
—
—

¥ —
—
—
—

—
101
—
101
¥101

—
99
—
99
¥99

—
△2
—
△2
¥△2

—
102
—
102
¥102

—
98
—
98
¥98

—
△4
—
△4
¥△4

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Carrying amount

Estimated fair value Unrealized gains (losses)

2012

Held-to-maturity securities with gross unrealized holding gains:
Government bonds, municipal bonds and other
Debentures
Other bonds
Held-to-maturity securities with gross unrealized
holding losses:
Government bonds, municipal bonds and other
Debentures
Other bonds

$

—
—
—
—

—
1,232
—
1,232
$1,232

$

—
—
—
—

$

—
1,208
—
1,208
$1,208

—
—
—
—

—
△24
—
△24
$△24

Other securities

Millions of yen
Carrying amount

Acquisition cost

Unrealized gains (losses)

Carrying amount

2012

Other securities with gross unrealized holding gains:
Equity securities
Debt securities
Other securities
Other securities with gross unrealized holding losses:
Equity securities
Debt securities
Other securities

Acquisition cost

Unrealized gains (losses)

2011

¥3,371
—
—
3,371

¥1,844
—
—
1,844

¥1,527
—
—
1,527

¥ 6,112
—
—
6,112

¥ 2,990
—
—
2,990

¥3,122
—
—
3,122

238
3,638
160
4,036
¥7,407

264
3,700
160
4,124
¥5,968

△26
△62
—
△88
¥1,439

198
7,281
207
7,686
¥13,798

231
7,400
207
7,838
¥10,828

△33
△119
—
△152
¥2,970

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Carrying amount

Acquisition cost

Unrealized gains (losses)

2012

Other securities with gross unrealized holding gains:
Equity securities
Debt securities
Other securities
Other securities with gross unrealized holding losses:
Equity securities
Debt securities
Other securities

$ 41,110
—
—
41,110

$ 22,488
—
—
22,488

$ 18,622
—
—
18,622

2,902
44,366
1,951
49,219
$ 90,329

3,219
45,122
1,951
50,292
$ 72,780

△317
△756
—
△1,073
$ 17,549

Other securities sold

Millions of yen
Proceeds from sale

Toral amount of gain on sale Toral amount of loss on sale Proceeds from sale

Equity securities

¥4,087
¥4,087

¥1,682
¥1,682

¥△16
¥△16

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Proceeds from sale

Toral amount of gain on sale Toral amount of loss on sale

2012

Equity securities

$49,841
$49,841

$20,512
$20,512

Toral amount of gain on sale Toral amount of loss on sale

2011

2012

$△195
$△195

¥284
¥284

¥207
¥207

¥△3
¥△3
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5. Inventories
Inventories as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 are summarized as follows:

Millions of yen

2012

Finished and semi-finished goods
Work in process
Raw materials

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2011

¥19,160
10,387
12,972
¥42,519

¥16,782
9,651
12,150
¥38,583

2012

$233,658
126,671
158,195
$518,524

6. Income Taxes
The income tax expenses (benefits) reflected in the consolidated statements of income for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:
Millions of yen

2012

Current tax expense
Deferred tax expense (benefit)

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2011

¥ 8,386
3,383
¥11,769

¥13,411
575
¥13,986

2012

$102,269
41,256
$143,525

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries are subject to a number of taxes based on income.
The aggregated statutory tax rate for domestic companies was approximately 40.4% for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011.
Reconciliations between the statutory tax rate and the effective income tax rate as a percentage of income before income taxes and minority interests are omitted, as the
discrepancies are immaterial.
The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 are presented below:
Millions of yen

Deferred tax assets:
Retirement and severance benefits
Accrued bonus
Accrued business tax
Allowance for doubtful receivables
Other
Total gross deferred tax assets
Valuation allowance
Total deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities:
Tax purpose reserves regulated by Japanese Tax Law
Valuation difference on available-for-sale securities
Prepaid pension benefit cost
Other
Total deferred tax liabilities
Net deferred tax assets

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2012

2011

2012

¥ 7,960
3,317
473
636
15,550
27,936
△11,479
16,457

¥ 8,762
3,855
669
1,082
17,991
32,359
△12,082
20,277

$ 97,073
40,451
5,768
7,756
189,635
340,683
△139,988
200,695

△40
△507
△1,396
△370
△2,313
¥14,144

△37
△1,142
△1,372
△806
△3,357
¥16,920

△488
△6,183
△17,024
△4,512
△28,207
$172,488

Net deferred tax assets as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 are reflected in the consolidated balance sheets under the following captions:
Millions of yen

2012

Other current assets
Other assets
Other liabilities
Net deferred tax assets

¥ 7,096
7,280
△232
¥14,144

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2011

¥ 8,904
8,126
△110
¥16,920

2012

$ 86,537
88,780
△2,829
$172,488

Revisions to the amounts of deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to changes in corporate and other tax rates
The “Act for Partial Revision of the Income Tax Act etc. for the Purpose of Creating Taxation System Responding to Changes in Economic and Social Structures”
(Act No.114 of 2011) and the “Act on Special Measures for Securing Financial Resources Necessary to Implement Measures for Reconstruction following the Great
East Japan Earthquake” (Act No.117 of 2011) were promulgated on December 2, 2011 and the staged reduction of the national corporate tax rate and a special
reconstruction corporate tax will apply to corporate taxes effective fiscal years beginning on or after April 1, 2012.
As a result, the effective corporate tax rate used to measure the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities was changed from 40.4% to 37.8% for the
temporary differences expected to be utilized in fiscal years beginning April 1, 2012 to April 1, 2014 and from 40.4% to 35.4% for temporary differences expected
to be utilized from fiscal years beginning April 1, 2015. The effect of the announced reduction of the effective corporate tax rate was to decrease deferred tax assets,
net by ¥1,133 million ($13,817 thousand) and increase deferred income taxes by ¥1,193 million ($14,549 thousand) .
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7. Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, at cost as of March 31, 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following:
Millions of yen

Land

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2012

2011

¥ 18,334

¥ 18,173

2012

$ 223,585

Buildings and structures

132,709

126,942

1,618,402

Machinery and equipment

383,227

375,613

4,673,500

Lease assets
Construction in progress

172

148

2,098

10,342

4,191

126,122

¥544,784

¥525,067

$6,643,707

8. Short-term and Long-term Debt
Long-term debt as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 is summarized as follows:
Millions of yen

2012

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2011

2012

Debentures:
8th series, due 2016, interest 2.17%
9th series, due 2022, interest 1.19%

¥10,000
10,000

¥10,000
—

$121,951
121,951

Loans, principally from banks and insurance companies:
Maturing 2013–2018, interest 2.5% (average)

4,739

4,031

57,793

¥24,739

¥14,031

$301,695

The aggregate annual maturities of long-term debt after March 31, 2012 are as follows:

Years ending March 31,

Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2014

¥3,144

$38,342

2015

1,119

13,646

2016

408

4,976

2017

46

561

2018

22

268

¥4,739

$57,793
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9. Liability for Retirement and Severance Benefits
Defined Benefit Plans

Under the plans, employees are entitled to lump-sum payments based on

The Company and its subsidiaries have a number of contributory and

the current rate of pay and the length of service upon retirement or termi-

non-contributory pension plans to provide retirement and severance

nation of employment for reasons other than dismissal for cause. The

benefits to substantially all the employees.

liability under these plans is partially funded by contributions to pension

Principal pension plans are unfunded defined benefit pension plans.

fund trusts.

Funded status of the Company’s and subsidiaries’ plans as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 is summarized as follows:
Millions of yen

2012

Projected benefit obligations

¥△90,577

Plan assets at fair value
Funded status

¥△87,857

2012

$△1,104,598

68,675

68,105

837,500

△21,902

△19,752

△267,098

9,473

7,811

115,525

Unrecognized actuarial loss
Unrecognized prior service benefit
Net amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheets

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2011

△368

△686

△4,488

¥△12,797

¥△12,627

$ △156,061

¥

¥

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets consist of:

Prepaid pension benefit cost (other assets)
Retirement and severance benefits

3,747

3,417

$

45,695

△16,544

△16,044

△201,756

¥△12,797

¥△12,627

$△156,061

Net periodic benefit costs for the funded benefit pension plans and the unfunded lump-sum payment plans for the years ended March 31, 2012 and
2011 consisted of the following components:
Millions of yen

2012

Service cost, net of employees’ contributions
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets

¥2,848

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2011

¥2,796

2012

$34,732

2,239

2,239

27,305

△1,167

△1,302

△14,232

Amortization of unrecognized actuarial loss

1,885

2,329

22,988

Amortization of unrecognized prior service benefit

△257

△264

△3,134

¥5,548

¥5,798

$67,659

Net periodic benefit cost

Note: Besides retirement and severance benefits under the defined benefit pension plans above, premium retirement benefits of ¥213 million ($2,598 thousand) and ¥371 million were
charged to earnings during the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Actuarial assumptions used in the accounting for the Company’s and subsidiaries’ plans are principally as follows:
2012

Discount rate
Expected return rate on plan assets

2011

1.5〜2.8%

1.5〜2.8%

2.0%

2.0%

Defined Contribution Plans
The amount of cost recognized for the Company’s and those subsidiaries’ contribution to the plans for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 was
¥968 million ($11,805 thousand) and ¥895 million, respectively.
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10. Asset Retirement Obligations
The Company has recorded asset retirement obligations pertaining to the legal obligation to eliminate asbestos and other harmful substances present in
property, plant and equipment upon their retirement and to the obligation to return offices and other leased facilities to their original condition (restitution
obligations) as stated in their lease contracts.

Methods of calculating the amounts for asset retirement obligations in the year ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
Estimated
period of use

Estimated
period of use

Discount rate

Discount rate

2012

2011

Obligations to eliminate asbestos, etc.

5–35 years

0.5–2.3%

5–35 years

1.4–2.3%

Restitution obligations

8–60 years

1.0–2.4%

8–60 years

1.0–2.4%

Changes in applicable asset retirement obligations in the year ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2012

Balance at beginning of year

2011

¥855

4

80

49

13

14

158

Increase due to acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Adjustment due to passage of time
Decrease due to fulfillment of obligations
Balance at end of year

2012

¥938

$11,439

△12

△11

△146

¥943

¥938

$11,500

11. Common Stock
Issued shares, changes in shares and the amount of common stock for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 are summarized as follows:

Issued shares

Millions of yen

Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Amount

Amount

Balances as of April 1, 2010

208,364,913

¥15,454

Balances as of March 31, 2011

208,364,913

15,454

$188,463

Balances as of March 31, 2012

208,364,913

¥15,454

$188,463

12. Net Assets and Cash Dividends
The Company’s common stock has no par value in accordance with the

each other upon resolution of the shareholders’ meeting.

Japanese Corporate Law (JCL). Under JCL, at least 50% of the amount

Cash dividends during the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 in

actually paid in or provided in consideration for newly issued stocks is

the consolidated statements of changes in net assets, represent

designated as stated common stock and proceeds in excess of the amount
designated as stated common stock are recorded as capital surplus.
The JCL requires an amount equal to at least 10% of distributions of
retained earnings to be appropriated as legal reserve, which are included

dividends resolved during those years. The consolidated financial statements do not include any provision for the dividends of ¥18 ($0.22) per
share totaling ¥3,748 million ($45,707 thousand), which were subse-

in capital surplus and retained earnings, until legal reserve equals 25% of

quently resolved by the Board of Directors in respect of the year ended

stated common stock. In addition, common stock, capital surplus and

March 31,2012.

retained earnings, including legal reserves, can generally be transferred to
For the year ended March 31, 2012
Dividends paid

Resolution

Total
Total dividends
dividends
( millions of
( thousands
Type of shares
yen )
of U.S.dollars )

Dividends
per share
( U.S.
dollars )

Dividends
per share
( yen )

Meeting of the Board of Directors on May 26, 2011

Common
stock

3,749

45,720

18

220

Meeting of the Board of Directors on October 25, 2011

Common
stock

3,749

45,720

18

220

Cut-off
date

Effective
date

March 31,
2011

June 8,
2011

September 30, November 29,
2011
2011
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Dividends with the cut-off date in the year ended March 31, 2012 and the effective date in the year ending March 31,2013

Resolution

Total
Total dividends
dividends
( millions of
( thousands
Type of shares
yen )
of U.S.dollars )

Meeting of the Board of
Directors on May 28, 2012

Common
stock

3,748

Source of
dividends
Retained
earnings

45,707

Dividends
per share
( U.S.
dollars )

Dividends
per share
( yen )
18

220

Cut-off
date

Effective
date

March 31,
2012

May 29,
2012

For the year ended March 31, 2011
Dividends paid

Resolution

Total dividends
( millions of
Type of shares
yen )

Dividends
per share
( yen )

Meeting of the Board of Directors on May 28, 2010

Common
stock

3,540

17

Meeting of the Board of Directors on October 29, 2010

Common
stock

3,749

18

Cut-off
date

Effective
date

March 31,
2010

May 31,
2010

September 30, November 26,
2010
2010

Dividends with the cut-off date in the year ended March 31, 2011 and the effective date in the year ending March 31,2012

Resolution
Meeting of the Board of Directors on May 26, 2011

Total dividends
( millions of
Type of shares
yen )
Common
stock

3,749

Source of
dividends
Retained
earnings

Dividends
per share
( yen )
18

Cut-off
date

Effective
date

March 31,
2011

June 8,
2011

13. Treasury Stock
The Japanese Corporate Law (JCL) allows a company to acquire treasury

Company to acquire their shares below a minimum trading lot (100 shares)

stocks upon shareholders’ approval to the extent that sufficient distributable

as shares below a minimum trading lot cannot be publicly traded and do not

funds are available. If the Board of Directors’ authority is stated in the

carry a voting right. The JCL also states that a shareholder holding shares

Articles of Incorporation, a company is allowed to purchase treasury stock

less than a minimum trading lot is entitled to request the company to sell its

not upon shareholders’ approval but Board of Directors’ approval. In this

treasury stock, if any, to the shareholder up to a minimum trading lot,

connection, purchase of treasury stock is allowed under the Company’s

provided that sale of treasury stock is allowed under the Articles of Incorpo-

Articles of Incorporation.

ration. In this connection, sale of treasury stock is allowed under the

Pursuant to the provisions of the JCL, shareholders may request the

Company’s Articles of Incorporation.

The changes in treasury stock for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 are summarized as follows:
Shares

Balances as of March 31, 2010

109,761

Purchase of treasury stock

4,331

Sale of treasury stock

△410

Balances as of March 31, 2011

113,682

Purchase of treasury stock

2,105

Sale of treasury stock

△175

Balances as of March 31, 2012

115,612
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14. Commitments and Contingencies
Contingent liabilities for guarantees given in respect of bank loans of

receivable and to transfer them by endorsement to suppliers in the settle-

employees amounted to ¥144 million ($1,756 thousand) and ¥159 million

ment of accounts payable. The Company and its subsidiaries are contin-

at March 31, 2012 and 2011.

gently liable for trade notes endorsed, which amounted to ¥608 million
($7,415 thousand) and ¥723 million at March 31, 2012 and 2011, respec-

It is common practice in Japan for companies, in the ordinary course of

tively.

business, to receive promissory notes in the settlement of trade accounts

15. Research and Development Expenses
Research and development expenses included in general and administrative expenses and gross production cost for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011
amounted to ¥25,680 million ($313,171 thousand) and ¥26,382 million, respectively.

16. Impairment Losses on Fixed Assets
For the year ended March 31, 2012, certain consolidated subsidiaries recognized impairment losses on fixed assets as follows:
Location

Use

Type

Katori-gun, Chiba Prefecture

Idle

Machinery and equipment, and other

Chikusei-shi, Ibaraki Prefecture and other

Production facilities and other

Buildings, machinery and equipment, and other

recorded as impairment losses on fixed assets.

Idle assets for which value declined due to some factors were devalued
from the carrying amount to the recoverable amount by ¥346 million

The Company and its subsidiaries determine recoverable amount

($4,220 thousand), which was recorded as impairment losses on fixed

using either net selling price or value in use. Net selling price is based on

assets. Production facilities and other assets for which value declined due

the appraisal. Value in use is based on the present value of future cash

to decreased profitability were devalued from the carrying amount to the

flows. Discount rates are omitted due to the negative undiscounted future

recoverable amount by ¥253 million ($3,085 thousand), which was

cash flows.

For the year ended March 31, 2011, the Company and certain foreign consolidated subsidiaries recognized impairment losses on fixed assets as follows:
Location

Use

Type

Hitachi-shi, Ibaraki Prefecture and other

Idle

Land

Singapore and other

Production facilities and other

Buildings, machinery and equipment, and other

Idle assets for which value declined due to lower land prices and

ment losses on fixed assets.

other factors were devalued from the carrying amount to the recoverable

The Company and its subsidiaries determine recoverable amount

amount by ¥200 million, which was recorded as impairment losses on

using either net selling price or value in use. Net selling price is based on

fixed assets. Production facilities and other assets for which value declined

the appraisal. Value in use is based on the present value of the future cash

due to decreased profitability were devalued from the carrying amount to

flows with the discount rate of 12.54 %.

the recoverable amount by ¥1,640 million, which was recorded as impair-

17. Loss on Disaster
For the year ended March 31, 2012
Loss on disaster due to the Great East Japan Earthquake occurred on March 11, 2011 is as follows:

Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2012

2012

Factory relocation expenses

¥1,308

Fixed cost on mothballing period and other

$15,951

391

4,769

¥1,699

$20,720

Loss on disaster due to the flood in Thailand is as follows:
Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2012

Loss on retirement of fixed assets

2012

¥ 77

$ 939

Loss on valuation and retirement of inventories

267

3,256

Fixed cost on mothballing period

185

2,256

△512

△6,244

Insurance income
Cost of restoration, removal and other

383

4,671

¥400

$4,878
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For the year ended March 31, 2011
Loss on disaster due to the Great East Japan Earthquake occurred on March 11, 2011 is as follows:

Millions of yen

2011

Impairment losses on fixed assets

¥ 4,715

Loss on retirement of fixed assets

63

Loss on valuation and retirement of inventories

1,825

Fixed cost on mothballing period

1,844

Estimated amount of earthquake insurance reimbursement

△1,007

Cost of restoration, removal and other (including provision for loss on disaster)

2,834
¥10,274

For the year ended March 31, 2011, the Company and certain domestic consolidated subsidiaries recognized impairment losses on fixed assets
because these assets are located in the mandatory evacuation zone and cannot be operated in the meantime due to the accident of the Fukushima No.1
nuclear power plant as follows:
Location

Namie-cho, Fukushima Prefecture

Use

Type

Production facilities and other

Buildings, machinery and equipment, and other

18. Compensation income
This income is the compensation received from Tokyo Electric Power Company, for the lost income over the period from March 11 to August 31, 2011.

19.Reclassification adjustment and tax effect amounts relating to other comprehensive income
Reclassification adjustment and tax effect amounts relating to other comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2012 is as follows:
Millions of yen

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2012

2012

Valuation difference on avilable-for-sale securities:
Amount arising during the year

¥△117

$△1,427

Reclassification adjustment

△1,289

△15,719

Amount before tax effect

△1.406

△17,146

Tax effect
Valuation difference on avilable-for-sale securities

636

7,756

△770

△9,390

△1,530

△18,659

Deferred gains or losses on hedges:
Amount arising during the year
Reclassification adjustment
Asset acquisition cost adjustment
Amount before tax effect
Tax effect
Deferred gains or losses on hedges

111

1,354

1,123

13,695

△296

△3,610

111

1,354

△185

△2,256

249

3,037

Foreign currency translation adjustments:
Amount arising during the year
Reclassification adjustment
Foreign currency translation adjustments

△8

△98

241

2,939

Share of other comprehensive income of associates
accounted for using the equity method:
Amount arising during the year

△100

△1,220

Total other comprehensive income

¥△814

$△9,927
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20. Per Share Information
The reconciliation of the number of shares and the amounts used in the basic and diluted net income per share computations for the year ended March
31, 2012 and 2011are as follows:
Thousands of shares
2012

2011

Weighted average number of shares on
which basic net income per share is calculated

208,250

208,253

Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock option, issued under the former Japanese Corporate law
Number of shares on which diluted net income per share is calculated

—

—

208,250

208,253

Millions of yen

2012

Net income

¥18,943

—

—

—

16,427

18,943

200,329

Effect of dilutive securities
Net income on which diluted net income per share is calculated

2012

¥16,427

Net income not applicable to common stockholders
Net income on which basic net income per share is calculated

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2011

$200,329

—

—

—

¥16,427

¥18,943

$200,329

Yen

2012

U.S. dollars

2011

2012

Net income per share:
Basic

¥78.88

¥90.96

$0.96

—

—

—

Diluted
Net assets per share as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Yen

Basic

U.S. dollars

2012

2011

¥1,359.33

¥1,320.30

2012

$16.58

21. Supplementary Cash Flow Information
Cash paid for interest and income taxes for the year ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
Millions of yen

2012

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2011

2012

Cash paid during the year for:
Interest

¥720

¥590

$8,780

Income taxes

9,706

18,236

118,366

For the year ended March 31, 2011, impairment losses on fixed assets of ¥6,555 million includes impairment losses on fixed assets of ¥4,715 million
in the loss on disaster.

The components of cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
Millions of yen

2012

Cash and deposits
Time deposits with over three months maturity

Thousands of U.S. dollars

2011

2012

¥37,703

¥39,984

$459,793

△83

△120

△1,013

Deposits to related companies

38,698

56,911

471,927

Cash and cash equivalents

¥76,318

¥96,775

$930,707
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22. Financial Instruments and Derivative Financial Instruments
The Company and certain subsidiaries operate globally and are exposed

its subsidiaries have no derivative financial instruments for trading

to market risks arising from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange

purposes. In addition, the Company and its subsidiaries are exposed to

rates, interest rates and commodity prices. In order to manage those risks,

potential credit-related losses in the event of non-performance by counter-

the Company and certain subsidiaries enter into various contracts on

parties to financial instruments and derivative financial instruments, but it

derivative financial instruments, including forward exchange contracts,

is not expected that any counterparties will fail to meet their obligations,

currency option contracts, currency swap contracts, interest rate option

because most of the counterparties are authentic financial institutions.

contracts, interest rate swap contracts and commodity swap contracts.

The Company and its subsidiaries have also developed hedging

Forward exchange contracts are utilized to manage risks arising from

policies to control various aspects of derivative financial transactions

foreign currency receivables from export of finished goods; foreign

including authorization levels and transaction volumes. Based on these

currency payables from the import of raw materials; and forecasted

policies, the Company and its subsidiaries hedge, within certain scopes,

foreign currency sales and purchase transactions. Currency option

risks arising from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest

contracts, interest rate option contracts and interest rate swap contracts

rates and commodity prices. The Company and its subsidiaries review

are utilized to manage foreign currency risk and interest rate risk for

periodically the effectiveness of all the hedge policies to take account of

debts. Commodity swap contracts are utilized to manage the commodity

the cumulative cash flows and any changes in the market.

price fluctuation risk on purchased raw material (lead). The Company and
The fair values of the derivative financial instruments for which hedge accounting is not applied as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
Millions of yen
Notional amount

Estimated fair value

Unrealized gains (losses)

Notional amount

2012

Estimated fair value

Unrealized gains (losses)

2011

Currency option contracts:
To sell foreign currencies

863

¥ △36

¥ △26

¥ 2,064

¥△19

551

1

△8

1,815

24

1

To sell foreign currencies

14,383

△566

△566

10,882

△89

△89

To buy foreign currencies

2,566

61

61

946

10

10

600

△15

△15

—

—

—

To buy foreign currencies

¥

¥

8

Forward exchange contracts:

Currency swap contracts:
To sell foreign currencies
To buy foreign currencies

1,297

1

1

697

7

7

¥20,260

¥△554

¥△553

¥16,404

¥△67

¥△63

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Notional amount

Estimated fair value

Unrealized gains (losses)

2012

Currency option contracts:
To sell foreign currencies

$ 10,524

$ △439

$ △317

To buy foreign currencies

6,720

12

△98

To sell foreign currencies

175,402

△6,902

△6,902

To buy foreign currencies

31,293

744

744

7,317

△183

△183

Forward exchange contracts:

Currency swap contracts:
To sell foreign currencies
To buy foreign currencies

15,817

12

12

$247,073

$△6,756

$△6,744
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The fair values of derivative financial instruments were estimated on the basis of information obtained from counterparty financial institutions.
Millions of yen
Notional amount

Estimated fair value

Unrealized gains (losses)

Notional amount

Estimated fair value

2012

Unrealized gains (losses)

2011

Interest rate option contracts:
To sell foreign currencies

¥—

¥—

¥—

¥400

¥△3

¥△3

¥—

¥—

¥—

¥400

¥△3

¥△3

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Notional amount

Estimated fair value

Unrealized gains (losses)

2012

Interest rate option contracts:
To sell foreign currencies

$—

$—

$—

$—

$—

$—

The fair values of derivative financial instruments were estimated on the basis of information obtained from counterparty financial institutions.
The fair values of the derivative financial instruments for which hedge accounting is applied as of March 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
Processing method in principle
Millions of yen
Notional amount

Estimated fair value

Notional amount

2012

Estimated fair value

2011

Currency option contracts:
To sell foreign currencies

¥

—

¥ 332

¥△12

—

—

—

166

6

3,207

△152

3,505

△65

¥3,207

¥△152

¥4,003

¥△71

To buy foreign currencies

¥

Forward exchange contracts:
To sell foreign currencies

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Notional amount

Estimated fair value

2012

Currency option contracts:
To sell foreign currencies

$

—

To buy foreign currencies

$

—

—

—

Forward exchange contracts:
To sell foreign currencies

39,110

△1,854

$39,110

$△1,854

Assigning method of foreign forward exchange contracts
Millions of yen
Notional amount

Estimated fair value

2012

Notional amount

Estimated fair value

2011

Forward exchange contracts:
To sell foreign currencies

¥676

¥—

¥666

To buy foreign currencies

40

—

57

—

¥716

¥—

¥723

¥—

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Notional amount

Estimated fair value

2012

Forward exchange contracts:
To sell foreign currencies

$8,244

To buy foreign currencies

488

$—
—

$8,732

$—

¥—
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The fair values of derivative financial instruments were estimated on the basis of information obtained from counterparty financial institutions.
Forward exchange contracts treated by the assigning method are handled together with accounts receivable and accounts payable. Therefore, their
fair value is included within the fair value of accounts receivable and accounts payable.
Millions of yen
Notional amount

Estimated fair value

2012

Notional amount

Estimated fair value

2011

Commodity swap contracts:
Variable receipt and fixed payment

¥5,208

¥△210

¥—

¥—

¥5,208

¥△210

¥—

¥—

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Notional amount

Estimated fair value

2012

Commodity swap contracts:
Variable receipt and fixed payment

$63,512

$△2,561

$63,512

$△2,561

The fair values of derivative financial instruments were estimated on the basis of information obtained from counterparty financial institutions.

23. Leases
Lessee
Finance leases (without transfer of legal title) that commenced on or before March 31, 2008 are accounted for as operating leases.
Future minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating lease arrangements as of March 31, 2012 are ¥210 million ($2,561 thousand) due
within one year and ¥511 million ($6,232 thousand) due after one year.
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24. Business Combinations
For the years ended March 31, 2012
Business combination through acquisition

wiring boards for infrastructure, server and router use. Therefore, the

Mica-Ava (Far East) Industrial Limited (“MAF”) and Mica-Ava (Guang-

Company decided to increase equity interests in each company to 75%

zhou) Material Company Ltd. (“MAG”) were engaged in the manufacture

respectively and to include both companies in the scope of consolidation

of copper-clad laminates, a principal material used in the manufacture of

as subsidiaries.

printed wiring boards, in Hong Kong and Guangzhou, respectively. In

The differences between the carrying amounts of shares (equity inter-

addition to holding a 6.3% equity interest in each company, the Company

ests) in MAF and MAG held immediately prior to the business combina-

consigned production of copper-clad laminates to both companies. The

tion date and their fair values on the acquisition date were recorded as

consignment production put a limit on effect of cost cutting measures

loss on step acquisitions totaling ¥191 million ($2,329 thousand). This

initiated and led by the Company for boosting revenue and introduction

amount and the difference between the capital paid for the acquisition

of new products was difficult to make. Additionally, printed wiring board

and the combined value of assets and liabilities was recorded as goodwill,

market was expected to expand in China and it was also expected to

which will be amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of six

grow strongly especially in South China region as a world plant for printed

years.

A breakdown of the cost of the acquisition and the goodwill acquired is as follows:

Fair value on the business combination date of shares (equity interests) in MAF and MAG held
immediately prior to the business combination date:
Cash paid for the acquisition:

¥ 317 million $ 3,866 thousand
¥5,065 million $61,768 thousand

Direct acquisition expenses (due diligence and other expenses):

¥ 227 million $ 2,768 thousand

Total cost of the acquisition:

¥5,609 million $68,402 thousand

Goodwill:

¥1,845 million $22,500 thousand

The incidence of goodwill is computed on a provisional basis as the allocation of acquisition cost is yet to be completed.
Transactions under common control

group’s global development, expand Hitachi Chemical’s R&D investment

The Company undertook a tender offer for the shares of Shin-Kobe

in the Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery group, bolster the product lineup,

Electric Machinery Co., Ltd. between December 1, 2011 and January 19,

and further speed up efforts to expand business scale in the battery

2012 acquiring a total of 19,961,369 of Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery

storage device and overseas automobile component markets specifically

Co., Ltd.’s shares as of January 26, 2012. As a result, the Company held

targeting the social infrastructure and energy fields, which are projected

97.78% of the total number of voting rights represented by shares held

to experience growth. Recognizing the opportunity to enhance the corpo-

by shareholders of record as of September 30, 2011. In addition, an

rate values of both companies the decision was therefore made to include

extraordinary and class meeting of shareholders of Shin-Kobe Electric

Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery Co., Ltd. in Hitachi Chemical’s scope of

Machinery Co., Ltd. was held on February 28, 2012. After attending to all

consolidation as a wholly owned subsidiary.

necessary procedures stipulated under the Companies Act of Japan and

This acquisition of additional shares of a subsidiary company by way

taking into account that residual shares held by other shareholders were

of tender offer has been accounted for as a transaction with minority

less-than-one unit shares, the Company held 100% of Shin-Kobe Electric

shareholders as a part of a transaction under common control in accor-

Machinery Co., Ltd.’s voting rights represented by shares as of March 31,

dance with the “Accounting Standard for Business Combinations”

2012.

(Accounting Standards Board of Japan (ASBJ) Statement No.21, issued on

This transaction is geared toward further harnessing the Hitachi

December 26, 2008) and the “Guidance on Accounting Standard for

Chemical Group’s overseas network, considerable funding ability, and

Business Combinations and Accounting Standard for Business Divesti-

research and development-related management resources. It is also

tures” (ASBJ Guidance No.10, issued on December 26, 2008).

designed to accelerate the pace of the Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery

A breakdown of the cost of the acquisition and the goodwill acquired is as follows:

Cash paid for the acquisition of additional shares:

¥34,134 million

$416,268 thousand

Direct acquisition expenses (advisory and other expenses):

¥

$

Total cost of the acquisition:
Goodwill:
The goodwill will be amortized on a straight-line basis over a period of ten years.

291 million

3,549 thousand

¥34,425 million

$419,817 thousand

¥21,981 million

$268,061 thousand
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25. Related Party Transactions
Certain consolidated subsidiary has related party transactions with Hitachi, Ltd., the parent company. The related balances as of March 31, 2012 and 2011,
and the amount of these transactions for the years ended March 31, 2012 and 2011 are summarized as follows:
Thousands of
U.S. dollars

Millions of yen

2012

2011

2012

¥ 35,168

¥ 54,083

$

¥△18,915

¥△6,918

$△230,671

Balances with Hitachi, Ltd.
Deposits to Hitachi group cash management fund

428,878

Transactions with Hitachi, Ltd.
Net increase (decrease) in deposits to Hitachi group cash management fund
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26. Segment Information
processing, from materials through components to parts.

The Company’s reportable segment is the constituent units of our business,
for which separate financial information is available, and whose operating

Based on the above, according to the degree of product processing,

results are reviewed periodically by the Board of Directors of the Company

the Company determines two reportable segments, namely categorizing

to determine the allocation of management resources and assess their

materials as “Functional Materials Segment” and the components and parts

performance.

as “Advanced Components and Systems Segment”, and the main products
of each reportable segment are provided on page 05 of this annual report.

The Company is developing business activities based on the organizational structure that is categorized depending on the degree of product

Reportable segment information:
2Millions of yen
Advanced
Components
and Systems

Functional
Materials

Total

Eliminations

Consolidated

2012

Sales to external customers

¥240,411

¥232,658

¥473,069

Intersegment sales

8,611

428

9,039

¥

—

¥473,069

△9,039

—

249,022

233,086

482,108

Operating income

¥ 20,004

¥4,511

¥ 24,515

¥

Assets

¥251,071

¥191,618

¥ 14,291
4,747

△9,039

473,069

△20

¥ 24,495

¥442,689

¥△1,708

¥440,981

¥ 13,949

¥ 28,240

¥

¥ 28,240

1,680

6,427

—

6,427

19,579

41,839

61,418

—

61,418

14

585

599

—

599

Other
Depreciation and amortization
Investments in equity method affiliates
Increase in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Impairment losses on fixed assets
Amortization of goodwill
Goodwill

—

136

672

808

—

808

1,570

23,113

24,683

—

24,683

2Millions of yen
Advanced
Components
and Systems

Functional
Materials

Total

Eliminations

Consolidated

2011

Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

¥251,984

¥245,468

¥497,452

¥

—

¥497,452

8,590

440

9,030

△9,030

—

260,574

245,908

506,482

△9,030

497,452

Operating income

¥ 31,075

¥ 12,387

¥ 43,462

¥

9

¥ 43,471

Assets

¥261,844

¥171,951

¥433,795

¥△1,611

¥432,184

¥ 14,702

¥ 14,283

¥ 28,985

¥

¥ 28,985

4,340

1,204

5,544

—

5,544

14,159

17,953

32,112

—

32,112

1,215

5,340

6,555

—

6,555

Other
Depreciation and amortization
Investments in equity method affiliates
Increase in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Impairment losses on fixed assets

—

Amortization of goodwill

—

316

316

—

316

Goodwill

—

1,629

1,629

—

1,629

Amortization of negative goodwill

—

645

645

—

645

Negative goodwill

—

—

—

—

—
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Thousands of U.S. dollars
Advanced
Components
and Systems

Functional
Materials

Total

Eliminations

Consolidated

2012

Sales to external customers
Intersegment sales

$2,931,842

$2,837,292

$5,769,134

$

—

$5,769,134

105,012

5,220

110,232

△110,232

—

3,036,854

2,842,512

5,879,366

△110,232

5,769,134

Operating income

$ 243,952

$

55,012

$ 298,964

$

△244

$ 298,720

Assets

$3,061,841

$2,336,805

$5,398,646

$△20,829

$5,377,817

$ 174,280

$ 170,110

$ 344,390

$

$ 344,390

57,890

20,488

78,378

—

78,378

238,768

510,232

749,000

—

749,000
7,305

Other
Depreciation and amortization
Investments in equity method affiliates
Increase in property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Impairment losses on fixed assets
Amortization of goodwill
Goodwill

—

171

7,134

7,305

—

1,659

8,195

9,854

—

9,854

19,146

281,866

301,012

—

301,012

Geographic Information:
Millions of yen
Japan

Asia

Other areas

Total

2012

Net sales

¥272,355

¥171,613

¥29,101

¥473,069

Net property, plant and equipment

¥ 90,769

¥ 35,865

¥ 4,661

¥131,295

Millions of yen
Japan

Asia

Other areas

Total

2011

Net sales

¥281,352

¥181,535

¥34,565

¥497,452

Net property, plant and equipment

¥ 92,874

¥ 24,064

¥ 3,575

¥120,513

Thousands of U.S. dollars
Japan

Asia

Other areas

Total

2012

Net sales

$3,321,402

$2,092,841

$354,890

$5,769,133

Net property, plant and equipment

$1,106,939

$ 437,378

$ 56,841

$1,601,158
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MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES

*1

Hitachi Chemical Group
As of March 31, 2012

Asia & Oceania

Japan
Shin-Kobe Electric Machinery
Co., Ltd.

Hitachi Chemical Coated Sand
Co., Ltd.*2

Hitachi Chemical (Johor) Sdn.
Bhd.

Manufacturing and marketing of
batteries and plastic products

Manufacturing and marketing of
coated sands

Hitachi Powdered Metals Co.,
Ltd.

Hitachi AIC Inc.

Manufacturing and marketing of
photosensitive dry films for printed
wiring boards and electrical insulating
varnishes

Manufacturing of powder metal
products

Hitachi Chemical Electronics
Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing of printed wiring
boards

Hitachi Kasei Shoji Co., Ltd.
Marketing of functional materials,
advanced components and systems,
and other products

Japan Brake Industrial Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of
friction materials

Hitachi Chemical Automotive
Products Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing of plastic interior/
exterior automotive parts

Hitachi Kasei Polymer Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of
adhesives and synthetic resin products

Namie Hitachi Chemical Co.,
Ltd.
Manufacturing of carbon products

Hitachi Kasei Business Service
Co., Ltd.
Leasing of personal computers and
other office equipment, outsourcing of
patent application related businesses

Hitachi Chemical Techno Service
Co., Ltd.*2
Outsourcing of distribution, testing,
and other business services

Hitachi Chemical Filtec Inc.
Manufacturing and marketing of foodwrapping films

Hitachi Chemical Industrial
Materials Co., Ltd.*2
Manufacturing and marketing of road
sign materials and molded synthetic
resin products

Manufacturing and marketing of
capacitors

Hitachi Battery Sales & Service
Co., Ltd.
Marketing and service of batteries,
electric equipment and golf carts

Hitachi Chemical Electronic
Materials (Guangzhou) Limited.
Manufacturing and marketing of
copper-clad laminates for printed
wiring boards

Hitachi Chemical (Suzhou)
Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of
epoxy molding compounds for
semiconductors and photosensitive dry
films for printed wiring boards

Hitachi Chemical (Dongguan)
Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of
photosensitive dry films for printed
wiring boards and electrical insulating
varnishes

Hitachi Chemical (Singapore)
Pte. Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of
printed wiring boards

Hitachi Chemical (Nantong)
Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of
advanced performance resins and
chemical materials

Hitachi Chemical (China)
Co., Ltd.
Expand the business in China through
strategic strengthening of the control
of operations, marketing, technical
management, finance and governance
within the Hitachi Chemical Group
companies in China

Hitachi Chemical Automotive
Products (Zhengzhou) Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of
automotive interior / exterior plastic
molded products

Hitachi Chemical Electronic
Materials (Taiwan) Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing, marketing and
development of electronics materials
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Hitachi Chemical Co., (Taiwan)
Ltd.

Hitachi Chemical International
Co., (Taiwan) Ltd.

Hitachi Chemical Research
Center, Inc.

Manufacturing and marketing
of printed wiring boards, slitting
operation and marketing of
photosensitive dry films for printed
wiring boards

Marketing of functional materials

R&D in biotechnology

Hitachi Chemical Electronic
Materials (Hong Kong) Limited

Hitachi Chemical Diagnostics,
Inc.

Manufacturing and marketing of
copper-clad laminates for printed
wiring boards

Manufacturing and marketing of
diagnostic reagents

Hitachi Chemical India Private
Limited
Manufacturing and marketing of
powder metal products

Hitachi Chemical Automotive
Products (Thailand)
Company Limited
Manufacturing and marketing of
automotive interior / exterior plastic
molded products

Hitachi Storage Battery
(Dongguan) Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of
batteries and plastic products

Hitachi Powdered Metals
(Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of
powder metal products

Hitachi Chemical (Malaysia)
Sdn. Bhd.

Hitachi Powdered Metals
(Dongguan) Co., Ltd.

Manufacturing and marketing of
epoxy molding compounds and die
bonding materials for semiconductors

Manufacturing and marketing of
powder metal products

Hitachi Chemical (Yantai)
Co., Ltd.
Slitting operation and marketing of
photosensitive dry films for printed
wiring boards

Hitachi Chemical (Thailand)
Co., Ltd.
Marketing of advanced components
and systems

Bioclone Australia Pty Limited
Manufacturing and marketing of
diagnostic reagents

Hitachi Chemical Co.
(Hong Kong) Limited.

PT Hitachi Powdered Metals
Indonesia

Marketing of functional materials,
advanced components and systems

Hitachi Chemical Europe GmbH
Marketing of functional materials

Sintering Technologies, Inc.*3
Manufacturing and marketing of
powder metal products

Manufacturing and marketing of
batteries

Foshan J.B. Automotive
Products Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of
friction materials

Hitachi Powdered Metals
(Singapore) Pte. Limited

Hitachi Chemical Asia-Pacific
Pte. Ltd.

Hitachi Chemical (Shanghai)
Co., Ltd.

Slitting operation of photosensitive
dry films for printed wiring boards,
marketing of functional materials

Hitachi Chemical Company
America, Ltd.

Hitachi Storage Battery
(Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Manufacturing and marketing of
powder metal products

Hitachi Chemical Electronic
Materials (Korea) Co., Ltd.

Manufacturing and marketing of
friction materials

Manufacturing and marketing of
powder metal products

Marketing of functional materials

Marketing of functional materials

Hitachi Chemical Mexico, S.A.
de C.V.

Slitting operation of anisotropic
conductive films for displays, marketing
of functional materials

Japan Brake (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Manufacturing and marketing of
friction materials

*1: Besides the above, a further six companies are subject to consolidated accounting.
*2: On April 1, 2012, Hitachi Chemical Industrial Materials Co., Ltd. and Hitachi Chemical Coated Sand Co., Ltd. were absorbed into Hitachi Chemical Techno Service Co., Ltd.
*3: On April 1, 2012, Sintering Technologies Inc. was renamed Hitachi Powdered Metals (USA), Inc.
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